

SPECIAL EDUCATION PLAN

2021-2022



NCDSB Student Services 383 Birch Street North Timmins, ON P4N 6E8 Phone: 705.268.7443 www.ncdsb.on.ca For more information, please contact:

Catherine Hoven or Katie Mundle Special Assignment Teacher for Student Services Daphne Brumwell Superintendent of Education To ensure an attitude of welcomed acceptance and that a celebration of individual differences is encouraged and supported among students, parents and staff in our Catholic schools.

We believe that:

- All teachers are special educators.
- Our Catholic schools educate the whole child and the uniqueness of every child is celebrated.
- The heart, mind, body and soul of our exceptional students need to be nurtured.
- Early identification and intervention is the key to academic success.
- Facilitating growth is a continuous process for all students receiving Special Education programs and services.
- It is our responsibility as Catholic educators and parents to provide the opportunity for our Special Education students to share the school experience their brothers, sisters and friends enjoy. Therefore, integration is considered first when in the best interest of the child.
- Together, we can make a difference.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Section One: Special Education Programs & Services | Page |
|---|------|
| Model for Special Education | 4 |
| Identification, Placement & Review Committee Process (IPRC) | 5 |
| Special Education Placements Provided by the Board | 9 |
| Individual Education Plans (IEP) | |
| Special Education Staff | |
| Specialized Equipment | |
| Transportation for Students with Special Education Needs | |
| Transition Planning | |
| | |

Section Two: Provincial Information

| 20 |
|----|
| 22 |
| 27 |
| |

Section Three: Other Related Information Required for Community

| The Board's Consultation Process | 31 |
|---|----|
| The Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC) | 32 |
| Early Identification Procedures and Intervention Strategies | |
| Educational and Other Assessments | 47 |
| Coordination of Services with Other Ministries or Agencies | |
| Specialized Health Support Services in School Settings | 51 |
| Staff Development | |
| Accessibility (AODA) | |
| Parent Guide to Special Education | |
| | |

Section Four: Special Education Forms



Section One: Special Education Programs & Services

Model for Special Education

Special Education programs, services and resources assist exceptional students in reaching their academic, physical, social and emotional potential, and are focused on the individual learner.

Students have different abilities, rates and styles of learning and therefore require different resources to assist them with their learning.

Responsibility for each student's education is shared by the student, the student's parents/guardians, educators, and trustees; therefore, all staff members in the Northeastern Catholic District School Board are expected to assist in the provision of appropriate programs, services and resources for exceptional students.

Parents/guardians and the students are key partners in the discussions about the Special Education programs and service delivery decisions. Ongoing communication between home and school regarding each student's programs and services is essential to the success of the partnership.

The legislated and societal demands for Special Education programs and services continue to increase, as has the complexity of the needs of many of our students. Through careful planning, the Northeastern Catholic District School Board provides programs and services based on student needs, recognizing that these may change as the student progresses from year to year.

The following principles support the accommodation of students in their community schools when such a placement meets a student's needs, is in accordance with the wishes of parents/guardians, and where school facilities, staffing and other resources permit:

- Programs must be developed from the student's strengths and needs. The provision of Special Education programs and services, with the allocation of resources, is based on student needs.
- A range of placements is provided in order to meet the needs of some exceptional students.

Guiding Principles:

- School teams, with input from parents/guardians, health and social agencies, coordinate the planning delivery, and evaluation of the accommodations and program modifications for exceptional students. Classroom teachers have prime responsibility for the education of students in their classes, and are provided with any assistance necessary from the Special Education staff in order to ensure that the students' needs are being met appropriately.
- Staff development focuses on enhancing the expertise of all staff as they address the special needs of learners.
- Unless an alternative curriculum is required, programs for students are based on the expectations of the Ontario Curriculum. Appropriate accommodations and program modifications, based on student needs, are provided.
- Partnerships with agencies, other ministries, and community resources continue to enhance the ability of the school system to fulfill its mandate of educating students in the Northeastern Catholic District School Board.

Approach to Special Education:

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board believes that most exceptional students can and should have their needs met in regular classes in their home schools. Meeting these needs can be accomplished using a variety of teaching strategies, modifying the curriculum when appropriate, and using the resources available to the school.

Parents/guardians are involved in the discussions about the placement, programs and services being provided for the exceptional students. The school has a responsibility to ensure that parents/guardians, and to the extent possible, students are well informed and understand the decisions being made. Respect, clarity, accurate information and appropriate time for answering the questions of parents/guardians must guide all discussions.

Service Delivery Model

- The provision of Special Education programs and services within the Northeastern Catholic District School Board is inclusionary in nature.
- The focus is on providing these programs and services within the context of the regular classroom setting whenever possible.
- All programs and services take place in the exceptional student's school, unless the placement requires transportation to a nearby school in order to access specialized programs or services not available at the child's home school.
- Special Education programs and services within the Board's elementary and secondary schools are provided by the classroom teachers and may be supported by educational assistants and child and youth workers when and where deemed necessary.
- Delivery of language services is provided to students across the district by a contracted Speech and Language Pathologist.
- Delivery of psychological services is provided to students in all regions by a variety of psychologists and/or psychometrists hired by the Board on a needs basis and/or through community agencies after an appropriate assessment period has taken place according to the tiered approach to early intervention.

ACTION 1 FOR 2021-2022

Continue to work on the creation of the documents that outline the various internal processes found in the special education department.

Compliance with Legislation

The Special Education Plan of the Northeastern Catholic District School Board has been developed in accordance with the *Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedom*, the *Ontario Human Rights Code*, the *Education Act*, and the regulations made under the *Act*.

Identification, Placement and Review Committee (IPRC) Process

This IPRC Process in the NCDSB is based on Regulation 181/98, "Identification and Placement of Exceptional Pupils". The identification of learning needs process outlines the procedures leading to curriculum modification and/or placement in a specialized program. Education assessment occurs continually during the process, in consultation with the parent, and includes the teacher's own initial assessment of the student, other school-based assessments, other assessments by registered professionals, and the on-going evaluation of student progress.

Effective March 31st, 2021, the total number of students in the Board identified with exceptionalities is 309 (elementary) and 84 (secondary). No appeals were conducted in the 2020- 2021 school year.

| Summary of Identified Students in the NCDSB (March 31 st , 2021) | | | |
|---|-------------------------------|------------------------------|--|
| Exceptionality | Number of Elementary Students | Number of Secondary Students | |
| Communication: Autism | 23 | 3 | |
| Communication: Speech Impairment | 2 | 0 | |
| Communication: Language Impairment | 22 | 2 | |
| Communication: Deaf/Hard of Hearing | 3 | 1 | |
| Communication: Learning Disability | 134 | 55 | |
| Behavior | 18 | 0 | |
| Physical: Physical Disability | 12 | 1 | |
| Physical: Blind/Low Vision | 1 | 0 | |
| Physical: Deaf/Blind | 0 | 0 | |
| Intellectual: Giftedness | 1 | 1 | |
| Intellectual: Mild Intellectual Disability | 22 | 12 | |
| Intellectual: Developmental Disability | 8 | 2 | |
| Multiple Exceptionality | 63 | 7 | |
| Total | 309 | 84 | |

The former Referral Process model has been replaced with the philosophy of the tiered approach to early intervention as described in the document *Learning for All (see page 7)*. Based on the student's progress, stagnation, or regression in tiers 1, 2, and 3 and supporting evidence, decisions are made collaboratively with the members of the school-based team.

ACTION 2 FOR 2021-2022

Explore the opportunity to use the new Powerschool Student Information System to generate a variety of special education forms such as referrals.

Steps in the IPRC process:

- 1. Principal refers students to IPRC either at the written request of the parent/guardian or on his/her own initiative.
- 2. The superintendent or designate will authorize the initial IPRC as requested by the school principal, but does not need to attend all initial IPRC meetings across the district.
- 3. Within 15 days of authorization, the principal notifies the parent that the student has been referred to the IPRC.
 - a. The parent receives the written notification of the referral, the approximate time the IPRC is likely to meet and a copy of **The Parent's Guide to Special Education**.
- 4. At least 10 days in advance, the principal must notify the parent and the student, if 16 years of age or over, in writing of the date of the IPRC.
 - a. The parent/guardian, the student if 16 years of age or older, is entitled to receive all the information which is provided to members of the IPRC.
- 5. The IPRC meets and
 - considers assessment reports (educational, psychological and/or health);
 - may discuss and make a recommendation for special education programs and services, but will not make decisions about these issues;
 - may recommend that an exceptional student who is 21 years of age or older remain in a secondary day school program;
 - decides:
 - a. whether the student is exceptional or not
 - b. if exceptional, the category and definition of the identified exceptionality
 - c. the strengths and needs of the student
 - d. the placement of the student in a regular class with special education services or in a special education class. The IPRC will recommend placement in a regular classroom with special education services as the first option if in its opinion such a placement meets the student's needs and is consistent with parental preferences.
 - In the Northeastern Catholic District School Board, the majority of students identified as exceptional are placed in a regular classroom with special educational support.
 - If the IPRC recommends placement in a special education class, the reasons for this recommendation are set out in the decision.
 - The chair of the IPRC notifies in writing the parent/guardian, the student if he/she is 16 years of age or older, the principal who made the referral and a representative of the school board, of the IPRC's decision.

Special Education Appeal Board:

If a parent/guardian does not agree with either the identification of placement decision made by the IPRC he or she may:

- Within 15 days of receipt of the decision, request that the IPRC hold a second meeting to discuss concerns; or
- Within 35 days of receipt of the decision, file a notice of appeal with the Director of Education of the Northeastern Catholic District School Board, 383 Birch St North, Timmins, ON P4N 6E8.
- If a parent/guardian still does not agree with the decisions after the second meeting, he or she may file a notice of appeal within 15 days of receipt of the decision.

NCDSB REFERRAL PROCESS



How Does a Parent/Guardian Appeal an IPRC Decision?

If a parent/guardian disagrees with the IPRC's identification of his or her child as exceptional or with the placement decision of the IPRC, he or she may, within 35 days of receipt of the original decision or within 15 days of receipt of the decision from the second meeting described above, give written notification of an intention to appeal the decision to the Director of Education of the Northeastern Catholic District School Board, 383 Birch Street North, Timmins, ON P4N 6E8. The notice of appeal must:

- Indicate the decision with which the parent/guardian disagrees; and
- Include a statement that sets out the parent/guardian's reasons for disagreeing.

What Happens in the Appeal Process?

The appeal process involves the following steps:

- ✓ The board will establish a Special Education Appeal Board to hear an appeal. The Appeal Board will be composed of three persons (one of whom is to be selected by the parent/guardian) who have no prior knowledge of the matter under appeal.
- The Chair of the Appeal Board will arrange a meeting to take place at a convenient time and place, but no later than 30 days after he or she has been notified (unless parents/guardians and board both provide written consent to a later date.
- ✓ The Appeal Board will receive the material reviewed by the IPRC and may interview any persons who may be able to contribute information about the matter under appeal.
- ✓ The parent/guardian and the child, if he or she is 16 years old or over, are entitled to be present at the meeting, and to participate in all discussions.
- The Appeal Board will report its recommendations in writing to the parent/guardian (and to the child if 16 years of age or over) and to the school board, providing the reasons for its recommendations. Boards are not required to follow the Appeal Board's recommendations.
- ✓ Within 30 days of receiving the Appeal Board's written statement, the school board will decide what action it will take with respect to the recommendations.
- ✓ A parent/guardian may accept the decision of the school board, or may appeal to a Special Education Tribunal. He or she may request a hearing by writing to the Secretary of the Special Education Tribunal. Information about making an application to the Tribunal will be included with the Appeal Board's decision.

Implementation of IPRC Decision and Next Steps

- The school will implement the IPRC decision as soon as possible.
- Within 30 school days of the placement starting, an individual education plan (IEP) for the student is developed. The IEP is provided to the parent and if the student is 16 years of age or older, the student. The parent and student (if over 16) are consulted on the contents of the IEP.
- Once a year, the IPRC is reconvened to review each student's identification and/or placement. At the NCDSB, reviews take place in the fall of the new school year. The parent, however, may request a review three months after the placement has begun.

ACTION 3 FOR 2021-2022

In the event that a child's identification changes due to an updated assessment, we need to ensure that the new documentation is forwarded to the board office for filing in the student's Special Education file. An internal procedure will be created to ensure this happens.

Special Education Placements Provided by the NCDSB

In accordance with the direction of the Ministry of Education, the Northeastern Catholic District School Board is committed to the principle that the integration of exceptional students should be the norm, provided the placement meets the student's needs and is in accordance with parents' preferences. The NCDSB acknowledges the necessity for a full range of placement options to meet these varying needs of students. These options are reviewed by the Special Education Advisory Committee on an annual basis.

Placement of a student in a regular classroom setting is the first option considered by the Identification, Placement and Review Committee (IPRC).

Placement Options

The range of Special Education placement options available within each elementary and secondary school are as follows:

| | PLACEMENT OPTIONS |
|---|--|
| Regular Class | The student is placed in a regular class for the entire day, and the teacher provides program modifications and/or accommodations. |
| Regular Class with Indirect Support | The student is placed in a regular class for the entire day, and the student receives specialized consultative services. |
| Regular Class with Resource Assistance | The student is placed in a regular class for most or all of the day and receives specialized instruction, individually or in a small group, within the regular classroom from a qualified resource teacher. |
| Regular Class with Withdrawal Assistance | The student is placed in a regular class and receives instruction outside the classroom, for less than 50 percent of the school day from a qualified resource teacher. |
| Special Education Class with Partial Integration | The student is placed by the IPRC in a Special Education class in which the student-teacher ratio conforms to Regulation 298, section 31, for at least 50 percent of the school day, but is integrated with a regular classroom for at least one instructional period daily. |
| Special Education Class Full-Time | The student is placed by the IPRC in a Special Education class, where the student-teacher ratio conforms to Regulation 298, section 31, for the entire school day. |

ACTION 4 FOR 2021-2022

Ensure that the placement option on the IPRC Statement of Decision is reflective of the actual placement. We have tended to use "Resource Assistance" as a catch-all when we should be more specific. This also means that when a placement changes mid-year, parents need to be contacted and provided with the opportunity to participate in a formal IPRC meeting or to have the documentation forwarded for signature after a conversation. An internal procedure will be created to capture what will need to happen in these circumstances.

Other options than these exist to meet the students' needs. Students may need to apply for admission to a provincial school for students who are blind, deaf or deaf-blind or a Provincial Demonstration School for students with severe learning disabilities. Consideration of the facility that provides the necessary care or treatment appropriate to the students' condition is provided.

Application to Provincial Schools and Provincial Demonstration Schools are coordinated by individual schools and submitted with assistance by the school board. Applications to Care and Treatment Facilities are coordinated by individual schools via the Special Assignment Teacher for Special Education.

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board is fortunate to have an active Special Education Advisory Committee. Through regular open monthly meetings and annual school tours, SEAC receives input which enables it to make recommendations on the Special Education programs offered each year.

SERVICE DELIVERY FOR EXCEPTIONAL STUDENTS IN THE NORTHEASTERN CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 2020-2021

| | | Placement Options | | ient Options |
|----------------------|---------------------------------|--|---|---|
| Exceptionality | | Regular Classroom with Program Modifications and/or Accommodations | Regular Classroom with Resource Teacher Support (Resource/ Withdrawal) | Special Programs & Classes |
| | Autism | ✓ | ~ | • St. Jerome |
| | Speech Impairment | ~ | ~ | |
| Communication | Language Impairment | ~ | ~ | |
| Communication | Deaf & Hard of Hearing | V | ~ | Provincial School |
| Learning Disability | V | V | Provincial School Empower Class (60 minutes per day) at OICS, ECCS, Pope Francis, Sacred Heart & St. Patrick School in Kapuskasing | |
| Behaviour | | ~ | ~ | |
| | Mild Intellectual Disability | ~ | ~ | |
| Intellectual | Developmental Disability | ~ | ~ | |
| | Giftedness | ~ | ~ | |
| | Blind & Low Vision | ~ | ~ | |
| Physical | Deaf Blind | ✓ | ~ | |
| | Physical Disability | ~ | ~ | |
| Multiple Exceptional | lities | ~ | V | St. Joseph St. Patrick School in Cobalt (Essential Skills) |

Process for Admitting Exceptional Students to Placements

- **Regular Class with Resource Assistance:** In order for a student to be placed in the regular class with resource support, the IPRC must make the recommendation. In addition, the parent/guardian and student 16 years of age or older must give informed, written consent to this placement. The IEP describes the Special Education staff who provide resource assistance within the regular class setting, and outlines the frequency and duration of this assistance. The resource support begins within 30 days of the IPRC's determination of the exceptional student's placement.
- **Regular Class with Withdrawal Assistance:** In order for a student to be placed in the regular class with withdrawal support, the IPRC must make the recommendation. In addition, the parent/guardian and student 16 years of age or older must give informed, written consent to this placement. The IEP describes the Special Education staff who provides the assistance and outlines the frequency and duration of this assistance. The withdrawal program begins within 30 days of the IPRC's determination of the exceptional student's placement.
- **Regular Class with Indirect Support:** Upon enrolment, all students, including exceptional students, are placed in a regular class. If a placement other than the regular class is requested at the time of enrolment, a case conference is held with the parent and agencies involved with the student to determine the need for an alternative placement.
- Special Education Class with Partial Integration: When the IPRC recommends a student be placed in a partially self-contained classroom setting, the decision is not made lightly. In most cases, a variety of other placements have

already been tried, with little success. In addition, the parent/guardian and student 16 years of age or older must give informed, written consent to this placement. The IEP describes the Special Education staff who provides the assistance and outlines the frequency and duration of this assistance. The IEP also indicates which subjects the student will be integrated for. The placement can begin at the beginning of either term. Mid-term placements would only be made if absolutely necessary.

• **Special Education Class Full-Time:** Often, self-contained classrooms support those students who have severe difficulties accessing programs in a regular class, even with additional human resource support. The parent/guardian and student 16 years or older must give informed, written consent to this placement. The IEP describes the Special Education staff who provides the assistance and outlines the frequency and duration of this assistance. The placement can begin at the beginning of either term. Mid-term placements would only be made if absolutely necessary.

Criteria for Determining the Level of Support in Each Special Education Placement

The level of support provided to exceptional students is determined by the following:

- the severity of the student's disability;
- the range of needs presented by the student;
- the degree of independent functioning displayed by the student.

Therefore, exceptional students placed in the regular class with monitoring are generally those with the narrowest range of needs and the highest level of independence. Those placed in the regular class with resource support have mild to moderate disabilities, a moderate range of needs, and a moderate level of independent functioning. For a placement in the regular class with withdrawal support, the student would have moderate to severe disabilities, moderate to high range of needs and generally low levels of independence. Finally, those students with the most severe disabilities, the highest range of needs, and the lowest level of independent functioning would be placed in a partially self-contained or self-contained class.

Criteria for Determining a Change to Special Education Placements

Changes to an exceptional student's placement can only be made during an IPRC review. Informed, written consent of the parent/guardian or student over the age of 16 must be obtained. A change in placement is to be considered under the following circumstances:

- the severity of the disability has changed;
- the range of the student's needs have changed;
- the level of independent functioning has changed;
- additional placement options have been created in the student's community school region.

Alternative Placements

If an exceptional student requires medical and/or psychological treatment that is beyond the mandate of the Board and/or the expertise of its staff, an alternative placement may be an option. However, the range of alternative placements in the North is limited.

Every attempt is made to provide additional resources and/or training in order to try and meet the needs of the students. Should attempts to provide a program within our Board be unsuccessful, parents are made aware of special programs offered by other boards and/or provincial and demonstration schools.

In these circumstances, the parents would be invited to a case conference by the school principal and superintendent or designate to discuss the various treatment options and/or facilities the student might access. Should the parent choose to pursue admission to another board or facility, the superintendent or designate will assist in the admission process.

ACTION 5 FOR 2021-2022

Given the pandemic, our desire to include students in the IPRC and IEP process where appropriate (Grade 7 & up) was hampered. We would like to continue to have schools work towards this expectation and have them support students in developing a one page document highlighting their strengths, needs, key accommodations and unique learning profile. This document will be shared with those currently supporting the student, as well as those supporting the student the following year.

Individual Education Plans (IEP)

The Individual Education Plan (IEP) reflects the Northeastern Catholic District School Board's commitment to provide the special education programs and services, within its available resources, needed to meet the identified strengths and needs of the student. As per Regulation 181/98 of the Education Act, and the Ministry's IEP Standards, Principals in the NCDSB are required to ensure an IEP is prepared for all identified exceptional students within 30 school days of the commencement of the student's placement in a special education program. Recommendations regarding programming and services made by the Identification, Placement and Review Committee (IPRC) are considered, and parents (and students who are 16 years of age and older) are strongly encouraged to participate in the development of the IEP. Any issues or differences regarding the implementation of the IEP are communicated to the school Principal, who will arrange for additional parent-school consultation and/or case conference in order to address these issues.

The IEP is a written plan describing the special education program and/or services required by a particular student. It identifies learning expectations that are modified from or alternative to the expectations of the Ontario Curriculum for the appropriate grade and subject or course. The IEP also identifies accommodations and special education services needed to assist a student in achieving his/her learning expectations. It assists teachers in monitoring the student's progress and serves as a framework for communicating information about this progress to the parents at least each school term/semester. As changes occur in the student's special education programs and services as a result of on-going assessment and evaluation of the achievement of learning expectations, the IEP is updated to reflect the student's new needs and goals.

In summary, the IEP includes:

- learning expectations
- current level of achievement
- an outline of the special education programs and services to be provided
- how the pupils' progress will be evaluated
- a transition plan

Board Implementation Plan / Results of Ministry of Education Review

In the Fall of 2007, the Ministry of Education shared a provincial template for school boards to complete Individual Education Plans. A revision to the NCDSB IEP template was undertaken to ensure that the template was aligned with Ministry expectations and design. The board continues to purchase service through Base Point Solutions to ensure that classroom and resource teachers complete IEPs using a web-based application. Based on the Ministry of Education's recommendations to the NCDSB as part of the review process, strategic training and professional development opportunities to ensure that all members of school communities have a thorough understanding of the elements of an IEP, the roles and responsibilities of team members, and the successful implementation and assessment of an effective learning plan for students with an IEP have been undertaken.

Each year we have been engaging in an internal review of IEPs in an effort to see how effectively written our IEPs are and how well they conform to the expectations we have set out. This year, our review was completed in January 2021. Three IEPs were selected from each school for the review, including NCDSB's Virtual School. The IEPS selected included 1 of each of the following: Non-Identified, Learning Disability and Other (MID, DD, ASD, Multiple). A Google Form was created to input all the information reviewed for each IEP.

Strengths:

- All IEPs had SEA Equipment listed when a claim had been submitted
- Most IEPs had consistent formatting
- Most IEPs removed old reading data (BAS)
- Most IEPs included a complete and accurate development team
- Most modified IEPs included measurable and specific expectations
- Most IEPs listed the grade level of the modification following the expectation
- Most IEPs had current reading data listed (BAS)
- Most IEPs provided sufficient detail when noting the description and outcome of parent contact
- Most IEPs included a Transition Plan with action items and a timeline
- Most modified IEPs were validated with data

Areas Requiring Greater Attention

- IEPs need to include an Instructional Reading Level (BAS)
- IEPs with Math modifications must be supported with data (AAN, Show What You Know in Mental Math, ONAP, etc.)
- IEPs to include EQAO assessment data (Grade 3, Grade 6, Grade 9 Math, OSSLT)
- Instructional Accommodations should also be provided as Assessment Accommodations
- Strengths and Needs listed on the IEP must match the Strengths and Needs on the Statement of Decision
- Cognitive scores are to be listed if the student received a psychological assessment
- IEPs to specify the role of the RT in student programming when applicable (Empower, LLI, Math Intervention, etc.)
- IEPs to include a Holistic Learner comment that reflects the student outside of the school environment

Results of the review are shared with schools so that the next round of IEPs can reflect the areas of need identified.

Examples of NCDSB IEPs can be found in the appendix.

Individual Education Plan Dispute Resolution Process

When a parent/guardian or student 16 years of age or older is not satisfied with any aspect of the Individual Education Plan, the superintendent or designate will request to meet with the parent/guardian and the school in order to attempt to resolve the dispute.

If it is not possible to resolve the dispute in a way which satisfies both the parent/guardian and the school staff, the school principal has the final decision regarding the content of the information provided in the IEP in accordance with the Individual Education Plan Resource Guide (1998) which states that "An IEP is a plan developed, implemented and monitored by school staff."

ACTION 6 FOR 2021-2022

Continue to build capacity and competency of principals, teachers and support staff in the development, implementation and monitoring of effective IEPs for students requiring modifications to individual programs. Engage school teams in the IEP audit process in the late fall to build capacity within the school to complete this process independently.

Ensure all new teachers hired who have not previously done the NCDSB IEP e-Hub course, complete this by the end of September 2021.

Special Education Staff

Elementary Schools Special Education Staff

At the elementary school level, Special Education programs and services are provided by each staff member within the school including the:

- Principal
- Classroom Teachers
- Resource Teachers
- Special Needs Teachers
- Child and Youth Workers
- Educational Assistants
- Behaviour Support Specialist
- Behaviour Analyst

Within our elementary schools, the Special Education support staff are:

- Resource teachers who provide instruction for exceptional students in all grades of elementary school, and consult with the classroom teachers and child and youth workers concerning exceptional students' IEPs. Each elementary school within the Board has a resource teacher.
- Special needs teachers are responsible for the programming in specialized classroom settings. They work in conjunction with the resource teacher and classroom teacher (when the child is partially integrated) to develop and implement programs related to the needs of the students.

- Child and Youth Workers in our elementary schools provide programs and intervention to students who are struggling socially and/or emotionally. They will teach special social skill programs to an entire class, and/or small groups of students who have identified needs in this area. They also run individual and small group sessions with a specific focus. Recently, we have been focusing on providing our Child & Youth Workers with additional training to support students through ABA strategies. All of our CYWs have now completed the 40 hour RBT course. As such, we have been leaning on CYWs to provide a greater amount of support to students with ASD and/or other behavioural needs under the direction of our Mental Health Leader and her Behaviour Support Team.
- Based on need, educational assistants are assigned to elementary and secondary schools to provide intensive support to exceptional students who have been formally identified through the IPRC process and/or who would benefit from support related to physical, medical and safety/supervision needs first. The EAs also support student use of assistive technology as required.
- Our Behaviour Specialists supports students who have ASD and/or who have other complex behavioural needs. This person works in conjunction with the teachers, educational assistants, the school principal, the resource teacher and the CYW to craft behaviour support plans and to monitor progress towards meeting these goals. This person can also act as a liaison between the school, the family and other community agencies.
- Our Behaviour Analyst conducts data driven functional behaviour assessment and analysis. This person is also tasked to monitor functional behaviour interventions and data recording systems. This person is a liaison between home, school, system staff and community as appropriate, to support students with complex behavioural needs. Clinical consultation, under the supervision of a qualified BCBA, is provided to families and staff to support plans and implement strategies and interventions for students with ASD. This person also supports the capacity building of school and system staff by offering professional development related to PPM 140.

In addition to the staff mentioned above, the Board also purchases the services of the following professionals:

- Orientation and mobility instructor through the Canadian National Institute for the Blind
- Speech and language pathologist contract with private professional
- Psychological and psychometric services

The table below summarizes the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff members who are assigned to elementary schools Special Education programs in 2020-2021.

| SPECIAL EDUCATION STAFF ALLOCATIONS | FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT | QUALIFICATIONS |
|--|----------------------|---|
| Resource Teacher | 16 | Special Education AQ Part 2 |
| Teacher for Self-Contained Classes | 2.5 | Special Education AQ Part 1 |
| Teacher for the Blind | 0 | |
| Teacher for the Deaf | 0 | |
| Teacher Diagnostician | 0.40 | Special Education Specialist; Additional Training and Supervision of Board Certified Psychologist |
| Superintendent or Designate | 0.45 | SOQP; Special Education Specialist |
| Special Assignment Teacher for Special Education | 1.4 | Special Education Specialist |
| Literacy Support Teacher | 0 | |
| Reading Intervention | 0.1 | |
| Oral Language Support Teacher | 0.0 | Special Education Part 1 |
| Educational Assistant | 43.42 | College Diploma or Degree in Related Field |
| Psychologist | Purchase of Service | |

| Psychometrist | Purchase of Service | |
|---------------------------------------|---------------------|---|
| Psychiatrist | 0 | |
| Speech and Language Pathologist | Purchase of Service | |
| Audiologist | 0 | |
| Occupational Therapist | 0 | |
| Physiotherapist | 0 | |
| Child and Youth Worker | 8.14 | College Diploma or Degree in Related Field |
| Orientation and Mobility | Purchase of Service | |
| Autism & Behaviour Support Specialist | 1.9 | College Diploma or Degree in Related Field |
| Behaviour Analyst | 0.90 | Bachelor's Degree in a Related Field |
| TOTAL FTE | 75.21 | |

Secondary School Special Education Staff

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board has only one secondary school. At the secondary school level, Special Education programs and services are provided by each staff member within the school including the:

- Principal
- Vice-Principals
- Resource Teachers
- Department Heads
- Guidance Counsellor
- Child and Youth Worker
- Educational Assistants

Within our secondary school, the Special Education support staff are:

- Resource teachers who provide instruction for exceptional students in all grades of the secondary school, and consult with the classroom teachers and child and youth workers concerning exceptional students' IEPs.
- Child and youth workers provide support and intervention to students who are struggling socially or with mental health on a referral basis. Clinical services are referring to community agencies who specialize in this work.
- Based on need, educational assistants are assigned to elementary and secondary schools to provide intensive support to exceptional students who have been formally identified through the IPRC process and/or who would benefit from support related to physical, medical and safety/supervision needs first.

The table below summarizes the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff members who are assigned to our secondary school Special Education program. The professional qualifications of the staff members are also described.

| SPECIAL EDUCATION STAFF ALLOCATIONS | FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT | QUALIFICATIONS |
|---|----------------------|---|
| Resource Teacher | 2.00 | Special Education AQ Part 2 |
| Teacher for Self-Contained Classes | 0 | Special Education AQ Part 1 |
| Teacher for the Blind | 0 | |
| Teacher for the Deaf | 0 | |
| Teacher Diagnostician | 0.10 | Special Education Specialist; Additional Training and Supervision of Board Certified Psychologist |
| Superintendent of Designate | 0.05 | SOQP; Special Education Specialist |
| Special Assignment Teacher for Special Education | 0.10 | Special Education Specialist |
| Technology Support Teacher | 0 | Special Education Part 1 |
| Literacy Support Teacher | 0 | |
| Educational Assistant | 4 | College Diploma or Degree in Related Field |
| Psychologist | Purchase of Service | |
| Psychometrist | Purchase of Service | |
| Psychiatrist | 0 | |
| Speech and Language Pathologist | Purchase of Service | |
| Audiologist | 0 | |
| Occupational Therapist | 0 | |
| Physiotherapist | 0 | |
| Child and Youth Worker | 0 | College Diploma or Degree in Related Field |
| Orientation and Mobility | Purchase of Service | |
| Autism & Behaviour Support Specialist | 0.10 | College Diploma or Degree in Related Field |
| Behaviour Analyst | 0.10 | Bachelor's Degree in a Related Field |
| Social Worker | 2.0 | Regulated Health Professional |
| TOTAL FTE | 8.45 | |

Specialized Equipment

Determining Eligibility

In order to determine if a student requires individualized equipment, a recommendation is received from a qualified registered practitioner such as a medical doctor, psychometrist, audiologist, occupational therapist or physical therapist, indicating that the equipment is necessary for programming.

Most specialized equipment is purchased through Ministry of Education Specialized Equipment Amount (SEA) provided the criteria as listed is met.

Purchasing Equipment

Beginning in 2010-2011, the SEA allocation has been made up of two components: a SEA Per Pupil amount and a SEA Claims-Based Amount.

The new SEA Per Pupil Amount would be part of a five-year plan to provide boards with greater flexibility and predictability by converting part of the SEA allocation (approximately 85% of funds) into a single SEA Per Pupil Amount for all school boards by 2014-2015.

The SEA Claims-Based Amount would continue to support the purchases of non-computer based equipment to be utilized by students with special education needs, including sensory equipment, hearing support equipment, vision support equipment, personal care support equipment and physical assists support equipment. This component of the SEA allocation would continue to be claim-based with an \$800 deductible.

At the NCDSB, equipment is allocated as follows:

- If the required equipment is already available within the school or the Board, new equipment is not purchased.
- If another piece of equipment is already available in the school or the Board that can be substituted for the recommended equipment, then new individual equipment will not be purchased.
- School boards are responsible for the first \$800 in costs for any student per year. The NCDSB usually budgets for approximately \$50,000 yearly for this equipment.
- Individualized equipment recommended for an exceptional student totaling less than \$800 in any given school year is the responsibility of the Board.
- Individualized equipment recommended for an exceptional student totaling more than \$800 in any given school year is submitted to the Ministry of Education through the SEA process.
- Equipment which is shared by more than one student is claimed in the name of one student only.
- Where feasible, equipment purchased for a student is expected to be transferred with the student from school to school or to a school in another board, providing it meets SEA requirements.

Each SEA claim MUST be documented by:

- 1. An assessment on file from an appropriately qualified professional;
- 2. A copy of the invoice(s) or proof of cost of equipment purchased: this documentation should show the student number of the person assigned the equipment;
- 3. A current copy of the student's IEP;
- 4. A medical diagnosis;
- 5. Parent notification.

The assessment by a qualified professional MUST indicate that a particular device is ESSENTIAL in order for the student to benefit from instruction and/or the DOCUMENTED DISABILITY that this device will help to ameliorate.

Budgeting for Individual Equipment

The budget is allocated based on assessment results and estimated equipment needs from the previous year, as well as from information regarding new students enrolling in September requiring individualized equipment. Extra funding is provided during the course of the year, if necessary. **Expenditures for SEA equipment in the 2020-2021 school year was \$34485.73** (claims-based).

Transportation for Students with Special Education Needs

Transportation Guidelines

The transportation of students within the Northeastern Catholic District School Board is governed by the following guidelines:

- All Junior Kindergarten and Kindergarten students qualify for bus transportation provided by the Board;
- Students from Grades 1 through to Grade 12 must qualify for busing based on distances established by coterminous boards of education. Distances can and do vary periodically. Updated distances may be obtained by calling the transportation officer. Visit <u>www.ncdsb.on.ca</u> for a contact telephone number.

Exceptional Students

- Students in Special Education Programs and the Regular Classroom:
 - o Students in Special Education programs with moderate to profound physical needs may access special transportation.
 - o Students with a developmental delay may access special transportation depending on the needs of the child.
 - o Students with severe behavioural needs may access special transportation.
- Students in Educational Programs in Care, Treatment, and Correctional Facilities:
 - o Students in care, treatment and correctional facilities may be transported to educational programs if they require special transportation due to behavioural difficulties and/or if they are a safety concern to others.
- Students Attending Provincial and Demonstration Schools:
 - The Board provides transportation to students attending Provincial and Demonstration Schools as outlined in the section of the Special Education Plan under "Provincial and Demonstration Schools Transportation".

Process for Deciding Whether a Student Qualifies for Special Transportation

Decisions about the need for transportation are made based on information shared at the IPRC. The IPRC will then make a recommendation which will be included as part of the student's needs for the following year as stated on the IEP. The Board's transportation officer will then be notified of the students needing special transportation.

Safety Criteria Being Used by the Board in Tendering the Selection of Transportation Providers for Exceptional Students

- The Ministry of Transportation initiates a criminal record search;
- The applicant is asked to show proof that they have completed a driver improvement course;
- Drivers must hold a class B or E driver's license and must continually meet a list of criteria to keep their license updated;
- Some bus companies in our Board monitor the status of their staff's license by obtaining a driver's abstract form the Ministry of Transportation, or from the Ontario School Bus Association's monthly publication;
- Bus drivers fill out an offence declaration form every September.
- Attendants need to get a yearly criminal record check.

Individualized Transportation

- A small number of exceptional students need to be transported to and from school individually.
- The criteria for determining which exceptional student requires individualized transportation are as follows:
 - ✓ Student presents such a significant behavioural disorder that he/she may be a danger to other students;
 - ✓ Student presents such a significant health problem that he/she cannot be accommodated in a vehicle shared with other students.

- In such cases, the general practice is to hire a taxi company to make daily trips to and from the school.
- An educational assistant may accompany the student to ensure his/her safety if needed.
- The implementation of criteria requesting the use of a bus harness on a school bus was introduced in 2010-2011. This process is necessary to ensure that the safety needs of a student are addressed accordingly and with the consent of the parent/guardian.

Transition Planning

Effective transition planning is important for all students, especially for students with special education needs. Personalized and precise student transition plans reflect the individual student's strengths and needs and provide the foundation for successful transition experiences. A transition planning template has been created in an electronic format (Clevr software) and professional training has been offered to initiate this required element for all students. The intent is that a transition plan will be included for all students with an IEP to ensure compliance with *PPM 156: Supporting Transitions for Students with Special Education Needs*. We are now in full compliance with the expectations of PPM 156.

Section Two: Provincial Information

Roles and Responsibilities in Special Education

A variety of organizations and individuals have roles and responsibilities with respect to Special Education, including the:

- Ministry of Education
- School Board
- Special Education Advisory Committee
- School Principal
- ✓ Teacher
- Resource Teacher
- ✓ Parent/guardian
- Student

The Ministry of Education:

- defines through the Education Act, regulations and policy/program memorandum, the legal obligations of school boards regarding the provisions of Special Education programs and services, and prescribes the categories and definitions of exceptionality;
- ensures that school boards provide appropriate Special Education programs and services for their exceptional students;
- establishes the funding for Special Education through the structure of the funding model. The model consists of the Foundation Grant, the Special Education Per Pupil Allocation (SEPPA), and other special purpose grants;
- requires school boards to report on their expenditures for Special Education;
- sets province-wide standards for curriculum and reporting of achievement;
- requires school boards to maintain Special Education Plans, review them annually, and submit amendments to the Ministry;
- requires school boards to establish Special Education Advisory Committees;
- establishes Special Education Tribunals to hear disputes between parents and school boards regarding the identification and placement of exceptional students;
- establishes a Provincial Advisory Council on Special Education to advise the Minister of Education on matters related to Special Education programs and services;
- operates Provincial and Demonstration Schools for students who are deaf, blind, or deaf-blind, or who have severe learning disabilities.

The School Board:

- establishes school board policy and practices that comply with the Education Act, regulations and policy/program memorandum;
- monitors school compliance with the Education Act, regulations, and policy/program memorandum;
- requires staff to comply with the Education Act, regulations, and policy/program memorandum;

- provides appropriately qualified staff to provide programs and services for the exceptional students of the Board;
- obtains the appropriate funding and reports on the expenditures for Special Education;
- develops and maintains a Special Education Plan that is amended from time to time to meet the current needs of the exceptional students of the Board;
- reviews the plan annually and submits amendments to the Minister of Education;
- provides statistical reports to the Ministry of Education as required and requested;
- prepares a parent guide to provide parents with information about Special Education programs, services, and procedures;
- establishes one or more IPRCs to identify exceptional students and determine appropriate placements for them;
- establishes a Special Education Advisory Committee;
- provides professional development to staff on Special Education.

The Special Education Advisory Committee

- makes recommendations to the Board with respect to any matter affecting the establishment, development, and delivery of Special Education programs and services for exceptional students of the Board;
- participates in the Board's annual review of its Special Education Plan;
- participates in the Board's annual budget process as it relates to Special Education;
- reviews the financial statements of the Board as they relate to Special Education;
- provides information to parents, as requested.

The School Principal:

- carries out duties as outlined in the Education Act, regulations and policy/program memorandum, and through Board policies;
- communicates Ministry of Education and school board expectations to staff;
- ensures that appropriately qualified staff are assigned to teach Special Education classes;
- communicates Board policies and procedures about Special Education to staff, students, and parents;
- ensures that the identification and placement of exceptional students, through an IPRC, is done according to the procedures outlined in the Education Act, regulations, and Board policies;
- consults with parents and with school board staff to determine the most appropriate program for exceptional students;
- ensures the development, implementation, and review of a student's Individual Education Plan (IEP), including a transition plan, according to the provincial requirements;
- ensures that parents are consulted in the development of their child's IEP and that they are provided with a copy of the IEP;
- ensures the delivery of the program as set out in the IEP;
- ensures that appropriate assessments are requested if necessary and that parental consent is obtained before any assessment is conducted.

The Teacher:

- carries out duties as outlined in the Education Act, regulations and policy/program memorandum;
- follows Board policies and procedures regarding Special Education;
- maintain up-to-date knowledge of Special Education practices;
- where appropriate, works with Special Education staff and parents to develop the IEP for an exceptional pupil;
- provides the program for the exceptional pupil in the regular class, as outlined in the IEP;
- communicates the student's progress to parents;
- works with other school board staff to review the student's IEP.

The Resource Teacher:

The Resource Teacher, in addition to the responsibilities listed under "Teacher":

- holds qualifications, in accordance with Regulation 298, to teach Special Education;
- monitors the student's progress with reference to the IEP and modifies the program as necessary;
- assists in providing educational assessments for exceptional students.

The Parent/Guardian:

- becomes familiar with and informed about board policies and procedures in areas that affect the child;
- participates in IPRCs, parent/teacher conferences, and other relevant school activities;
- participates in the development of the IEP;
- becomes acquainted with the school staff working with the student;
- supports the student at home;

- works with the school principal and teachers to solve problems;
- is responsible for the student's attendance at the school.

The Student:

- complies with the requirements as outlined in the Education Act, regulations and policy/program memorandum;
- complies with board policies and procedures;
- participates in IPRCs, parent-teacher conferences, and other activities, as appropriate.

| Behaviour | | | |
|---|---|---|---|
| Ministry Definition | Observables | Observable characteristics may be demonstrated by | As Determined by |
| A learning disorder characterized by specific behaviour problems over such a period of time and to such a marked degree, and of such a nature as to adversely affect educational performance and that may be accompanied by one or more of the following: • an inability to build or to maintain interpersonal relationships; • excessive fears or anxieties; • a tendency to compulsive reaction; or • an inability to learn that cannot be traced to intellectual, sensory, or other health factors, or any combination thereof. | Student behaviour is a concern for educators when it interferes with academic achievement. The following behavioural traits may be evidenced to varying degrees in students with behaviour/ emotional disorders. It is important to note that evidence of some traits does not always indicate a behavioural exceptionality. The frequency, intensity or duration of the behaviour must be taken into account. Behaviour disorders affect social relationships and academic progress. The behaviours persist in different settings and with different people. They are not primarily due to intellectual or health factors. | Behaviours that deviate in a significant manner from that which is normally expected usually with little regard for social or cultural norms: destructive of own, school or other's property; disobedient, defies authority, tests the limits, refuses to follow directions; domineering; uncooperative, resistive, inconsiderate, disruptive, interrupts, disturbs; causes disturbance for which others are blamed; apathetic; 'don't care' attitude; fights, hits, is assaultive; intimidates others, bullies, threatens; restless, boisterous, noisy; untrustworthy, dishonest, lies, steals; use of profane, abusive language and gestures; delinquent behaviour or vandalism; truancy from school. Behaviours which negatively affect learning and tend to be impulsive or compulsive: speaks out; disrupts classroom activities; displays temper tantrums; repetitively demonstrates the same behaviour; difficulty thinking before acting, impulsive; distractible, inattentive, lacks focus; daydreams, appears pre-occupied; short attention span, poor concentration. Demonstrates poor interpersonal relationships and has low self-esteem: uncooperative in groups, argumentative, passively non-compliant; attention seeking; depends on others for direction and requires constant reassurance; hypersensitive, easily hurt or embarrassed, easily flustered; lacks self-confidence. Demonstrates behaviour injurious to oneself: withdrawal, nervousness, hypersensitivity; anorexia, bulimia; self-abuse | Classroom documentation in the form of a behaviour log or checklist indicating: acting out or withdrawn behaviours, lacking social awareness/social skills, lack of motivation, or demonstration of some other behavioural difficulty; behaviour that is strongly interfering with that student's or other students' performance at school; manifest the above characteristics regularly over a 6 month period such that Special Education programs and services are required. Behavioural assessment done by a child and youth worker Other professional assessments such as a Psychological or Psychiatric Assessment. |

Categories and Definitions of Exceptionalities

| Ministry Definition | Observables | As Determined By |
|--|---|---|
| A learning disorder persistently and significantly has an impact on the ability to learn and use academic and other skills that: affects the ability to perceive or process verbal or non-verbal information in an effective and accurate manner in students who have assessed intellectual abilities that are at least in the average range; results in (a) academic achievement that is inconsistent with the intellectual abilities of the student and /or (b) academic achievement that can be maintained by the student only with high levels of effort and/or with additional support. results in difficulties in the development and use of skills in one or more of the following areas: reading, writing, mathematics, and work habits and learning skills may be typically associated on one or more cognitive processes, such as phonological processing; memory and attention; processing speed; perceptual-motor processing; visual-spatial processing; executive functions (self-regulation of behaviour and emotions, planning, organizing of thoughts and activities, prioritizing, decision making); may be associated with difficulties in social interaction; with various other conditions or disorders, diagnosed or undiagnosed; or with other exceptionalities; is not primarily the result of: - impairment of vision or hearing; - intellectual disabilities socio-economic factors cultural differences lack of proficiency in the language of instruction; lack of proficiency in the language of instruction; lack of motivation or effort; gaps in school attendance or inadequate opportunity to benefit from instruction; | uneven or inconsistent academic and social development and progress which suggests the student may not profit from regular instruction; functional difficulties in visual, auditory, motor, organizational and/or conceptual skills; difficulty understanding and following directions; interpretation of language literally and/or a limited vocabulary; problems with reading, comprehension, and mathematics; difficulty organizing and sequencing thoughts and ideas; difficulty organizing and sequencing thoughts and ideas; difficulty in the social use of language; inefficient strategies for reception, storage and production of information; difficulty with long-term and/or short-term memory; difficulty generalizing learning or transferring skills/knowledge from one setting to another; mastery of content but an inability to produce answers; difficulty solving problems and may become overwhelmed by the tasks at hand; behaviour that is often immature, impulsive and egocentric; low self-esteem, social skill deficits; fear of school; difficulty in discrimination and sequencing and/or directionality confusion; more accident-prone than peers; may write well but not read well, or vice-versa; very easily distracted; lack of sense of time, space, body awareness, shape (e.g. lack of organization on the page); difficulty sequencing when presented with visual or auditory stimuli; may exhibit negative behaviour patterns (acting out or withdrawal); written work may be poor in style and form with frequent errors in omissions, additions, substitutions, and reversals; difficulty tracking with reading. | classroom documentation (i.e. assessment information, anecdotal observations, etc.); educational assessment indicating level of achievement is significantly below what is expected based on chronological age (at least 2 grades below); at least average performance in some aspects of learning which may include listening, conceptualizing, oral language, and/or problem solving; psychological assessment indicating significant discrepancy between potential and academic achievement. Learning disability must be diagnose by the psychologist, and should be based on Canadian norms, be culturally sensitive where possible, and be provided t the student in an accessible format (sign language, Braille, large print) |

| Communication - Autism | | |
|---|---|--|
| Ministry Definition | As Determined By | |
| A severe learning disorder that is characterized by: disturbances in: rate of educational development; ability to relate to the environment; mobility; perception, speech and language. lack of the representative symbolic behaviour that precedes language. | classroom documentation demonstrating that the student is not able to focus and/or maintain attention to activities or tasks and has difficulty making transitions; educational assessment indicating learning strengths and needs that demonstrate difficulty with verbal and non-verbal communication and social interactive skills; professional assessment with diagnosis by a regulated, qualified practitioner indicating a diagnosis of autistic or other pervasive developmental disorder; psychological assessment to determine cognitive abilities; language assessment when appropriate. | |

| Communication - Deaf and Hard of Hearing | | | |
|---|---|--|--|
| Ministry Definition | Observables | As Determined By | |
| An impairment characterized by deficits in language and speech development because of diminished or non-existent auditory response to sound. | Deaf and hard-of-hearing students have varying degrees of hearing loss. The degree of hearing loss may result in the need to develop alternative methods of communication. Varying degrees of hearing may make it difficult to acquire spoken language through the auditory channel alone and may necessitate the use of additional support. Students may demonstrate needs in the following areas: articulation – speech clarity; expressive language; conversational skills – writing, spelling; Receptive language (listening and reading); Social-emotional development and interpersonal skills. Possible Observable Characteristics: miss key and subtle words in conversations; have some degree of language delay; follow rather than lead; have a limited vocabulary; lack understanding of colloquialisms, idioms, slang expressions, multiple meanings of words, language-based humor (puns and riddles); be more comfortable setting the topic and controlling the conversation; have difficulty hearing noise or from a distance; turn head towards the speaker or sound source; have a greference for a visual tactile learning environment or strategies; use gestures or sign language. Possible Social/Emotional Implications: language delay may lead to a limited ability to express feelings and needs; may be or appear to be socially immature or naïve; may be or appear to be socially immature or naïve; may display limited skills for making friends; may need to work on developing pragmatic skills to enhance communication effectiveness; may be the last to answer in class and slow to respond; the use of hearing aids or FM may lead pers and adults to assume the student is a less competent learner; may be comfortsted or isolated which sometimes leads to misbehaviour; | classroom documentation indicating difficulty accessing the curriculum without accommodation or modification of program, and indicating academic, social, or emotional difficulties directly related to hearing impairment; professional assessment by a regulated, qualified practitioner indicating a hearing loss within the mild to profound range; speech and language assessment when deemed appropriate; need for amplification (hearing aids and FM system); need for program modifications related to hearing impairment. | |

(e.g. FM system, itinerant support, etc.)may prefer the company of other deaf or hard-of-hearing peers.

| | Communication - Language Im | pairment | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Ministry Defin A learning disorder characterized by comprehension and/or use of verbar written or other symbol system of c may be associated with neurologica or sensory factors, and which may: • involve one or more of the form, language in communication and; • include one or more of the follow - language delay; - dysfluency; - voice and articulation develow may not be organically or fur | an impairment in l communication or the ommunication, which l, psychological, physical, content, and function of ing: classroom documen and/or written langu educational assessm achievement; professional assessn receptive and express with communicatior psychological assess appropriate; need for program m | As Determined By classroom documentation indicating academic difficulties with oral and/or written language; educational assessment to determine the level of academic achievement; professional assessment by a regulated, qualified practitioner outlining receptive and expressive language levels which significantly interfere with communication and academic achievement; psychological assessment to establish cognitive levels when deemed | |
| | Communication - Speech Impair | ment | |
| A disorder in language formulation which may be associated with neurological, psychological, physical, or sensory factors that involves perceptual motor aspects of transmitting oral messages; and that may be characterized by impairment in articulation, rhythm, and stress. | unable to form, blend, and pronounce words; has a harsh, husky voice or a nasal twang; speaks too softly or too loudly; substitutes and adds or omits sounds; speech patterns are broken by stuttering; may struggle and avoid speaking when he or suncomfortable; may not understand the structure of gramma relationship between sound and symbol; understands what is being said but refuses to has difficulty in naming things; may drop word endings; | determine the level of academic achievement; professional assessment by a regulated, qualified practitioner indicating an impairment in speech production which significantly interferes with the student's communication and academic | |
| | has an abnormal rhythm or rate of speech. Intellectual - Gifted | | |
| Ministry Definition An unusually advanced degree of general intellectual ability that requires differentiated learning experiences of a depth and breadth beyond those normally provided in the regular school program to satisfy the level of educational potential indicated. | Observables often has an unusually advanced vocabulary; may have a great fund of knowledge about a vatopics or of one specific area; has quick recall of factual information; can readily see relationships, make generalizat transfer knowledge from one area to another; may be easily bored with routine tasks; may prefer to work independently, without teadirection; may be self-assertive or even stubborn when cathe correctness of his or her argument; leadership ability and self-confidence may enal to dominate groups; creativity may be shown in questions asked, ab connect ideas, problem solve; may display a particular area of talent (e.g. art, athletic ability); behaviour problems may develop which mask student's ability (e.g. may daydream or read ot during class); assignments and written work may be complete haphazard manner; student may withdraw from social interaction work be overly critical of others; may downplay his or her abilities or choose complete haphazard manner; | level in the core subject areas than students in the same grade placement; educational assessment demonstrating significantly higher levels of achievement in core subject areas; onvinced of demonstrates unique abilities, creativity and/or talent; psychological assessment indicating functioning that is at the 98th percentile, full scale, on a recently administered WISC (Canadian Norms). The use of other measures for primary aged students may be considered or the 99th percentile on either the verbal or performance scale on a recently administered WISC (Canadian Norms); need for program modifications that are differentiated; depth and | |

| Intellectual - Mild Intellectual Disability | | | |
|--|--|--|--|
| Ministry Definition | Ministry Definition Observables | | |
| A learning disorder characterized by: an ability to profit educationally within a regular class with the aid of considerable curriculum modification and supportive service; an inability to profit educationally within a regular classroom because of slow intellectual development; a potential for academic learning, independent social adjustment, and economic self-support. | may have a short attention span; has difficulty transferring a concept from one situation to another; has difficulty generalizing; avoids trying new things; academic achievement is below the level of their peers; uses socially inappropriate behaviour (e.g. showing off, withdrawing); may have low frustration tolerance; has difficulty competing with peers (i.e. some may give up and some may work very hard producing good results); has poor retention; has poor verbal skills; work habits and study skills may be lacking; physical skills and coordination may be below class level; slower rate of learning, acquiring new skills/knowledge. | educational assessment indicating achievement in core subjects will be 2 or 3 grade levels below that expected based on chronological age; psychological assessment indicates functioning in the mild to borderline (2nd to 8th percentile) intellectual range as measured on the latest version of the WISC; student would have a modified program based on the Ontario Curriculum, have access to additional support in the classroom or require a small class setting for parts of the day; behaviour is not the key focus for these students. | |

| Intellectual - Developmental Disability | | | | |
|--|---|---|--|--|
| Ministry Definition | Observables | As Determined By | | |
| A severe learning disorder characterized by: an inability to profit from a Special Education program for students with mild intellectual disabilities because of slow intellectual development; an ability to profit from a Special Education program that is designed to accommodate slow intellectual development; a limited potential for academic learning, independent social adjustment, and economic self-support. | lacks physical coordination and spatial awareness; has difficulty following directions; may have limited social skills as a result of an overprotective or institutional environment; likes repetition of simple tasks; may not have developed self-care skills (i.e. unable to deal with basic needs); has difficulty using public transit; has an intellectual functioning level below his or her peers; has poor academic skills; may use socially unacceptable behaviours such as indiscriminate affection and responsiveness; unable to compete with his or her peers in an academic or vocational setting; may not cope well with any degree of pressure; health problems requiring medication, medical supervision and diet restrictions may be present; inability to communicate or relate effectively; may have multiple handicaps. | educational assessment indicating academic achievement in core subjects will be less than half the grade level expectancy based on chronological age (if student is in Grade 6, academics will be at a mid-Grade 3 or lower); psychological assessment indicates functioning in the mild to severe (1st percentile and below) intellectual range as measured on the latest version of the WISC; an adaptive behaviour assessment indicating the child is functioning in 2 or more areas at the 1st percentile or below; program would focus on basic living skills, functional academics, and social adjustment. | | |

| Physical - Physical Disability | | | |
|---|--|---|--|
| Ministry Definition | Observables | As Determined By | |
| A condition of such severe physical limitation or deficiency as to require special assistance in learning situations to provide the opportunity for educational achievement equivalent to that of students without exceptionalities who are of the same age or developmental level. | may lack social/interpersonal skills (e.g. defensive or attention-seeking); has an irregular gait; tires easily; has poor muscular control (e.g. eating, handwriting); tends to drop and spill things; lacks stamina and physical strength; may often be absent; may be on medication; may require a means of physical support (e.g. cane, wheelchair, crutches, or braces). | professional assessment by a registered, qualified professional diagnosing a physical or orthopedic condition requiring modifications and/or accommodations to the learning environment, learning activities, learning materials, support from specialized equipment and/or an educational assistant; modifications or accommodations needed related to the physical or orthopedic disability. | |

| Physical - Blind and Low Vision | | | | |
|--|--|---|--|--|
| Ministry Definition | Observables | As Determined By | | |
| A condition of partial or total impairment of sight or vision that even with correction affects educational performance adversely. | may or may not be aware of his or her vision is faulty; unable to distinguish movement; avoids bright lights; uncontrolled eye movements; squints or rubs his or her eyes; holds work too close or too far away; unable to see shapes; may close one eye or tilt head; walks carefully and slowly, seldom runs; does not pay attention to what he or she sees; lacks eye-hand coordination and fine motor skills; unable to integrate what he or she sees; does not learn through the visual mode; may be unable to distinguish colors and shapes; may or may not use enlarged print, Braille; eyes may be swollen and red-rimmed and may complain of frequent headaches. | Classroom documentation based on information obtained from the student, parent/guardian, and school personnel indicating academic, social, or emotional difficulties directly related to visual impairment; Professional assessment by a registered, qualified professional indicating a significant field loss or whose visual acuity is 20/70 or less after best correction; Program modifications or accommodations needed related to visual impairment. | | |

| Multiple | | |
|---|---|--|
| Ministry Definition | As Determined By | |
| A combination of learning or other disorders, impairments, or physical disabilities that is of such a nature as to require, for educational achievement, the services of one or more teachers holding qualifications in Special Education and the provision of support services appropriate for such disorders, impairments, or disabilities. | educational assessment to determine the level of academic achievement; meets the criteria for more than 2 of the categories of exceptionality as defined; professional assessment: documentation and assessments, as outlined in areas of defined exceptionalities that clearly confirm a level of diversity of student needs that would be most effectively addressed in an intensive support setting. | |

Provincial and Demonstration Schools in Ontario

The NCDSB is privileged to have active and ongoing partnerships with the Provincial Schools Branch.

Provincial and Demonstration Schools:

- are operated by the Ministry of Education;
- provide education for students who are deaf or blind, or who have severe learning disabilities;
- provide an alternative education option;
- serve as regional resource centers for students who are deaf, blind, or deaf-blind;
- provide pre-school home visiting services for students who are deaf, blind or deaf-blind;
- develop and provide learning materials and media for students who are deaf, blind, or deaf-blind;
- provide school board teachers with resource services;
- play a valuable role in teacher training.

Admittance to a provincial school is determined by the Provincial Admission Committee in accordance with the requirements set out in Ontario Regulation 296. Transportation to provincial schools for students is provided by school boards.

W. Ross MacDonald School: School for the Blind and Deaf-Blind

W. Ross MacDonald is located in Brantford and provides education for students who are blind, visually impaired, or deaf-blind. The school provides:

- ✓ a provincial resource centre for the visually impaired and deaf-blind;
- support to local school boards through consultation and the provision of special learning materials, such as Braille materials, audiotapes, and large-print textbooks;
- ✓ professional services and guidance to ministries of education on an interprovincial, cooperative basis.

Programs are tailored to the needs of the individual students and:

- ✔ are designed to help these students learn to live independently in a non-sheltered environment;
- ✓ are delivered by specially trained teachers;
- ✓ follow the Ontario curriculum developed for all students in the province;
- ✓ offer a full range of courses at the secondary level;
- offer courses in special subject areas such as music, broad-based technology, family studies, physical education, and mobility training;
- ✓ are individualized to offer a comprehensive "life skills" program;
- ✓ provide home visiting for parents and families of pre-school deaf-blind children to assist in preparing these children for future education.

Provincial Schools for the Deaf

The following provincial schools offer services for deaf and hard-of-hearing students:

- ✓ Sir James Whitney School for the Deaf in Belleville (serving eastern Ontario)
- ✓ Ernest C. Drury School for the Deaf in Milton (serving central and northern Ontario)
- ✔ Robarts School for the Deaf in London (serving western Ontario)
- ✔ Centre Jules-Léger in Ottawa (serving Francophone students and families throughout Ontario)

These schools provide elementary and secondary school programs for deaf students from preschool level to high school graduation. The curriculum follows the Ontario curriculum and parallels courses and programs provided in school boards. Each student has his or her special needs met as set out in his or her Individual Education Plan.

Schools for the deaf:

- ✓ provide rich and supportive bilingual/bicultural educational environments which facilitate students' language acquisition, learning, and social development through American Sign Language (ASL) and English;
- ✓ operate primarily as day schools;
- ✓ provide residential facilities five days per week for those students who do not live within a reasonable commuting distance from the school.

Each school has a Resource Services Department which provides:

- consultation and educational advice to parents of deaf and hard-of-hearing children and school board personnel;
- ✓ information brochures;
- ✓ a wide variety of workshops for parents, school boards, and other agencies;
- ✓ an extensive home-visiting program delivered to parents of deaf and hard-of-hearing preschool children by teachers trained in preschool and deaf education.

Provincial School Contacts

Teachers and parents may obtain additional information from the Resource Services Departments of the provincial schools and the groups listed below.

| Provincial Schools Branch Ministry of Education | School for the Blind and Deaf-Blind |
|--|-------------------------------------|
| Provincial Schools Branch | W. Ross MacDonald School |
| 255 Ontario Street South | 350 Brant Avenue |
| Milton, ON L9T 2M5 | Brantford, ON N3T 3J9 |
| Tel.: 905-878-2851 | Tel.: 519-759-0730 |
| Fax: 905-878-5405 | Fax: 519-759-4741 |
| Schools for the Deaf | Provincial Demonstration Schools |
| The Ernest C. Drury School for the | Amethyst School |
| Deaf | 1090 Highbury Avenue |
| 255 Ontario Street South | London, ON N5Y 4V9 |
| Milton, ON L9T 2M5 | Tel.: 519-453-4408 |
| Tel.: 905-878-2851 | Fax: 519-453-2160 |
| Fax: 905-878-1354 | |
| The Robarts School for the Deaf | Centre Jules-Léger |
| 1090 Highbury Avenue | 281 Lanark Street |
| London, ON N5Y 4V9 | Ottawa, ON K1Z 6R8 |
| Tel.: 519-453-4408 | Tel.: 613-761-9300 |
| Fax: 519-453-7943 | Fax: 613-761-9301 |
| Sir James Whitney School for the | Sagonaska School |
| Deaf | 350 Dundas Street West |
| 350 Dundas Street West | Belleville, ON K8P 1B2 |
| Belleville, ON K8P 1B2 | Tel.: 613-967-2830 |
| Tel.: 613-967-2823 | Fax: 613-967-2482 |
| Fax: 613-967-2857 | |
| | Trillium School |
| | 347 Ontario Street South |
| | Milton, ON L9T 3X9 |
| | Tel.: 905-878-8428 |
| | Fax: 905-878-7540 |

Exceptional Students Currently Attending Provincial and Demonstration Schools

The table below outlines the number of exceptional students from the Northeastern Catholic District School Board who are attending Provincial and Demonstration Schools.

| School | Number of Students In 2016-2017 | Number of Students In 2017-2018 | Number of Students In 2018-2019 | Number of Students In 2019-2020 | Number of Students In 2020-2021 |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Schools for the Deaf | | | | | |
| • E.C. Drury School - | 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| School for the Deaf | | | | | |
| The Robarts School | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Sir James Whitney School | 0 | 1 | 1 | 0 | 0 |
| Schools for the Blind and the Deaf-Blind • W. Ross Macdonald | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| School | • | Ŭ | Ŭ | • | 0 |
| Schools for the Blind, Deaf and Deaf-Blind | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Centre Jules-Léger | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Provincial Demonstration Schools | | | | | |
| Amethyst School | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Centre Jules-Léger | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Sagonaska School | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 |
| Trillium School | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |

Transportation To and From the Provincial and Demonstration Schools

Transportation to and from the Provincial and Demonstration Schools is provided for all exceptional students who attend these schools at no cost to their parents/guardians.

Students attending a Provincial and Demonstration School are transported by airplane every Sunday afternoon to Toronto or Trenton and return to Timmins by airplane every Friday afternoon. From the Provincial Schools (Belleville, Milton), the students are transported to the airport by bus through an escort service.

If a student lives in the Timmins area and parents do not have the means to transport their child to and from the airport, then the child is transported by taxi to and from his or her home. Students who live outside the Timmins area are transported by taxi to the Timmins airport (i.e. a child from Cochrane).

For safety reasons, an escort is provided by the transportation company that has been hired to arrange the weekly transportation to and from the schools. The escort accompanies the students from the school to the airport, as well as on the flight itself.

Once an exceptional student has been accepted into a Provincial or Demonstration School, the Special Assignment Teacher for Special Education contacts the parent/guardian to discuss arrangements for the student's transportation to and from the school.

Section Three: Other Related Information Required for Community

The Board's Consultation Process

COMMUNICATION AND FEEDBACK PROCESS

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board maintains open and ongoing communication with all of its internal and external stakeholders with respect to its Special Education programs and services.

The communication and feedback process is maintained by the board through:

- personal, one-to-one communication among parents/guardians, students and Special Education staff;
- presentations to school councils and school staff regarding Special Education programs and services;
- distribution of the Parent's Guide to the Identification, Placement and Review Committee, the Early Identification and Intervention Program, and pamphlets/brochures regarding specific areas of Special Education;
- Special Education Advisory Committee meetings which are open to the public;
- regular meetings with the superintendent or designate to discuss issues related to Special Education programs and services;
- regular meetings with board Special Education staff to discuss issues related to Special Education programs and services;
- meetings with community medical and social service professionals within all regions of the board to develop protocols and discuss issues as needed;
- school-based team meetings at each of the schools involving all educational assistants, child and youth workers, teachers and principals;
- focus group sessions for the resource teachers and principals of each school, in each of the three regions of the board;
- focus group sessions for the members of SEAC;
- in-servicing of resource teachers, child and youth workers, educational assistants and principals related to Special Education;
- the addition of a website medium to enhance communication with all stakeholders and community agencies.

No minority reports have been received concerning the Board's approved plan.

With the assistance of school principals, as well as direct communication with school councils, parents will be encouraged to provide input into the Board's Special Education Plan. Deadlines will appear on the Board's website along with a copy of the plan.

Feedback is received on a regular basis from principals, resource teachers, curriculum team members, Catholic school council forum, and used in planning for Special Education. Information gathered at IPRC meetings, case conferences and during school-based visits is also considered when revising the plan and the delivery of Special Education.

In the Spring of 2019, the NCDSB underwent an internal audit of its programs and services. Focus group discussions were held with the following groups:

- Classroom Teachers
- Resource Teachers
- Educational Assistants, Child and Youth Workers and Early Childhood Educators
- Principals
- Program Team Members
- Community Partners
- Parents (through a survey link)

A full report of the findings of this audit was shared with SEAC in the Fall of 2019.

Special Education Advisory Committee

In accordance with Ontario Regulation 464/97, the Special Education Advisory Committee of the Northeastern Catholic District School Board is involved in the annual review of the Board's Special Education Plan in the following ways:

- Participation in meetings to review draft procedural guidelines for various components of Special Education programs and services;
- Proposal of specific recommendations for Special Education programs and services to be included in the Special Education Plan;
- Examination and approval of the draft version of the Special Education Plan;
- Examination and approval of the final draft of the Special Education Plan.

ACTION 7 FOR 2021-2022

Ensure parents are aware of our SEAC membership and dates for our monthly meetings through posting of information on the board website by September 30th, 2021. Minutes of SEAC meetings will also be posted on a monthly basis. We will continue to explore additional community representatives on SEAC. In particular we are looking for representatives with connections to the ASD and LD communities.

Annual Report Summary from the Office of the Superintendent or Designate

The superintendent or designate provides monthly reports to the Special Education Advisory Committee to ensure regular and accurate communication regarding issues and activities relating to the student services department.

The Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC)

Selection Process

- Letters are submitted to agencies asking for representatives to become SEAC members. Representation is solicited for representation of the Indigenous population.
- The nomination for the chairperson and vice-chairperson is held at our first meeting. Nominations are open to all members.
- Information relating to the roles, responsibilities, programs and services are shared on a monthly basis with SEAC members.
- The SEAC members have access to the SEAC Information Program available online at <u>SEAC Learning</u>.

Names and Affiliations of Members

| SEAC MEMBERSHIP 2020-2021 | | |
|--------------------------------|--|--|
| Name | Agency | |
| Joel McCartney, Chair | Cochrane Temiskaming Resource Centre | |
| Billie Richer, Vice-Chair | VOICE for Hearing Impaired Children | |
| Mark Lionello or Designate | Canadian Mental Health Association | |
| Mackenzie Carrier | Community Living Timmins | |
| Ellen Renaud | North Eastern Ontario Family and Children's Services | |
| Heather Demers | The Lord's Kitchen | |
| Susan St.Denis | Cochrane Temiskaming Children's Treatment Centre | |
| Stephanie Fisher | Timmins Native Friendship Centre | |
| Stan Skalecki | NCDSB Trustee | |
| Ron McInnis | NCDSB Trustee | |
| Daphne Brumwell | NCDSB Superintendent of Education | |
| Catherine Hoven & Katie Mundle | NCDSB Special Assignment Teachers for Student Services | |
| Jean Ethier | NCDSB Education Services Officer / Recorder | |

SEAC Meetings

- SEAC meetings take place one per month during the school year, for a total of 10 meetings. The committee does not meet in July and August.
- Teleconferencing and/or videoconferencing is available to members outside of the Timmins area.
- Meetings take place on the third Wednesday of each month at 11:45 a.m. at the Catholic Education Centre, 383 Birch St. North, Timmins.
- There is a formal, written agenda for each meeting which is mailed electronically to every SEAC member within one week of the meeting date.
- The chair or vice-chair presides over the meeting.
- SEAC utilizes processes with respect to discussion, making of motions and voting that are consistent with those followed at meetings of the Board of Trustees.
- Minutes are taken by the Recording Secretary from the Office of the Superintendent of Education.
- Staff members who are in attendance at each SEAC meeting are as follows:
 - ✓ Superintendent of Education or designate
 - ✓ Special Assignment Teachers for Student Services
 - ✔ Education Services Officer Superintendent of Education

Roles and Responsibilities

- As specified in Ontario Regulation 464/97, the role of SEAC is to "...make recommendations to the board in respect of any matter affecting the establishment, development and delivery of Special Education programs and services for exceptional students of the board." [S11(1)] For example:
 - ✓ Recommendations to the Board for the delivery service
 - ✔ Participation of the annual review of the Special Education Plan
 - ✔ Participation in the development of the Board's annual budget for Special Education
 - ✔ Review of the financial statements of the Board related to Special Education
- A chair and vice-chair are selected from among SEAC members during the first meeting after being appointed by the Board.
- The chair presides at meetings. In the chair's absence, the vice-chair will preside. If neither the chair or vice-chair are present at the meeting, the members present must elect a chair for that meeting.
- Members are expected to attend all meetings and to vote on motions. When a member is unable to attend a meeting, the member notifies the alternate. The alternate attends the meeting and acts in the member's place.
- An orientation and in-service workshop will be provided for all new SEAC members and their alternates using the SEAC Learning website at <u>SEAC Learning</u>. The in-service will cover the roles and responsibilities of SEAC members and the provision of Special Education programs and services within the Board.
- Members are also invited to visit the elementary and secondary schools in their region.
- Parents and other members of the public can make their views known to SEAC by:
 - ✓ Contacting members directly using the list of members provided to each school;
 - Providing input through the School Councils. (This is an area that SEAC has addressed as a need and therefore further communication will be established with School Councils.)

SEAC Activities during the 2020-2021 School Year

| Month | Agenda Items |
|----------------|---|
| | Election of Chair and Vice-Chair |
| | Schedule of Meetings |
| | School Year Calendar |
| | Special Education Staffing Update |
| September 2020 | Return to School in a Pandemic:Implications for Students with Special Needs |
| | Update of the Summer Transition Program |
| | Speech and Language Services |
| | Specialized Classrooms - Update for 2020-2021 |
| | Agency Reports |
| | Mental Health Presentation: Kim McEntee |
| | Fall IPRC Reviews During a Pandemic |
| October 2020 | New Students/New IPRC Data |
| | Agency Reports |
| <u> </u> | Psychological Services 2020-2021 |
| | Virtual Program Presentation : Sean Robertson |
| November 2020 | Bishop Belleau School Update |
| November 2020 | November 6th PA Summary |
| | Agency Reports |
| | October 31st Data |
| | |
| January 2021 | Presentation on Virtual Learning at the Secondary Level:Lauri Ann Loreto Neal |
| | SIP/SEA Allocations for 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 |
| | Agency Reports |
| | Election of Vice Chair |
| February 2021 | Oral Language Screening and Intervention: A Presentation by John Stark |
| | Brigance K-1 Screen : Katie Mundle |
| | Agency Reports |
| | Virtual Child & Youth Worker Services Presentation: Amber Levesque |
| March 2021 | IEP Audit Results: Catherine Hoven |
| | Northern Support Initiative |
| | Agency Reports |
| | Update on Speech and Language Services |
| | Professional Learning Opportunities |
| April 2021 | Summer Programs |
| April 2021 | Educational Assistant Allocation Process for 2020-2021 |
| | Special Education Plan 2021- |
| | Agency Reports |
| | Special Education Plan 2021-2022 |
| | March 31, 2021 Special Education Data |
| lune 2021 | August Transition Program |
| June 2021 | Transition to PowerSchool |
| | • Specialized Programs for 2021-2022 |
| | Agency Reports |
| L | |

Early Identification Procedures and Intervention Strategies

Kindergarten Children with Special Education Needs

Children demonstrate a wide range of strengths and needs as they progress through the Kindergarten Years. Teachers and Registered Early Childhood Educators plan programs that recognize this developmental range and design learning experiences that respect the children's individual needs so that every child develops and learns. Integrated assessment and instruction that are suited to the characteristics of a diverse group of children but are also precisely tailored to the unique strengths and needs of each child can be achieved using the principles of Universal Design for Learning, differentiated instruction, and a tiered approach (Kindergarten Program, 2016).

In planning Kindergarten programs for children with special education needs, educators begin by examining both the program expectations and the individual child's strengths and learning needs to determine which of the following options is appropriate for the child:

- no accommodations or modified expectations;
- accommodations only (individualized teaching and assessment strategies, human supports, and/or individualized equipment)
- modified expectations, with the possibility of accommodations;
- alternative expectations, which are not derived from the program expectations.

While the majority of children adapt to the level of programming offered during the early school years, a minority shows evidence of learning difficulties that place them significantly behind their peers in key areas of communication and cognitive development.

If the child requires accommodations and/or modified or alternative expectations, the relevant information must be recorded in his or her Individual Education Plan (IEP). More detailed information about developing and implementing IEPs for children with special education needs can be found in *The Individual Education Plan (IEP): A Resource Guide, 2004* (referred to hereafter as the *IEP Resource Guide, 2004*). A detailed discussion of the Ministry's requirements for IEPs is provided in *Individual Education Plans: Standards for Development, Program Planning, and Implementation, 2000* (referred to hereafter as *IEP Standards, 2000*).

Children Requiring Accommodations Only

Providing accommodations to children with special education needs should be the first option considered in program planning. Accommodations allow the child with special education needs to access the program without any changes to the expectations. Many children with special education needs are able, with certain accommodations, to participate in the Kindergarten program and to demonstrate learning independently. The accommodations required to facilitate the child's learning must be identified in his or her IEP (*IEP Standards, 2000*, p. 11). A child's IEP is likely to reflect the same accommodations for many, or all, frames of learning.

There are three types of accommodations:

- Instructional accommodations are changes in teaching strategies, including styles of presentation, methods of organization, or use of technology and multimedia. Some examples include the use of large print, Braille, or sensory toys or equipment.
- **Environmental accommodations** are changes that the child may require in the classroom and/or school environment, such as special lighting, individual quiet space, or a visual schedule.
- **Assessment accommodations** are changes in assessment procedures that enable the child to demonstrate his or her learning, such as the use of speech-to-text software.

If a child requires "accommodations only" to support learning, the IEP box on the Kindergarten Communication of Learning: Initial Observations report and on the Kindergarten Communication of Learning report will **not** be checked. Reporting provided under Key Learning, Growth in Learning, and Next Steps in Learning in both reports will be based on the expectations in the Kindergarten Program Document.

Children Requiring Modified or Alternative Expectations

Modified expectations for most Kindergarten children with special education needs will be based on the Kindergarten program expectations, with changes in the number and/or complexity of the expectations. Modified expectations must represent specific, realistic, observable, and measurable learning, and must describe specific knowledge and/or skills that the child can demonstrate independently, given the appropriate assessment accommodations.

Modified expectations must indicate the knowledge and/or skills that the child is expected to demonstrate independently and that will be assessed in each reporting period (*IEP Standards, 2000*, pp. 10 and 11). Modified expectations should be expressed in such a way that the child and parents can understand not only the key learning the child is expected to demonstrate independently but also the basis on which his or her performance will be evaluated, resulting in comments that are recorded on the reports. The learning expectations for the child must be reviewed in relation to the child's progress at least once every reporting period, and must be updated as necessary (*IEP Standards, 2000*, p. 11).

If a child requires modified expectations, assessment and evaluation of his or her key learning will be based on the learning expectations identified in the IEP. On the Kindergarten Communication of Learning reports, the IEP box must be checked for any frame in which the child requires modified expectations, and the following statement must be inserted: *"Program expectations have been modified to meet the needs of the child."* The educators' comments should include relevant information on the key learning and on the child's demonstrated growth in learning related to the modified expectations, as well as next steps for the child's learning.

For the majority of children, alternative expectations would be additional to modified or regular Kindergarten program expectations. If a child requires alternative expectations, assessment and evaluation of his or her key learning will be based on the learning expectations identified in the IEP. In the Kindergarten Communication of Learning reports, the IEP box must be checked for any frame in which the child requires alternative expectations, and the following statement must be inserted: *"Key learning, growth in learning, and next steps in learning are based on alternative learning expectations in the IEP."*

Transition Plans for Children with Special Education Needs

For children with special education needs, transition planning is critical for a smooth and successful entry to school. A transition plan must be developed for a child who has an IEP, and may also be developed for a child who is receiving special education programs and/or services but does not have an IEP.

The transition plan should be responsive to the child's physical, emotional, and learning needs, and should be developed in collaboration with parents and members of the school's special education team, community agencies, and other professionals, as required, to determine the nature and extent of the transition support that the child requires. The plan must identify specific transition goals, the actions required to achieve the goals, the kind of support needed, roles and responsibilities, and timelines for the implementation and/or completion of each of the identified actions.

For further information about transition planning, see "Policy/Program Memorandum No. 156: Supporting Transitions for Students with Special Education Needs" (2013).

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION POLICY/PROGRAM MEMORANDUM NO. 11 (REVISED 1982) – EARLY IDENTIFICATION OF CHILDREN'S LEARNING NEEDS:

The Ministry of Education Policy/Program Memorandum No. 11 states that:

"Each school board is required to have approved and in operation by September 1981 procedures to identify each child's level of development, learning abilities and needs and to ensure that educational programs are designed to accommodate these needs and to facilitate each child's growth and development."

Guiding Principles of the Early Identification and Intervention Program:

- Language development is a major component of early identification.
- Teachers, in consultation with parents, must strive to know each child as soon, and as thoroughly as possible, in order to provide learning opportunities that will help each child.
- A variety of strategies are to be used to maintain an ongoing review of each child's emotional, social, intellectual, and physical development throughout the early years.

- Continuous assessment is to be done to help determine suitable programs for each child depending on learning strengths and needs. These programs are provided to the child in an environment where he or she feels secure.
- Assessment information is to be used to assist the child, and not as a predictor of long-term achievement.
- Classroom and resource teachers will work together to identify children with special needs and refer them to the appropriate agencies for further assessment and for appropriate services. They will also work together to use the expertise of these professionals to help assist with programming.

Specific Objectives of the Program:

- To help all children to reach their potential.
- To heighten educators' awareness of how children learn.
- To help make educators aware of each child's level of growth and development.
- To increase educators' effectiveness in assessing the strengths and needs of their students.
- To give educators a theoretical framework that will help them in setting learning goals from which learning experiences can be developed.
- To provide educators with programs, materials, and consultation necessary for the remediation of any areas of need identified by the screening procedures.
- To increase the likelihood of school success for children who are at risk through early identification.
- To identify children who need further diagnostic assessment and special instructional planning in order to increase the potential for success.
- To evaluate the screening process periodically to ensure that it is beneficial to the children and their educator teams.

Development in Early Learning

Children exhibiting signs of physical, cognitive, linguistic and/or social difficulties will benefit from a comprehensive system of observation and assessment. Compiling information on any or all of the following areas can help determine the area(s) on which intervention should focus.

- Background Information about Family, Early Development, Health, Language, Literacy, and Educational Experiences: A record of early developmental milestones will provide information about the rate of learning and any difficulties the child may have experienced.
- Hearing and Vision: Some physiological causes affect development. For example, a hearing impairment can interfere with language acquisition; a child with a visual impairment may be unable to interpret and interact with his or her environment appropriately.
- **Observations about Perception, Memory, Language, Thinking Skills, and Aptitudes:** These observations can help identify children experiencing difficulties in one or more areas of development.
- Listening Comprehension and Expressive Language: Observation of the child as he or she communicates with parents, teachers, and peers demonstrates his or her ability to comprehend single words, sentences, questions, and short stories. A child should be able to use words previously learned, express ideas in an organized way, manipulate the sounds that make words, and play rhyming games, as appropriate. Constraints associated with formal testing may be less evident during observation, revealing more of what a child knows or can express. This is a significant area of observation because other symbolic systems, such as reading, writing and mathematics are based largely on oral language.
- Awareness and Manipulation of Sounds in Words, Letter Names, and Picture Names: These are good predictors of the success any given child may have with early reading skills.
- **Writing Mechanics and Early Content:** A child's pencil grasp during the writing process, samples of drawings, invented spellings, and pretend messages can effectively supplement the results of more formal testing.
- Mathematics: Testing instruments assess a child's verbal, visual and cognitive skills through recognition of numerals and perception of quantitative and qualitative characteristics (more, less, bigger, similar, different). Additional observation is also valuable.
- **Reasoning:** A child's ability to sort, group, classify objects and attributes, solve problems, and understand cause and effect can be determined by the performance of various tasks and by careful observation.
- Social and Self-Help Skills and Use of Non-Verbal Communication: Children should demonstrate the progressive ability to put on articles of clothing, tie shoes, button buttons, select clothes that are appropriate for different activities and weather conditions, and feed themselves. As play progresses from sensory exploration and representational play, a child should learn to take turns. Observing the child perform tasks that require visual-spatial skills can be beneficial.
- Attention: Younger children may be expected to lack sustained attention and be overactive, while kindergarteners should develop the ability to remain on task for a sustained period. Observation can reveal problems in this area.
- Maturation: Parents can provide information about a child's ability to care for him or herself and for others. From this information, along with observation, a child's level of general independence can be determined.
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The early and ongoing identification process is a collaborative and inclusive process involving the home, school and community. When developing strategies for the individual learner, the process involves continuous observation, interpretation, planning and assessment.

Classroom Teacher:

- ✓ Use a variety of strategies to maintain a systematic and ongoing review of each child's emotional, social, intellectual and physical development
- ✔ View language development as a major component of early identification
- Ensure ongoing observation and assessment using board recommended tools which results in appropriate changes in the child's program
- ✔ Record results on the early identification tracking sheets found in the school-based assessment folder
- ✔ Involve parents in the consultation process and consult with them on a regular basis
- ✔ Accommodate various learning styles to enhance each child's self-concept and development
- ✔ Treat information from assessment as tentative, temporary and confidential
- ✔ Identify children with needs who require further assessment and record all information
- Recognize and provide support to children previously identified during their preschool year
- ✓ Collaborate with other school staff to ensure each child's needs are being met; refer to school-based team as needed
- ✔ Create, implement and monitor the Individual Education Plan as needed

Resource Teacher:

- Provide support to the classroom teacher in using a variety of strategies to maintain a systematic and ongoing review of each child's emotional, social, intellectual and physical development
- ✓ Administer additional assessments as required for students who may be at risk
- ✔ Involve parents in the consultation process and consult with them on a regular basis
- ✔ Accommodate various learning styles to enhance each child's self-concept and development
- ✓ Treat information from assessment as tentative, temporary and confidential
- ✓ Identify children with needs who require further assessment
- ✓ Record all information on the early identification tracking sheets found in the School-Based Assessment folder
- ✓ Support the classroom teacher in the creation, implementation and monitoring of the Individual Education Plan
- ✓ Liaise with community agencies to ensure adequate support is being provided to children previously identified during their preschool year

The Parent or Guardian:

- ✓ Provide the school with pertinent information in order to assist the school staff in meeting their child's needs
- ✓ Complete the "Early Years Information" form
- ✓ Provide consent to administer necessary assessments
- ✔ Become familiar with the school program and staff working with their child
- ✔ Encourage their child to share the daily activities of their classroom at the end of each school day
- ✔ Share observations and relevant data as the school year progresses
- ✓ Attend case conferences and other meetings related to special education programs and services
- ✔ Participate in parent-teacher conferences, portfolio nights and other relevant school activities
- ✓ Support their child at home (e.g. reading aloud, crafts, sharing time) and communicate any observations that would be helpful to school staff

The School Principal:

- ✔ Ensure staff is following the Early Identification Procedures as described in this plan
- ✓ Monitor the use of assessment tools and request the sharing of results as needed
- ✓ Ensure the Early Identification Tracking Sheet is completed annually by the teacher
- ✓ Attend school-based team meetings as required
- ✔ Ensure parents are involved in the consultation process and consult with them as needed

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board has adopted several observation, diagnostic and formal assessment tools to help classroom and resource teachers determine which students are at risk and require specialized interventions. A description and a list of these tools follows on page 40.

EARLY AND ONGOING IDENTIFICATION PROCEDURES

• School Registration:

- ✓ The early identification process begins in the winter prior to school entrance when the parent/guardian comes to the elementary school to register the child for Junior Kindergarten, Kindergarten, or in some cases, Grade 1.
- ✓ The parent/guardian completes the "School Registration Form". This form provides the school with basic demographic information about the child and his or her family.
- ✓ The parent/guardian is also asked to complete the "Early Years Information" form which will include information about the child's health history and general development. The school secretary or principal is available to help fill out the form if needed.

• Intake Process and Transition for Students with Special Education Needs:

The Ministry document entitled *Planning Entry to School* will be used as the primary reference resource for the development and delivery of an effective transition plan for students with special needs entering the NCDSB. Transitions from home to school, from one grade or level of schooling to another, from one school to another, and from school to work can be challenging for students with exceptionalities and their families. A coordinated plan must be developed as part of the learner's Individual Education Plan and implemented well before any anticipated move is initiated to ensure that the student has the support in place to assist in the transition. The Superintendent of Education works in conjunction with the Special Education team to review the required elements of the transition plan and ensure that a collaborative approach is employed. Each student case is discussed and reviewed as required, and relevant student information is shared with the appropriate team members and receiving facility to ensure maximum success of transitioning students.

• Observation of Students & Pedagogical Documentation:

The observation of a student is a collaborative effort of many individuals interacting with the student. It is the most significant tool one has for assessment and evaluation. The interpretation of these observations can help ensure that appropriate programs are planned and implemented for each student.

When making observations, the teacher must be cognizant of the developmental profile of the student. Both the developmental stages and the learning expectations must form the basis for observation. Observation is an integral part of the teaching process.

Observations should be made of the student's interaction in his or her environment, and his or her attitudes towards learning. In this way, the teacher has a better chance of discovering the special talents, strengths, interests, and needs of the student that may affect his or her progress towards becoming an autonomous learner.

The *Royal Commission on Learning* states that well-structured programs for young children must be based on careful observation and monitoring of individual progress (vol. 11, pg. 21). Therefore, observation must be deliberate. Teachers must have a plan for methodical observation. Good observation techniques have the following characteristics:

- regular and systematic
- > target a specific skill, attitude or behaviour
- reflect both process and product
- > accompanied by examples where appropriate
- comprehensive in a variety of settings (classroom, gym, recess, small group, large group, independent)
- formative over a period of time
- unobtrusive and not interfere with normal activities
- > cover all aspects of development: spiritual, cognitive, physical, social, and emotional
- objective and factual
- shared with parents/guardians and the student

Observations of students should be made for the following reasons:

- ✓ To help determine effective teaching strategies: Profitable, effective teaching strategies may be formed from observations.
- ✓ To confirm the validity of other information (such as assessment): Information gathered by teacher observation may at times be more valuable and valid than other information obtained by tests, formal assessments, or student records. Thus, the teacher, through observation, is capable of confirming (or disproving) test findings or other information obtained from other sources.
- ✓ To identify problems that can be solved or remediated through modification of classroom program: A student may need to adjust to a new teacher or adult with a personality different from that of the parent/guardian or previous teachers. Furthermore, a lack of understanding of directional/positional concepts, quantitative/numerical concepts and other prerequisite skills may cause a student much frustration and result in a learning problem.
- ✓ To identify students who should be referred to the school-based team: If a child is exhibiting behaviours that are affecting his or her learning, then referral to the School-based team may be necessary. A referral should be completed as soon as possible, since 30 days of observations is required (in most cases) before a meeting can take place.

The following observation techniques should be used regularly:

- anecdotal records
- collections of student work (portfolios)
- inventories (like reading or writing)
- questionnaires
- I diaries
- Checklists
- rating scales
- interviews/conferences
- discussions

Pedagogical Documentation

Pedagogical documentation is about more than recording events – it is a means to learning about how children think and learn. It offers a process to explore all of our questions about children. As suggested by Carlina Rinaldi, it is a way of listening to children, helping us to learn about children during the course of their experiences and to make this learning visible to others for interpretation. And, it encourages educators to be co-learners alongside both children and their families.

"Pedagogical documentation supports educators in both including child development in their view, but also looking beyond development to capture broader aspects of experience for reflection."

- Moving beyond simply an objective reporting of children's behaviour, pedagogical documentation helps to find meaning in what children do and what they experience. It is:
 - a way to value children's experiences and include their perspectives;
 - a way to make children's learning and understanding of the world around them visible to the children themselves;
 - a process for educators to co-plan with children and with families;

The Ministry of Education has numerous resources to support Early Learning. The following are recommended reading for all educator teams:

Ontario Early Years Policy Framework (2013) Ontario Early Years Policy Framework

- Education for All: The Report of the Expert Panel on Literacy and Numeracy Instruction for Students with Special Needs, Kindergarten to Grade 6 (2005) <u>Kindergarten Matters: Intentional Play-based Learning</u>
- The Kindergarten Program (2016) <u>The Kindergarten Program, 2016</u>
- Growing Success The Kindergarten Addendum (2016)
 <u>Growing Success The Kindergarten Addendum</u>
- Kindergarten Matters: Intentional Play-Based Learning <u>Kindergarten Matters: Intentional Play-based Learnina</u>
- Learning for All K-12
 Learning for All A Guide to Effective Assessment and Instruction for All Students, Kindergarten to Grade
 12, 2013
- Monographs: What Works: Research into Practice & Capacity Building Series Some of the Titles of interest Language and Literacy October 2011, Maximizing Student Mathematical Thinking in the Early Years (2011), Pedagogical Documentation (2012) and The Third Teacher (2012)

 Inspire: What Works? Research Into Practice

 Inspire: Capacity Building Series
- Planning Entry to School: A Resource Guide (2005) Planning Entry to School
- Principals Want to Know Tip Sheets: #15 Documenting in FDK Making Children's Learning Visible; #16 Supporting Strong Educator Teams for Full-Day Kindergarten; #17 Intentional Play-Based Learning
- How Does Learning Happen, Ontario's Pedagogy for the Early Years (mainly page 37-62) <u>https://www.edu.gov.on.ca/childcare/HowLearningHappens.pdf</u>
- Kindergarten GAINS <u>Kindergarten GAINS Video</u>

• Assessment Strategies

As part of the NCDSB Code Project (DELTA), board-wide implementation of the Binder of Assessment Tools (BAT) was first introduced to primary division teachers during the 2007-2008 school year. As part of the early identification process, the BAT has been designed to assist teachers in their understanding of student strengths & needs as they relate to literacy and numeracy skills. It is intended that this information would then be used to strategically design appropriate instructional and intervention programs. The BAT was revised over the 2014-2015 school year and was redistributed to schools for implementation September 2015. The assessment tools within the BAT include:

- Phonological Awareness
- Concepts About Print
- Oral Language
- Letter Identification
- ✓ Letter Sound Correspondence
- ✓ Word Knowledge/Word Features
- ✓ Reading Records
- ✓ All About Numbers for Year 1 and Year 2 FDK students

ACTION 8 FOR 2021-2022

Continue to monitor and support the use of the Brigance Screen III for Year 2 Kindergarten and Grade 1 students. Screening will take place in December 2021 with a follow up for students at risk in June 2022. Review the impact of data analysis of the Brigance to ensure it is providing us with the necessary information to better support our youngest learners. Provide training to teachers and ECEs in January 2022 so that they can implement appropriate interventions based on the results of the Brigance. Revise and implement the Early Identification Student Profile by June 2022.

DETERMINING IF A STUDENT IS AT RISK

The observation and assessment tools will provide the educator teams and resource teachers with a general understanding of each student's abilities in a wide variety of areas. The results are not to be viewed individually. Consideration of all the assessment data as well as anecdotal observations regarding the student's performance in the regular classroom are essential. This provides a more balanced understanding of the student's strengths and needs.

Each assessment tool has different cut-offs for determining if a student is at risk. The following **guidelines** should be used when analyzing results:

• Teacher School Readiness Inventory: The TSRI includes teacher ratings in the areas of attention and memory, verbal fluency, participation level, letter identification skills and printing skills. These areas have consistently demonstrated

strong relationships with children's later success in school. Children who score 13 or lower on the TSRI should be considered at risk.

- Brigance Early Childhood Screen III Kindergarten & Grade 1: The Brigance measures the areas of Physical Development, Language Development and Academic Skills/Cognitive Development (Literacy and Mathematics). A child who is 5 years, 0 months 5 years, 5 months must score at least 61 to be considered not at risk. A child 5 years 6 months 5 years, 11 months must score at least 70 to be considered not at risk. A child 6 years, 0 months 6 years, 5 months must score at least 68 to be considered not at risk. A child 6 years, 6 months 7 years, 6 months must score at least 86 to be considered not at risk.
- **Binder of Assessment Tools:** Students who score less than 50% on 7 of 10 of the literacy screens or less than 40% on the numeracy screen.
- Fountas & Pinnell Benchmark Assessment System/GB Plus: A student whose independent reading level is more than 1 grade below his or her age-appropriate level should be considered at risk.

Choosing Students for Intervention Programs

Once the results have been carefully analyzed and day-to-day observations are considered, the teacher, resource teacher and principal need to make a decision regarding the student's status in the program. A student's status must be determined to be one of the following and recorded annually on the "Early Identification Student Profile" form:

- ✓ NOT AT RISK: Results indicate that the student is not currently experiencing any major difficulties that might affect the rate of learning.
- ✓ MAY BE AT RISK: Results indicate that the student may experience some difficulties learning. The classroom teacher will monitor the student's progress over the term to determine if referral to the Diagnostic and Resource Team is required. This is considered the WAIT AND WATCH STAGE.
- ✓ AT RISK: Results clearly indicate that the student may experience social, emotional, intellectual, or academic difficulties. The student MUST BE REFERRED to the school-based team as soon as possible. Intervention is required.

The role of a school-based team, in relation to the Early Identification and Intervention Program is as follows:

- Review the results of the observations and assessments conducted on the student;
- Confirm the status of the student as being AT RISK (or WAIT AND WATCH);
- Recommend intervention program(s) based on assessment results and the student's strengths and needs, and determine who will be responsible for intervention program(s);
- Request creation of an intervention plan that will take the form of an Individual Education Plan and suggest possible modifications and/or accommodations to the regular classroom program;
- ✓ Determine if further assessment by school, board or community agency personnel is required;
- Explain the results of assessments and implications to the parent of the student;
- Obtain consent from the parent for intervention program(s);
- Monitor progress being made with the student on a term-by-term basis;
- Ensure tracking sheets are complete and stored in the OSR.

NCDSB EARLY IDENTIFICATION PROCESS

Revised September 2015



Reporting and Storing Results

All assessment results are stored in the student's school-based assessment folder. The *Early Years Student Summary* Form will be kept in the documentation file of the Ontario Student Record.

INTERVENTION FOR STUDENTS AT RISK

Intervention refers to curriculum modifications and/or supports that are designed to promote student success. These services are tailored to meet a student's individual needs and should build on a student's strengths. Intervention can take on many different forms and may look quite different from one student to the next.

Early Literacy Initiatives:

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board has adopted a comprehensive literacy framework. The following are recognized as supports for this framework.

- The NCDSB Reading/Writing Continuum: All teachers have access to a planning document that supports the connections that should be made between specific reading for meaning expectations (1.4-1.9) and the six forms of writing. This document provides valuable information about what forms, formats, expectations and prompts should be used within each teaching/learning cycle.
- Phonological Awareness Development: Each school has been provided with the Jolly Phonics program. This multi-sensory program provides the opportunity for children to work with blending and segmenting words using the 42 phonemes of the English language. Each phoneme has a corresponding action, sound and picture cue that is taught simultaneously. This program is to be introduced in FDK and integrated into the current reading program as required in subsequent grades. Other resources similar to Jolly Phonics can also be used at the school's discretion. In addition, each school has received a copy of the book entitled Phonemic Awareness: Playing with Sounds to Strengthen Beginning Reading Skills by Jo Fitzpatrick. This can be found in the FDK classroom or in the resource room. Teachers are expected to build explicit opportunities for students to develop phonological awareness into their comprehensive literacy program.
- Oral Language Development: Over the last few years, a significant amount of money has been invested in providing resources and professional learning to support oral language instruction in FDK and the early primary grades. Teachers are familiar with a number of strategies they can use to embed oral language instruction into their comprehensive literacy program. We have also explored more explicit opportunities for students to receive Tier 1 intervention at the classroom level as needed. Our contracted Speech Pathologist has been screening all Year 2 Kindergarten students in the fall of each year. These results are being used to identify students who would benefit from Tier 1 interventions, as well as further assessment. We are pleased to share that we had an Oral Language Intervention teacher at Pope Francis Elementary School in the 2019-2020 school year.
- Fountas & Pinnell Benchmark Assessment System/GB Plus: Fountas & Pinnell Benchmarks are an invaluable way to determine which strategies a student is using while reading in order to build reading skills while focusing on the student's strengths and needs.
- Lexia Reading Program: Lexia is a Web-based Reading Program that helps students work independently to develop their critical reading skills through individualized, motivating learning paths. All students, regardless of their skill level, can each work at their own pace and the teacher is notified (on web-based reports and via email) when they require support. Students have the opportunity to accelerate beyond their grade-level skills, as they are given the ability to demonstrate proficiency in each skill area, and are advanced to the next level in the program if no instruction is needed. For students in need of extra support, Lexia provides a level of scaffolding. If the student still struggles, the program provides explicit instruction on the concepts and rules of the skill, allowing the student to demonstrate proficiency and then return to the scaffolded level and standard-level activities. Personalized instruction ensures that students receive the appropriate intensity and support to acquire the skills they need to become proficient readers. Licenses have been purchased for each student in our school board from grade 1 through grade 8, and time is allocated each day for Lexia use.

Early Numeracy Initiatives:

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board has adopted a comprehensive numeracy framework. The following are recognized as supports for this framework:

• NCDSB All About Numbers: This tool has been designed and developed by teachers to support assessment of number concepts in FDK Year 1 & Year 2, Grade 1, Grade 2, Grade 3, Grade 4, Grade 5 and Intermediate (based on Grade 7 Expectations). Once teachers have used the assessment, they can follow up with providing whole-class or small-group interventions using the Intervention Guide that has been created to support this tool.

• NCDSB Show What You Know in Mental Math: This tool has been designed and developed by teachers to support assessment of mental math strategies from Grade 1 to 8. This is one way teachers can see how students are internalizing the mental math strategies that are being taught for each operation.

Specific Intervention Programs:

- Fountas & Pinnell Leveled Literacy Intervention: All schools are currently using the LLI in order to address the needs of students who have experienced difficulty learning to read and write from Kindergarten to Grade 8. LLI has been proven to be very effective in accelerating student learning and close achievement gaps for students within 10 to 20 weeks. Many students who have participated in an LLI intervention are withdrawn from the program after they met grade level ranges of reading achievement.
- Violence Prevention and Empathy Training Programs: Programs such as Second Step, Roots of Empathy and Be Cool
 are violence prevention curriculum. The goal of these programs is to build problem-solving and social skills, and to
 develop anger management skills to help children get along with others.
- Empower Reading Program: Empower Reading is an explicit intervention designed by Sick Kids to support phonemic awareness for students with significant deficits in decoding. This program now operates in 5 of our schools with the largest number of at-risk and/or students with learning disabilities. We plan to expand the program to include the comprehension module at two schools in the 2020-2021 school year.

ACTION 9 FOR 2021-2022

Explore the use of the Empower Comprehension module for Gr. 2-5 at Sacred Heart School and Pope Francis Elementary School. We would like to include a group of indigenous students to see the impact of the program on our students who have significant language deficits.

• Tier 2 Intervention for Mathematics: All resource teachers are now providing at least one period a day of numeracy-based interventions for at-risk students. Schools used a variety of different means of identifying which students would receive this support, but all were required to track progress over time using one of the formal assessment tools at their disposal. Two key resources have supported this work in many schools: *Leaps and Bounds & The Key Math Essential Resources Kit 1 & 2*.

Follow-up to Identification and Intervention

Students who are receiving intervention or who are on the WAIT & WATCH list must be monitored carefully by the classroom and resource teachers. Adjustments to the classroom or intervention program(s) are required when a student is not demonstrating the necessary growth. These adjustments must be tailored to meet the needs of each child. The degree and extent to which a program is adjusted will vary from child to child. For example, it may be necessary to modify the entire program or just one aspect of it. Modifications may be short term or ongoing. It may also be necessary to make accommodations such as the time required to complete tasks.

Modifications and Accommodations for At-Risk Students: The following are sample indicators of the need for program accommodations and modifications:

- The child has limited background experience and general knowledge;
- The child is experiencing learning difficulties in one or more areas of the program;
- ✓ The child is exhibiting behavioural difficulties;
- The child has difficulties attending;
- The child is having difficulties relating to/getting along with others;
- The child is overly shy or overly compliant;
- The child has a speech or language difficulties;
- The child has a vision or hearing deficit;
- The child displays gross of fine motor difficulties;
- The child's first language is other than English.

Students who demonstrate any of the above characteristics will likely require some general modifications and accommodations to the regular classroom program in order to experience success. Therefore, it is the responsibility of the classroom teacher, in conjunction with the resource teacher and the parent, to decide if an Individual Education Plan (IEP) would be in the child's best interest, and what should be included to ensure the student's needs are being met.

In the primary division, the Individual Education Plan may consist of only a few pages that outline the specialized intervention programs and/or strategies being used with the student. The goals should be tailored specifically to the needs identified throughout the assessment process and must be linked as closely as possible to Ontario Curriculum expectations when possible. See section 5.3 for strategies that can be used to help develop skills in weak areas.

In the junior and intermediate divisions, the Individual Education Plan will likely be significantly longer. The reason for this is that accommodations and/or modifications may be required in most subject areas.

Beginning in September 2016, we have been advocating for accommodations only to be provided to students with learning disabilities, particularly in the area of mathematics. The reason for this is that we understand the limitations we are placing on students who have modified math programs as they move up through the grades. Those students who have had a modified math program in elementary school are not likely to be allowed to take an applied or academic math course in high school. This significantly reduces any student's career opportunities.

ACTION 10 FOR 2021-2022

Continue to monitor the modifications being made to math programs for students with learning disabilities. Provide greater support to RTs and Classroom Teachers to identify gaps in student learning and opportunities for intervention. Support the use of the York Region suggested accommodations by psychological process and the York Waterfall to help teachers meet the needs of LD students in math.

Build capacity around math content knowledge and math pedagogy with resource teachers and principals to support their work in math intervention. This will be particularly important given the potential gaps created during the COVID 19 Pandemic.

IEPs should not contain too many expectations in any one term so that the teacher is able to provide the instruction required to meet these goals. This will help the student meet with success. **Individual Education Plans must be reviewed each term and a copy sent home to parents.**

Modifications and Accommodations for Students Who Perform Beyond Grade Level Curriculum Expectations:

Program accommodations and modifications may also be required for the child who performs beyond grade level curriculum expectations in one or more areas and displays some of the following characteristics:

- ✓ The child is socially adept and demonstrates maturity in interpersonal relationships;
- ✔ The child displays acute curiosity and is rarely satisfied with superficial explorations;
- ✓ The child learns rapidly and easily with very little repetition;
- ✓ The child becomes engrossed in a single activity for an extended period of time and requires little or no direction;
- ✓ The child has learned to read early and possesses a sound understanding of the nuances of language;
- ✓ The child has an understanding of skills and concepts not formally taught;
- ✓ The child is able to deal with abstractions (e.g. time, cause, and effect) better than age peers;
- ✓ The child demonstrates advanced physical skill development.

Reviewing Student Status

The school-based team is responsible for reviewing a student's status in the Early and Ongoing Identification and Intervention Program. When a classroom or resource teacher feels a meeting is necessary to discuss a student's progress, the team must set up a meeting as soon as possible. It is strongly suggested that the parent be included in this meeting.

A student who has demonstrated that he or she is able to cope with the grade-level curriculum relatively independently may no longer require accommodations, modifications or intervention strategies currently in place. This improvement needs to be demonstrated both through classroom observation and in formal assessment. The school-based team will make a decision about discontinuing any student who demonstrates the required growth. Nonetheless, it is suggested that the student's progress for the next couple of terms be closely monitored to ensure that difficulties do not resurface. Close communication between the classroom teacher, the resource teachers, and the parent is required.

ACTION 11 FOR 2021-2022

Continue to support schools in implementing the School-Based Team model. The purpose of these meetings is to provide an opportunity for school staff to discuss the needs of students by sharing ideas about how to better support the student, and collaborate to create an action plan to support the student moving forward. A follow up is required to ensure that actions have been taken and to discuss their effectiveness.

Educational and Other Assessments

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board believes the purpose of educational assessment is to improve student learning and the instructional program. Therefore, assessment must be part of a continuous process from diagnosis to specific program suggestions to evaluation. This on-going assessment will include a variety of strategies such as observation, informal tests and formal testing.

When the School-Based team recommends further testing such as psychological or psychometric testing, consent is obtained from the parent/guardian (Ref. PPM#59 - Psychological Testing and Assessment of Pupils October 1982). At times more in-depth and comprehensive assessments may result in a wide range of recommendations to which parents and educators have a shared responsibility to review and determine next steps. Assessments may result in recommendations that are the responsibility of the parent/guardian.

During 2020-2021, the NCDSB contracted approximately 37 psycho-educational assessments across the elementary and secondary panels. In determining priority, factors considered include the degree to which students are struggling academically or socially, special class placement, change in program placement and other cases as per need. This number is less than some school years due to the interruption of school because of the Covid 19 pandemic. In addition, individual student applications to Jordan's Principle secured assessment funding for eight additional psychological assessments of Indigenous students and to date 3 of these have been completed.

In those cases where information is to be shared with individuals not authorized through the Education Act or OSR guidelines to receive such information, prior consent is obtained from the parent or guardian, or from the pupil if over 16.

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board purchases the services of local psychologists when psychological and psychometric assessments are required. We have also begun a process whereby our Special Assignment Teacher for Special Education has been learning to administer the WISC-III alongside our contracted psychologist. We are in phase two of this project; as such she is now doing many assessments on her own with our contracted psychologist simply reviewing her results and signing off on her reports. This has proven to be a very cost-effective and more personalized approach for our students.

| Assessments | Management of Waiting List |
|--|---|
| Informal Educational | According to severity/needs (e.g., provision of specialized support, information for the IPRC process); generally done at the school level after permission is obtained from parents. |
| Speech & Language Pathology | SLP Service Delivery Model Prioritization of service based on chronological order of wait with the following exceptions: medically fragile, groups, programming needs. |
| Occupational Therapist | Referral to community agency. |
| Physiotherapist | Referral to community agency. |
| Psychological and Psychoeducational (contracted) | Prioritization based on need and severity, along with the following factors: the degree to which students are struggling academically or socially, special class placement, provision of specialized support, change in placement, post-secondary transition. |

As per Ministry of Health legislation communication of a diagnosis is done by a qualified professional such as a psychiatrist, psychologist, medical doctor or audiologist.

ACTION 13 FOR 2021-2022

Continue to work with our contracted SLP provider to ensure the provision of additional and more consistent therapy for students required language support, including at Bishop Belleau in Moosonee. This funding will come from the Northern Support Initiative and is done in collaboration with our co-terminus English school board.

Explore the possibility of completing hearing and vision screens on all FDK students.

| Category of Assessment | Name of Test | Who does the assessment | Qualifications of Assessor | Frequency of Assessment |
|-------------------------------------|---|---------------------------------|--|---|
| District wide | Benchmark Assessment System/GB+ | Classroom teacher | ост | Year 2 FDK – Grade 8 English and French Immersion Programs |
| | Teacher School Readiness Inventory | Classroom Teacher | ост | FDK Year 1, Year 2, Grade 1 |
| | Ontario Writing Assessment | Classroom teacher | ост | As per Teacher Professional Judgment; Gr. 1-8 |
| | Ontario Comprehension Assessment | Classroom teacher | ост | As per Teacher Professional Judgment; Gr. 1-8 |
| | Ontario Numeracy Assessment Package | Classroom teacher | ост | As per Teacher Professional Judgment; Gr. 1-8 |
| | NCDSB Binder of Assessment Tools (BAT) | Classroom teacher | ост | As per Teacher Professional Judgment; FDK-Gr. 4 |
| | Mathematics Gap Closing Resources | Classroom teacher | ост | As per Teacher Professional Judgment; Gr. 4-8 |
| | NCDSB All About Numbers | Classroom Teacher | ост | As per Teacher Professional Judgment; FDK Year 1, Year 2, Grade 1, Grade 2, Junior & Intermediate |
| | NCDSB Show What You Know in Mental Math | Classroom Teacher | ост | As per Teacher Professional Judgment; All elementary grades |
| Individual Standardized Tests | WISC IV | Psychologist & Psychometrist | M.A. / Doctorate Directly or in a Supervisory Role | As required |
| | TAPS | Resource Teacher | Spec Educ Specialist, Spec Ed 2 | As required |

| TVPS | Resource Teacher | Spec Educ Specialist, Spec Ed 2 | As required |
|--|-----------------------------------|---|---|
| Peabody Picture Vocabulary Test | Resource Teacher | Spec Educ Specialist, Spec Ed 2 | As required |
| Key Math 3 | Resource Teacher | Spec Ed Specialist, Spec Ed 2 | As required |
| Brigance Early Childhood Screen III Kindergarten & Grade 1 | Resource Teacher | Spec Ed Specialist, Spec Ed 2 | December for all Year 2 FDK and Gr. 1 Students; Repeated with those at risk in June |
| WIAT-III | Resource Teacher Psychometrist | Spec Educ Specialist/Spec Ed 2/M.A./ Doctorate | As required |

Coordination of Services with Other Ministries or Agencies

The Board, in conjunction with several of the local agencies, have developed procedures to facilitate the entry to children with Special Education needs from preschool programs, from care, treatment and correctional programs and from Special Education programs offered by other boards of education. The Board has also developed procedures for the transfer of exceptional students to care, treatment and correctional programs and to programs offered by other school boards.

STUDENTS ENTERING THE BOARD

• Preschool Nursery Programs and Daycare Centres

The entry process for children who have been identified as having Special Education needs prior to school registration is a cooperative endeavour between the family, the school and the superintendent or designate. At the time of registration, the school principal will begin to arrange an in-take meeting with the parents of the child, the nursery school or daycare, and any of the outside agencies that might be involved with the student. The purpose of the in-take meeting is to gather as much information as possible about the child in order to ensure a smooth transition to school. Should intensive support be required, the initial leg work is started. This allows an educational assistant and any specialized equipment that might be needed to be arranged before the beginning of the school year.

• Preschool Speech and Language Programs

A transition plan has been developed between the local school boards and the Porcupine and Timiskaming Region Health Units to ensure that the transition between preschool speech and language services and school services are in place. For students who have been receiving speech services from the Porcupine or Timiskaming Health Unit, the service is transitioned, if needed, to the Community Care Access Centre. For students who have been receiving language services from the Porcupine Health Unit, the service is transitioned, if needed, to our Board.

• Intensive Early Intervention Program for Children with Autism

Children who are involved with the intensive early intervention program for children with autism may enter Junior and Senior Kindergarten while they are involved with the program. Most parents opt to have the child attend school only half a day so that the intervention program can continue the other half of the day.

It is the responsibility of the parent to notify the school of the child's participation in this program at the time of school registration. Steps can then be taken to arrange an in-take meeting with the appropriate outside agencies to ensure a smooth transition to school. With informed, written consent from the parent/guardian, the agencies involved with the student can share assessments from community educational, medical and social service professionals.

When a student completes the intensive early intervention program, a transition meeting is scheduled at the school where the parent/guardian, the student's therapist, the resource teacher and other school personnel make any changes necessary to the student's Individual Education Plan.

• School-Based Services Program for Autism

We continue to employ our own Autism and Behaviour Support Specialists (initial hiring of the first one in the Fall of 2010; 2nd position added in the Fall of 2018). In addition to this in-house service, we have also been maximizing supports provided through *Hands* in North Bay and through *NEOFACS* and their Autism Assessment Team. Sadly these two programs will be discontinued under the new Ontario Autism Program.

Further to these important partnerships, the NCDSB continues to maximize the services offered through the school support program and training opportunities facilitated by the Geneva Centre for Autism. With the recruitment of an ABA expert, as per ministry funding and in accordance with PPM 140, our staff and students are benefiting from this developed service. We remain committed to providing the necessary skills and training to our staff to better support the needs of our students diagnosed with an autism spectrum disorder. In the 2016-2017 school year, 6 Educational Assistants, 1 ECE and 8 CYWs completed the 20 Hour ABA Certificate Course; 3 Educational Assistants completed the 8 hour Introduction to ABA Course and 1 EA and 4 Early Childhood Educators completed the 8 hour Inquiry and Play-Based Learning Using ABA Course. In the 2017-2018 school year, 12 Educational Assistants and 3 Child and Youth Workers completed the 40 hour Registered Behaviour Technician course through the Geneva Center. In 2018-2019, an additional 6 Educational Assistants and 9 Child & Youth Workers completed the 40 hour Registered Behaviour Technician course through the Geneva Center. In 2018-2019, an additional 6 Educational Assistants and 9 Child & Youth Workers completed the 40 hour Registered Behaviour Technician course through the Geneva Center. In 2018-2019, an additional 6 Educational Assistants and 9 Child & Youth Workers completed the 40 hour Registered Behaviour Technician course through the Geneva Center. This was part of the ASD Pilot. These courses have been very well received and have supported all staff in meeting the needs of students with autism more effectively.

Under the Northern Support Initiative, we have engaged Dr. Stephane Beaulne to provide extensive professional learning related to self-regulation in the early years. This has included large group learning sessions for FDK teams, classroom teachers of students in Grades 1 and 2, and school principals. It has also included in-vivo coaching.

Finally, the ASD Pilot has also allowed us to hire a Behaviour Analyst. This position is providing an additional layer of support to students with autism and their families.

• Care Treatment and Correctional Facilities

Students who are involved in educational programs in care, treatment and correctional facilities require considerable support when making the transition back to their school. When the staff at the facility feels the student is ready to begin making the transition back to the school, the school is contacted and arrangements are made to hold a case conference. The parent/guardian, facility staff, school personnel and superintendent of designate attend the case conference. The purpose is to develop a transition plan for the student's return to school. Our School Mental Health Nurse would also play a role in the transition of such students.

• Programs Offered by Other Boards of Education

When a student transfers into the Northeastern Catholic District School Board from another school board where he/she has been involved in Special Education programs or services, the principal of the school which the student will be attending follows the same procedures used when any student transfers into the school. He/she will request the student's Ontario Student Record (OSR) and will generally call the principal of the child's last school to gather as much information as possible. The parent/guardian is provided with a copy of the Board's Special Education Guide to the IPRC process, and the process is explained. The parent/guardian would also be asked to sign a "Consent Form" to allow school board personnel to access other educational, medical or social service reports which may not be contained in the OSR.

If the student meets the criteria for identification as an exceptional student according to the Board's categories of exceptionalities and definitions, a request is sent by the school principal to the special assignment teacher for Special Education for an initial IPRC to be held. Once the IPRC is held, the student is placed in the appropriate Special Education program and an Individual Education Plan is developed or revised.

ACTION 14 FOR 2021-2022

Connect with the consultants from the Provincial Demonstration Schools to explore the possibility of supporting students new to the board with vision or hearing loss through their Pre-School services.

STUDENTS LEAVING THE BOARD

• Transfer to Another School Board

When a student transfers from the Northeastern Catholic District School Board to attend a school in another school board, information about the student is shared with the receiving school board following the procedures outlined in the *Ontario School Record (OSR) Guidelines 2000.* If the receiving board requests other information that is not contained within the OSR, the Board requires the receipt of a signed "Consent Form" from the parent/guardian prior to forwarding any additional information.

• Transfer to Care, Treatment or Correctional Facility

When a student transfers from the Northeastern Catholic District School Board to attend an educational program offered by a care, treatment or correctional facility, information about the student is shared with the principal of the educational program of the facility following the procedures outlined in the *Ontario School Record (OSR) Guidelines 2000*. Our School Mental Health Nurse would also play a role in the transition of such students. If the receiving board requests other information that is not contained within the OSR, the Board requires the receipt of a signed "Consent Form" from the parent/guardian prior to forwarding any additional information.

Specialized Health Support Services in School Settings

Legislative Background:

- Policy/Program Memorandum No. 81 Provision of Health Support Services in School Settings was issued by the Ministry of Education in 1984. It describes the nature of health services that would be provided in school settings and by whom these services would be provided.
- In 1996, the *Long Term Care Reform Act* was passed which means that the services being provided under the Home Care Program are now being provided by NELHIN (Northeast Local Health Integration Network).

Specialized Health Support Services: The board, in conjunction with the North East Local Health Integration Network (NELHIN) and other agencies provide the following specialized health support services for students who require them in school settings:

- ✓ administering prescribed medications;
- ✓ administering prescribed oxygen;
- ✓ assistance with mobility;
- ✓ catheterization;
- ✓ feeding;
- lifting and positioning;
- ✓ nursing;
- ✓ nutrition;
- occupational therapy;
- ✓ physiotherapy;
- ✓ speech and language therapy;
- ✓ speech correction and remediation;
- ✓ suctioning;
- ✓ toileting

The table on the next page provides a summary of the following:

- ✓ type of specialized health support services;
- ✓ providers of each service;
- ✓ eligibility criteria for students to receive the service;
- ✓ position of person who determines eligibility to receive the service and the level of service;
- ✓ criteria for determining when the service is no longer required;
- ✓ procedures for resolving disputes about eligibility and level of support

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board has established the *Protocol for Partnerships with External Agencies* as per PPM 149

| Specialized Health Support Services | Agency or Position of Person who Performs the Service | Eligibility Criteria for Students to Receive the Service | Position of Person who Determines Eligibility to Receive the Service and the Level of Support | Criteria for Determining When the Service is No Longer Required | Procedures for Resolving Disputes About Eligibility and Level of Support |
|---|---|--|---|---|--|
| Administering Prescribed Medication | Principal | Medical assessment indicating that prescribed medication must be administered during school hours Informed, written consent of parent/guardian or adult student | School principal | Medical assessment that the prescribed medication no longer needs to be administered during school hours OR parent/guardian assumes responsibility | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator |
| Administering Prescribed Oxygen | Board staff (EA) | Medical assessment indicating that prescribed oxygen must be administered during school hours Informed, written consent of parent/guardian or adult student | School principal NELHIN case worker | Medical assessment indicating that the prescribed oxygen no longer needs to be administered during school hours OR parent/guardian assumes responsibility | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator |
| Assistance with Mobility | Board staff (EA) | Medical assessment indicating need for assistance with mobility Informed, written consent of parent/guardian or adult student | School principal | Medical assessment indicating assistance with mobility no longer required OR parent/guardian assumes responsibility | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator |
| Catheterization Clean Intermittent | Student Board staff (EA)/ NELHIN Nurse | Medical assessment indicating that catheterization must be done during school hours Informed, written consent of parent/guardian or adult student | School principal NELHIN case manager | Medical assessment indicating that catheterization no longer required during school hours OR parent/guardian assumes responsibility | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator |
| Physiotherapy | NELHIN Physiotherapist Board staff (EA) | Medical assessment indicating that physiotherapy is required during school hours Informed, written consent of parent/guardian or adult student | School principal NELHIN case manager | Medical assessment indicating that physiotherapy no longer required during school hours OR parent/guardian assumes responsibility | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator |
| Speech and Language Therapy | NELHIN Speech and Language Pathologist | Speech and Language assessment indicating that speech and/or language therapy is required during school hours | School principal NELHIN case manager | Medical assessment that speech and/or language therapy no longer needs to be administered during school hours OR parent/guardian assumes responsibility | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator |

| Specialized Health Support Services | Agency or Position of Person who Performs the Service | Eligibility Criteria for Students to Receive the Service | Position of Person who Determines Eligibility to Receive the Service and the Level of Support | Criteria for Determining When the Service is No Longer Required | Procedures for Resolving Disputes About Eligibility and Level of Support | |
|--|---|--|---|--|--|--|
| Speech Correction and Remediation | Board Staff (EA/RT) Speech and Language Pathologist | Speech and Language Assessment indicating that speech correction and/or remediation is required during school hours Informed, written consent of parent/guardian or adult student | School principal Speech and Language Pathologist | Speech and Language assessment indicating that speech correction and/or remediation no longer required during school hours OR parent/guardian assumes responsibility | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator | |
| Suctioning Shallow Surface | Board staff (EA) | Medical assessment indicating that shallow surface suctioning must be provided during school hours Informed, written consent of parent/guardian or adult student | School principal NELHIN case manager | Medical assessment indicating that shallow surface suctioning no longer required during school hours OR parent/guardian assumes responsibility | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator | |
| Deep Suctioning or Drainage | NELHIN Nurse | Medical assessment indicating that deep suctioning and/or drainage must be provided during school hours Informed, written consent of parent/guardian or adult student | School principal NELHIN case manager | Medical assessment indicating that deep suctioning and/or drainage no longer required during school hours OR parent/guardian assumes responsibility | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator | |
| Toileting | Board staff (EA) | Medical assessment indicating that student requires assistance with toileting | School principal | Student demonstrates independent toileting skills | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator | |
| Catheterization Sterile Intermittent | NELHIN Nurse | Medical assessment indicating that sterile catheterization must be done during school hours Informed, written consent of parent/guardian | School principal NELHIN case manager | Medical assessment indicating that catheterization no longer required during school hours OR parent/guardian assumes responsibility | Superintendent or designate and/or superintendent may act as a mediator | |

Staff Development

Goal of Special Education Staff Development Plan

The goal of Special Education staff development is to ensure that all staff members are continuously updated regarding:

- Board's philosophy of Special Education, mission and statement of beliefs and their implications
- Current research on "best practice" in Special Education
- New legislation, policies and procedures of the Ministry of Education
- New policies and procedures of the Board
- Specialized programs or techniques to use with exceptional students

Ways in Which Staff Provide Input for the Plan

• Senior Administration, Principals, Classroom Teachers:

A Professional Development Committee composed of a team in accordance with Provincial Discussion Tables (PDT) requirements meets at least 4 times a year to plan staff development for administration, principals, and teachers. Professional development is provided during Professional Development Days, during staff meetings, and through voluntary after-school workshops.

The committee utilizes information from the Ministry of Education, especially as it relates to new legislation, policies and procedures, from recommendations made through the Special Education Advisory Committee, and from surveys sent to the teachers when determining the topics which will be addressed during the school year.

• Resource Teachers:

Resource teachers are surveyed each year to determine professional development needs for the year. In addition, information provided by the Ministry of Education regarding new initiatives, policies and procedures are considered. Professional development will occur at regular intervals based on need at resource teacher meetings and/or through job-embedded learning. Information from each teacher's Annual Learning Plan is also used to determine what learning might be needed.

• Educational Assistants:

A Professional Development Committee composed of staff members from the Human Resources Department, representatives from the support staff and members of the Canadian Union of Public Service Employees plan professional development activities for educational assistants. Educational Assistants had the opportunity to attend all seven professional activity days in 2019-2020; 3 of which required mandatory participation.

• Child and Youth Workers:

Under the leadership of our Supervisor of Mental Health, the Child and Youth Workers have been meeting once per term to discuss concerns, share ideas, strategies and information and plan specific professional development activities. They have also set up regular virtual sessions in between these face-to-face sessions. Over the last couple of school years, we have also extended an opportunity to our Child and Youth Workers to attend the same mandatory learning sessions the Educational Assistants participate in.

Though our preferred model is to support staff in a job-embedded, side-by-side coaching model, there are times when staff are invited to attend larger group workshops either centrally or by region. At times, principals will also request that his/her school engage in inquiry work using the Catholic Learning Community model.

When several professional development needs are determined, the Special Education Department, along with the Board's Curriculum Team and Professional Development Committee, consider the following factors in prioritizing the delivery of said professional development: Ministry-focused funding, Ministry training goals for any given year, needs resulting from school-based consultations, feedback from school principals and teachers, partnerships with our coterminous board (DSBONE), and the teacher federation.

In order to maximize funds for professional development, funding for training of resource teachers, child and youth workers and educational assistants is usually taken directly from the Special Education budget. Where possible, we also attempt to integrate the use of Education Program Other (EPO) funds to support our learning.

Ways in Which SEAC is Consulted About Staff Development

- SEAC is informed about upcoming staff development and has the opportunity to suggest staff development activities.
- Information is shared after staff development has occurred regarding the success of the endeavour.
- SEAC is provided with information regarding the professional development session when requested.
- SEAC is invited to attend professional development sessions.

Budget Allocation for Special Education

Each year a portion of the funds provided through the GSNs are used to support professional learning for teaching and support staff. We also endeavour to find opportunities through the Education Program Other (EPOs) to maximize learning opportunities. Professional learning plans are developed annually to address focus areas in Special Education using these funding allocations to support job-embedded learning.

Cost-Sharing with Ministries and Other Agencies

Professionals from outside agencies often extend invitations to staff development activities to our resource teachers, child and youth workers and educational assistants. In addition, Educational consultants from Sagonaska Demonstration School are always willing to provide staff development opportunities. Educational consultants from the Provincial Schools for the Deaf also offer information sessions to staff members upon request.

Ways in Which School Board Staff are Made Aware of the Board's Special Education Plan and Professional Development Activities

The Northeastern Catholic District School Board's Special Education Plan is available for viewing on the Board's website at <u>www.ncdsb.on.ca</u>. A copy is also available in each school. In addition, principals are requested to highlight the most pertinent areas of the Plan during one of the school's bi-monthly staff meetings. Upon request, the superintendent or designate is available to review the Plan with school staff.

- Throughout the 2020-2021 school year, the focus of professional learning for the Special Education staff included, but was not limited to:
 - IEP Audit- school-specific data shared and reviewed with Principals and RTs
 - Sagonaska Virtual Tour Day for Educators (Program, Application Process, Admission Criteria)
 - 5 Special Education PD Day options offered to school staff for PD Day "Teaching Students with LDs Online Engagement, Work Completion and Evaluation" (Webinar), "Helping Students with LDs Navigate Secondary School" (Learning Module), "Exploring Learning Disabilities, Cognitive Processes and Class Profiles" (Virtual-Through e-HUB), "High Leverage Practices" (Webinar) and Exploring Psychological Website cleape.com
 - Learning Sessions offered to NTIP participants based on areas of interest "Tiered Intervention Model" and "Executive Functioning"
 - Self-Regulation Strategies with Dr. Stephane Beaulne 2 virtual learning sessions for RTs, CYWs, SATs and the Autism and Behaviour Support Team
 - Lexia Reading Program training for all RTs
 - Virtual Learning Sessions with CTCTC Occupational Therapist Amy Forget for FDK Teams, Grade 1 Teachers, Essential Skills Teachers, RTs and select EAs - "Developmentally Appropriate Pencil Grasps and Scissor Skills" and Sensory-Based Difficulties
 - Sagonaska Virtual Workshops offered to RTs- "Learning Disabilities in the Classroom", "Linking Technology with the LD Learning Profile", "The Reading Journey and Students with LD" and "Students with LD and Math Class".

The Ministry of Education also offers sessions from time to time which the Board participates in. Other professional development opportunities do come up during the year and such opportunities are accessed by various staff.

For the last couple of years, we have also been working on the development of an on-line Special Education Community on our e-Hub. This area of the e-Hub is used to store all the necessary forms, policies and procedures related to Special Education programs and services. It also provides countless resources to staff on a wide variety of topics and is accessible to all Resource Teachers, Educational Assistants and Principals.

ACTION 15 FOR 2021-2022

1. Implement the use of the professional learning series at staff meetings or during other professional learning opportunities to help all teachers better understand the psychological processes and their impact on learning.

2. Continue to implement the LD Class Profiles that have been created. Build capacity with classroom teachers to better understand how to support students with an LD in the regular classroom.

Accessibility (AODA)

The Ministry of Education has established new funding opportunities via SEA per pupil amounts allowing greater flexibility with technology purchases as well as the claims-based process for all other purchases. In order for students with physical disabilities to fully participate in their educational programs, the school buildings must be physically accessible to them. In the Spring of each year, the superintendent or designate discusses the needs of students entering each school the following September with the school principal in order to ensure that the necessary arrangements are made for the child.

Physical Renovations and Accommodations

| YEAR | RENOVATION/ ACCOMMODATION | SCHOOL/ LOCATION | COST |
|---------------|--|---|-----------|
| 1999 | Elevator | St. Patrick School, Cobalt | \$80,000 |
| 2000 | Elevator | O'Gorman Intermediate Catholic School, Timmins | \$80,000 |
| 2001 | Automatic door actuator | O'Gorman High School, Timmins | \$20,000 |
| 2001 | Stair Tracker | St. Patrick School, Kapuskasing | \$7,000 |
| 2002 | Supports in washroom for accessibility | Holy Family School, Englehart | \$500 |
| 2003 | Painting of stairwells for visually-impaired child | St. Patrick School, Cobalt | \$200 |
| 2003 | Automatic door actuators | English Catholic Central School, New Liskeard Holy Family School, Englehart St. Paul School, Timmins | \$6,000 |
| 2003 | Ramp for access to tech room | O'Gorman Intermediate Catholic School, Timmins | \$2,000 |
| 2003 | Privacy doors to accessible washroom | Sacred Heart School, Kirkland Lake | \$500 |
| 2003 | Buzzer at front door | St. Patrick School, Cobalt | \$100 |
| 2003 | Designated handicap parking | All schools | \$600 |
| 2004 | Elevator | St. Paul School, Timmins | \$100,000 |
| 2004 | Automatic door actuator | Holy Family School, Englehart | \$2,000 |
| 2004 | Wheelchair ramp for outside portable | St. Paul School, Timmins | \$2,000 |
| 2004 | Doors in wheelchair accessible washroom | Sacred Heart School, Kirkland Lake | \$500 |
| 2004 | Improved lighting in washroom for visually-impaired child | St. Patrick School, Cobalt | \$100 |
| 2004 | Wheelchair ramp | O'Gorman Intermediate Catholic School, Timmins | \$2,000 |
| 2004 | Automatic door actuator | English Catholic Central School, New Liskeard | \$2,000 |
| 2004 | Automatic door actuator | St. Paul School, Timmins | \$2,000 |
| 2004 | Barrier-free washrooms | St. Paul School, Timmins | \$2,000 |
| 2004-20 05 | Repainting of stairs for visually-impaired child | St. Patrick School, Cobalt | \$200 |
| 2005 | Completion of all handicapped parking | Various schools | \$50 each |
| 2005 | Noise reduction caps for desks (to help hearing-impaired children) | Sacred Heart School, Timmins St. Jerome School, Kirkland Lake St. Patrick School, Kapuskasing | \$1,000 |
| 2006 | Noise reduction caps for desks (to help hearing-impaired children) | Sacred Heart School, Kirkland Lake Sacred Heart School, Timmins St. Paul School, Timmins | \$750 |
| 2006 | Repositioning track and harness | Sacred Heart School, Kirkland Lake | \$2,000 |
| 2006-20 08 | Elevator | St. Patrick School, Kapuskasing | \$140,636 |

| 2009 | Hush-ups in 4 classrooms | O'Gorman Intermediate Catholic School, Timmins | \$1,000 |
|------|--|---|-----------|
| 2010 | Full accessible compliance | 1 | 1 |
| 2001 | Full accessible compliance | | |
| 2012 | Full accessible compliance | | |
| 2013 | Playground | Bishop Belleau School, Moosonee | \$10,000 |
| 2014 | Ramp to Gym | English Catholic Central School | \$56,400 |
| 2014 | Replacement of door knobs to Levers | St. Paul School, Timmins | \$8000 |
| 2014 | Replacement of door knobs to Levers | Sacred Heart School, Timmins | \$8000 |
| 2015 | Replacement of door knobs to Levers | O'Gorman Intermediate Catholic School, Timmins | \$5,000 |
| 2016 | Upgraded exterior entrance for Accessibility | O'Gorman Intermediate Catholic School, Timmins | \$30,000 |
| 2016 | New lift and ramp | Sacred Heart School, Kirkland Lake | \$360,000 |
| 2016 | New hands-free fixtures in washrooms | Bishop Belleau School, Moosonee | \$12,000 |
| 2017 | Door operator at main entrance Replaced 32" doors to 38" doors complete with new levers | ACCESS Centre, Timmins | \$30,000 |
| 2017 | Installed ceiling mounted swing for Special Education use | St. Patrick School, Cobalt | \$10,000 |
| 2017 | Upgraded exterior entrance and paved parking lot to enhance accessibility | English Catholic Central School, New Liskeard | \$250,000 |
| 2017 | Installed OBC compliant non-slip (carpet) finish with leading and ending colour strips on corridor ramp to enhance accessibility and assist with the visually impaired | Holy Family School, Englehart | \$2,550 |
| 2017 | Upgraded existing plumbing fixtures and installed automatic operators in washroom areas. Installed protection under barrier-free countertop on main floor BF W/R. | O'Gorman Intermediate Catholic School, Timmins | \$120,000 |
| 2017 | Upgraded existing plumbing fixtures with new automatic operators in the washroom areas (with the exception of urinals and toilets). Installed barrier-free backrest and elongated toilet seats on toilets in barrier-free W/R's. Installed barrier-free accessible countertop at sink location on main floor and second floor girls' washroom area. | O'Gorman High School, Timmins | \$35,000 |
| 2017 | Installed OBC compliant handrails on exterior stairs, along with colour coded non-slip stair treads and non-slip landing identifier for the visually impaired. | ACCESS Centre, Timmins | \$50,000 |
| 2018 | Upgraded existing plumbing fixtures with new automatic operators in the washroom areas on the Main Floor and Boy's washroom on the Second Floor. Installed barrier-free backrest and elongated toilet seats on toilets in barrier-free W/R's. Installed barrier-free accessible countertop | St. Patrick School Kapuskasing, ON | \$250,000 |

| with protection at sink location in the washroom areas on the Main Floor. Provided colour contrast by painting wall behind plumbing fixtures an alternate colour for the visually impaired. (Boy's & Girl's W/R's both floors)< | 00 |
|---|-------|
| | 00 |
| wall behind plumbing fixtures an alternate colour for the visually impaired. (Boy's & Girl's W/R's Main Floor) | |
| 2018Upgraded exterior site, installed side walk from parking lot to Main Entrance, paved parking lot, provided designated Barrier-Free parking stalls to enhance accessibility.ACCESS Centre Timmins, ON\$250, Timmins, ON | 000 |
| 2018 Upgraded exterior entrance and paved parking lot, provided designated Barrier-Free parking stalls to enhance accessibility. | 000 |
| 2019 Replacement of door knobs to Levers Sacred Heart School \$25 Kirkland Lake, ON Kirkland Lake, ON \$35 | 5,000 |
| 2019 Replacement of door knobs to Levers St. Patrick School \$25 Kapuskasing, ON | 5,000 |
| 2019 Replacement of door knobs to Levers St. Anne English Catholic School \$25 Iroquois Falls, ON \$25 | 5,000 |
| 2020 Replacement of door knobs to Levers Aileen Wright English Catholic School \$5 Cochrane, ON Cochrane, ON | 560 |
| 2020 Replacement of door knobs to Levers St. Patrick School \$5 Kapuskasing, ON Kapuskasing, ON | 5224 |
| 2020 Replacement of door knobs to Levers Sacred Heart School \$1 Kirkland Lake, ON Kirkland Lake, ON \$1 | .500 |
| 2020 Replacement of door knobs to Levers English Catholic Central School \$18 | 3,682 |

| | | New Liskeard, ON | |
|------|--|---|---------------|
| 2020 | Replacement of door knobs to Levers | St. Patrick Catholic School Cobalt, ON | \$1482 |
| 2020 | Replacement of door knobs to Levers | Holy Family School, Englehart, ON | \$7893 |
| 2020 | Separated/Renovated two spaces to create two Resource Rooms. | Holy Family School, Englehart, ON | \$6600 |
| 2020 | Upgraded exterior Main Entrance walkways c/w dropped curbs. Installed asphalt Bus Route for pick-up and drop off, added Barrier-Free parking stalls to enhance accessibility. | Pope Francis Elementary School Timmins, ON | \$352,66 4 |
| 2020 | Upgraded exterior concrete sidewalks. Installed asphalt Bus Route for pick-up and drop off to enhance Barrier-Free accessibility. | St. Patrick School Kapuskasing, ON | \$364,90 3 |
| 2020 | Relocated Main Entrance of school. Built new Barrier-Free accessible Main Reception Area and Principal's Office. Installed automatic door operators at Main Entrance doors to enhance Barrier-Free accessibility. Ensured Barrier-Free access from parking lot to Main Entrance. | St. Joseph School Timmins, ON | 204,042 |
| 2020 | Installed new Universal W/R c/w Barrier Free sink, toilet, W/R accessories, grab bars and change table. | St. Joseph School Timmins, ON | 42,618 |

Multi-Year Capital Expenditures for Accessibility to School Buildings

Future accessibility plans will be dependent on funding allocations and needs. The Ministry is strongly encouraged to increase allocation in capital funding to enable the Board to develop a long-term plan.

A copy of the Board's budget is available upon request. The budget is also posted on the Board's website.

The table below summarizes the accessibility features of each one of the NCDSB's 12 elementary schools, 1 secondary school and 1 Adult and Continuing Education Center.

| ACCESSIBILITY FEATURES BY SCHOOL AT THE NCDSB | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|--------------|-------------|------------|-----------|------------|----------|------------|----------------------------------|----------|-----------|
| SCHOOL | Handicapped | Wheelchair/ | School | Automatic | Portable | Resource | Stage | 2 nd /3 rd | Special | Hydraulic |
| | Parking Sign | Van | Accessible | Door | Classroom | Room | Accessible | Floor | Needs | Change |
| | | Accessible | | Opener | Accessible | | | Accessible | Washroom | Table |
| Aileen Wright | yes | yes | yes | yes | n/a | 1st | n/a | n/a | yes | no |
| Bishop Belleau | no | no | yes | no | n/a | 1st | n/a | n/a | yes | no |
| ECCS | yes | yes | yes | yes | n/a | 1st | yes | n/a | yes | no |
| Holy Family | no | yes | yes | yes | n/a | 1st | n/a | n/a | yes | no |
| O'Gorman High | yes | yes | yes | yes | n/a | 1st | yes | yes | yes | no |
| O'Gorman Intermediate | yes | yes | yes | yes | yes | 1st | n/a | yes | yes | no |
| Sacred Heart, KL | yes | yes | yes | no | n/a | 1st | n/a | yes | yes | yes |
| St. Anne | no | yes | yes | yes | n/a | 1st | n/a | n/a | yes | no |
| St. Jerome | no | yes | yes | no | n/a | 1st | no | yes | no | no |
| St. Joseph | yes | yes | yes | yes | n/a | 1st | n/a | n/a | yes | yes |
| St. Patrick, Cobalt | yes | yes | yes | yes | n/a | 2nd | n/a | yes | yes | yes |
| St. Patrick, Kapuskasing | yes | yes | yes | no | n/a | 1st | n/a | yes | yes | no |
| Pope Francis | yes | yes | yes | yes | n/a | 1st | n/a | yes | yes | no |
| Access Centre | yes | yes | no | yes | n/a | 2nd | n/a | no | yes | no |



NORTHEASTERN CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL

Revised September 2018

PARENT'S GUIDE TO SPECIAL EDUCATION



The Northeastern Catholic District School Board recognizes the important role that parents have to play in the program provided to students with exceptional needs. Positive, ongoing communication is essential if programming is going to meet the needs of each exceptional student in accordance with the Special Education Legislation for Ontario. The purpose of this parent's guide is to provide you with the information you need to make the best decisions possible for your child. Our goal is to ensure that each and every child in our care receives the services required to develop to his/her fullest potential. **Together, we can make a difference.**

WE BELIEVE THAT:

- + All teachers are special educators.
- + Every student is a valued and welcomed member of our Catholic learning community.
- + All children and youth can succeed given the necessary support, services, and access to quality programs.
- + Parents play an important role in their children's academic, social, and personal success.
- t All students should be empowered to become independent, active members of their community, a place where every person contributes and benefits from living and learning together.

OUR MISSION

To ensure an attitude of welcomed acceptance and that a celebration of individual differences is encouraged and supported among students, parents and staff in our Catholic schools.

| The IPRC | .2 |
|---|----|
| Exceptional Students, Programs & Services | .2 |
| The Initial IPRC Meeting & The Review | .3 |
| Categories of Exceptionality | .4 |
| Placement Options in the NCDSB | .5 |
| The Appeal Process | .6 |
| The Individual Education Plan & Communication | .7 |
| Special Education Advisory Committee | .8 |
| Other Placement Options | .9 |
| Other Organizations Available to Assist Parents | .9 |
| NCDSB Contact Information1 | 0 |
| | |

THE IDENTIFICATION, PLACEMENT AND REVIEW COMMITTEE (IPRC)

WHAT IS AN IPRC?

Regulation 181/98 requires that all school boards set up one or more IPRC. An IPRC is a group made up of at least three people. Parents are invited and strongly encouraged to attend the IPRC meeting. There are also others who may attend:

- other resource people, at the discretion of the principal (such as special education staff, board support staff, or an agency representative who may provide further information);
- a representative for the parents that is, a person who may support the student or the parents, or speak on their behalf;
- an interpreter if one is required (request through principal)

WHAT IS THE ROLE OF THE IPRC?

The committee will:

- decide whether or not your child should be identified as exceptional;
- identify the areas of your child's exceptionality, according to the categories and definitions of exceptionalities provided by the Ministry of Education;
- list the strengths and needs of your child;
- decide an appropriate placement for your child;
- review the identification and placement at least once in each school year.

HOW IS AN IPRC REQUESTED?

The principal of your child's school:

- must convene an IPRC meeting for your child within 15 days of receiving your written request;
- may, with written notice to you, refer your child to an IPRC when results of an assessment demonstrate that your child may benefit from a special education program.



WHO IS IDENTIFIED AS AN EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT?

PAGE 2

An "exceptional student" refers to a student whose behavioural, communication, intellectual, physical or multiple exceptionalities are such that he or she is considered by the school board's Identification, Placement and Review Committee (IPRC) to benefit from a placement in a special education program and/or service.

WHAT IS A SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAM?

A special education program is defined as an educational program that is based on and modified by the results of continuous assessment and evaluation. It includes an Individual Education Plan containing specific objectives and an outline of special education services that meet the needs of the student.

WHAT ARE SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES?

Special education services are the facilities and resources, including equipment and support personnel, needed to create a special education program.

It is very important to note that a student does NOT have to be formally identified by the IPRC to benefit from Special Education Programs and Services.

NCDSB PARENT'S GUIDE TO SPECIAL EDUCATION

REVISED SEPTEMBER 2018

WHAT HAPPENS AT AN IPRC MEETING?

THE IPRC CONTINUED

- The principal, who acts as the chair of the meeting, will introduce everyone and explain the purpose of the meeting. The principal will review your child's educational history.
- The IPRC will review all available information about your child:
 - reports that have been received by a professional;
 - a summary of current programming and other accommodations/ modifications that have been made to facilitate your child's learning;
 - identify areas of strengths and continued areas of need;
 - consider any information that you submit about your child;
 - discuss any specialized transportation or equipment that may be necessary.
- Once these details have been discussed, a recommendation for an identification and placement will be made.
- Before the IPRC can consider placing your child in a special education class, it must consider whether placement in a regular class with appropriate special education services will meet your child's needs and be consistent with your preferences.
- You are encouraged to ask questions and join in the discussion at any point during the meeting.
- A summary of the discussions is recorded on the "Statement of Decision."

Please Note: If you can't make a scheduled IPRC meeting, please contact your child's principal to arrange an alternative date and/or time. If you prefer not to attend the meeting, let the principal know and a copy of the written IPRC statement will be provided to you.

0000000000000000



WHAT WILL THE WRITTEN IPRC STATEMENT OF DECISION INCLUDE?

• Whether the IPRC has identified your child as exceptional

- Where there is an identification, the following additional information will be recorded:
 - The catergory(ies) of exceptionality as defined by the Ontario Ministry of Education;
 - A description of your child's strengths and needs;
 - The placement decision;
 - Recommendations regarding a special education program and/or services, including the need for special transportation or equipment.
- An Individual Education Plan must be developed in consultation with the parent within 30 days.

WHAT WILL THE IPRC CONSIDER WHEN MAKING ITS PLACEMENT DECISION?

Before the IPRC can consider placing your child in a special education class, it must consider whether placement in a regular class with appropriate special education services will meet your child's needs and your preferences. See page 5 for a description of the placement options available in our board.

PAGE 3

* REVIEWING THE IPRC DECISION

An IPRC review meeting will be held at least once per year to decide if there are changes to a student's identification and placement. Before making any changes to your child's placement, you must be notified and invited to discuss the proposed change and agree to them in writing. A parent may also request a review any time after the student has been in a special education program/placement for 3 months.

ONTARIO MINISTRY OF EDUCATION CATEGORIES OF EXCEPTIONALITY

| Behaviour | A learning disorder characterized by specific behaviour problems over such a period of time and to such a marked degree, and of such a nature as to adversely affect educational |
|---------------------------------|---|
| | |
| | performance and that may be accompanied by one or more of the following: an inability to build or to maintain interpersonal relationships; |
| | excessive fears or anxieties; |
| | a tendency to compulsive reaction; or |
| | an inability to learn that cannot be traced to intellectual, sensory, or other health factors, or |
| | any combination thereof. |
| Communication: Learning | A learning disorder persistently and significantly has an impact on the ability to learn and use |
| Disability (LD) | academic and other skills that: |
| , | affects the ability to perceive or process verbal or non-verbal information in an effective and accurate manner in students who have assessed intellectual abilities that are at least in |
| | the average range; |
| | • results in (a) academic achievement that is inconsistent with the intellectual abilities of the |
| | student and /or (b) academic achievement that can be maintained by the student only with |
| | high levels of effort and/or with additional support; |
| | • results in difficulties in the development and use of skills in one or more of the following |
| | areas: reading, writing, mathematics, and work habits and learning skills; |
| | may typically be associated on one or more cognitive processes, such as phonological |
| | processing; memory and attention; processing speed; perceptual-motor processing; |
| | visual-spatial processing; executive functions (self-regulation of behavior and emotions, |
| | planning, organizing of thoughts and activities, prioritizing, decision making); |
| | may be associated with difficulties in social interaction; with various other conditions or |
| | a stand when the second sec |
| | disorders, diagnosed or undiagnosed; or with other exceptionalities; |
| | is not primarily the result of: |
| | ✓ impairment of vision or hearing; |
| | ✓ intellectual disabilities; |
| | ✓ socio-economic factors; |
| | ✓ cultural differences; |
| | lack of proficiency in the language of instruction; |
| | ✓ lack of motivation or effort; |
| | ✓ gaps in school attendance or inadequate opportunity to benefit from instruction. |
| Communication: | A severe learning disorder that is characterized by: |
| Autism | disturbances in: |
| | ✓ rate of educational development; |
| | ability to relate to the environment; |
| | ✓ mobility; |
| | ✓ perception, speech and language; |
| | lack of the representative symbolic behaviour that precedes language. |
| Communication: Deaf and Hard | An impairment characterized by deficits in language and speech development because of |
| of Hearing | diminished or non-existent auditory response to sound. |
| Communication: | A learning disorder characterized by an impairment in comprehension and/or use of verbal |
| Language | |
| Impairment | communication or the written or other symbol system of communication, which may be |
| | associated with neurological, psychological, physical, or sensory factors, and which may: |
| | • involve one or more of the form, content, and function of language in communication and; |
| | include one or more of the following: |
| | ✓ language delay; |
| | ✓ dysfluency; |
| | voice and articulation development, which may or may not be organically or functionally |
| | based. |

ONTARIO MINISTRY OF EDUCATION CATEGORIES OF EXCEPTIONALITY

| Communication: Speech Impairment | A disorder in language formulation which may be associated with neurological, psychological, physical, or sensory factors that involves perceptual motor aspects of transmitting oral messages; and that may be characterized by impairment in articulation, rhythm, and stress. |
|--|--|
| Intellectual: Giftedness | An unusually advanced degree of general intellectual ability that requires differentiated learning experiences of a depth and breadth beyond those normally provided in the regular school program to satisfy the level of educational potential indicated. |
| Intellectual: Mild Intellectual Disability (MID) | A learning disorder characterized by: an ability to profit educationally within a regular class with the aid of considerable curriculum modification and supportive service; an inability to profit educationally within a regular classroom because of slow intellectual development; a potential for academic learning, independent social adjustment, and economic self-support. |
| Intellectual: Developmental Disability (DD) | A severe learning disorder characterized by: an inability to profit from a special education program for students with mild intellectual disabilities because of slow intellectual development; an ability to profit from a special education program that is designed to accommodate slow intellectual development; a limited potential for academic learning, independent social adjustment, and economic self-support. |
| Physical Disability | A condition of such severe physical limitation or deficiency as to require special assistance in learning situations to provide the opportunity for educational achievement equivalent to that of students without exceptionalities who are of the same age or developmental level. |
| Physical Disability: Blind/Low Vision | A condition of partial or total impairment of sight or vision that even with correction affects educational performance adversely. |
| Multiple | A combination of learning or other disorders, impairments, or physical disabilities that is of such a nature as to require, for educational achievement, the services of one or more teachers holding qualifications in special education and the provision of support services appropriate for such disorders, impairments, or disabilities. |

PLACEMENT OPTIONS IN THE NCDSB

The NCDSB believes that the inclusion of exceptional students into the regular classroom should be the usual practice in our schools. Inclusion is consistent with the goal of providing the highest quality education possible for all children where equity and access are valued. The range of special education programs offered in our schools is reflected below. It is important to note that special education classes are not available in every school or geographical area of the board.

| | school or geographical area of the board. |
|--|--|
| Regular Class | The student is placed in a regular class for the entire day, and the teacher provides pro- gram modifications and/or accommodations. |
| Regular Class with Indirect Support | The student is placed in a regular class for the entire day, and the student receives specialized consultative services. |
| Regular Class with Resource Assistance | The student is placed in a regular class for most or all of the day and receives special- ized instruction, individually or in a small group, within the regular classroom from a qualified resource teacher. |
| Regular Class with Withdrawal Assistance | The student is placed in a regular class and receives instruction outside the classroom, for less than 50 percent of the school day from a qualified resource teacher. |
| Special Education Class with Partial Integration | The student is placed by the IPRC in a Special Education class in which the student- teacher ratio conforms to Regulation 298, section 31, for at least 50 percent of the school day, but is integrated with a regular classroom for at least one instructional peri- od daily. |
| Special Education Class Full-Time | The student is placed by the IPRC in a Special Education class, where the student-teacher ratio conforms to Regulation 298, section 31, for the entire school day. |

WHAT HAPPENS IN THE APPEAL PROCESS?

The appeal process involves the following steps:

- The board will establish a Special Education Appeal Board to hear your appeal. The appeal board will be composed of three persons who have no prior knowledge of the matter under appeal, one of whom is to be selected by you, the parent.
- The chair of the appeal board will arrange a meeting to take place at a convenient time and place, but no later than 30 days after he or she has been selected (unless parents and board provide written consent to a later date).
- The appeal board will receive the material reviewed by the IPRC and may interview any persons who may be able to contribute information about the matter under appeal.
- You, the parent, and your child (if he/she is 16 years or older) are entitled to be present at, and to participate in, all discussions.
- The appeal board must make its recommendation within 3 days of the meeting's ending. It may agree with the IPRC and recommend that the decision be upheld or disagree with the IPRC and make a recommendation to the board about your child's identification or placement or both.
- The appeal board will report its recommendations in writing to you and to the school board, providing the reasons for its recommendations.
- Within 30 days of receiving the appeal board's written statement, the school board will decide what action it will take with respect to the recommendations. Boards are not required to follow the appeal board recommendation. You may accept the board's decision or you may appeal to a Special Education Tribunal.



WHAT CAN PARENTS DO IF THEY DISAGREE WITH THE IPRC DECISION?

PAGE 6

If you do not agree with either the identification or placement decision made by the IPRC, you may:

- Within 15 days of receipt of the decision, request that the IPRC hold a second meeting to discuss your concerns; or
- Within 30 days of receipt of the decision, file a notice of appeal with the secretary of the board
 Director of Education
 Northeastern Catholic District
 School Board
 383 Birch St. North
 Timmins, ON
 P4N 6E8

THE NOTICE OF APPEAL

0000

- If you do not agree with the decision after the second meeting, you may file a notice of appeal within 15 days of your receipt of the decision.
- In the written notice of appeal, you must indicate the decision with which you disagree and the reasons for which you disagree.

Please note: Even if you do not consent to the IRPC decision, if you do not appeal it, the board will instruct the principal to implement the IPRC decision.

 In the event that you wish to appeal to a Special Education Tribunal, information about how to make a request will be included with the Special Education Appeal Board's decision.

REVISED SEPTEMBER 2018

NCDSB PARENT'S GUIDE TO SPECIAL EDUCATION

HE INDIVIDUAL EDUCATION PLAN

WHAT IS AN IEP?

- An IEP is an Individual Education Plan written for a student. An IEP is required for every student who has been identified by the IRPC, but may also be developed for any student who would benefit from special education programs or services.
- An IEP must be completed within 30 school days of your child being placed in a special education program, or within 30 days of the beginning of a new school year, and revised within 30 days of the beginning of a new term.

An IEP should include:

- The student's strengths and needs as recorded on the Statement of Decision received from the IPRC
- Relevant medical/health information
- ✓ Relevant formal (standardized) assessment data
- Relevant classroom assessment data
- ✓ The student's current level of achievement in each program area
- Goals and specific expectations for the student
- Program modifications (changes to the grade-level expectations in the Ontario curriculum)
- Accommodations required to supports and services that will help the student access the Ontario curriculum and demonstrate learning
- A description of the special education and related services being provided to the student
- Assessment strategies for reviewing the student's achievement and progress
- Regular updates, showing dates, results and recommendations

A transition plan



Each child is a gift from God and has the potential to grow, to develop and to contribute to his/her community. Each person is worthy of our respect, is to be included and is to be treated fairly and with dignity at all times.

AN IEP IS

- A summary of the student's strengths, interests and needs;
- A list of the expectations for a student's learning during a school year that differs from the expectations defined in the appropriate grade level of the Ontario curriculum;
- A written plan of action prepared for a student who requires modifications or accommodations to access the regular school program;
- A plan developed, implemented and monitored by school staff to help communicate the student's growth;
- A flexible, working document that can be adjusted as necessary (with consultation with the parent);
- An accountability tool for the student, his/her parents and everyone who has a responsibility under the plan for helping the student meet his/her goals and expectations;
- An ongoing record that ensures continuity in programming;
- A document to be used in conjunction with the provincial report card.

PAGE 7

AN IEP IS NOT

- A description of everything that will be taught to the student;
- A list of all the teaching strategies used in regular classroom instruction;
- A document that records all learning expectations, including those that are not modified from the regular grade level curriculum expectations;
- A daily lesson plan.



WHAT IS THE PARENT'S ROLE IN THE IEP?

Parents have an important role to play in supporting their child's learning by:

- Collaborating in the IEP process;
- Advocating for their child's best interest;
 Providing relevant up-to-date medical information about their child;
- Providing important information about their child's likes, dislikes, learning styles, interests, and reactions to situations, and about the talents and skills their child demonstrates in the home and community;
- Reinforcing and extending the educational efforts of the teacher by providing opportunities to practice and maintain skills in the home.

COMMUNICATION BETWEEN HOME AND SCHOOL

Open communication between home and school is essential to ensuring that the needs of each student are met effectively and in a timely fashion. Each school has a special education resource teacher that can serve as the main point of contact for each family. In most cases, students will be placed in a regular classroom, so the classroom teacher also plays an important role with each family.

If, at any time, a family feels as though their child's needs are not being met, the parent is encouraged to request a meeting with the school. This can be done through the resource teacher, classroom teacher or the principal. Should you feel as though the needs of your child are still not being met once you have addressed your concerns with the school, you are always welcome to contact the superintendent of education responsible for special education through the NCDSB board office at 705.268.7443.

-26-26-26-26-26-26-26-26-26-



SPECIAL EDUCATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (SEAC)

For more information, please visit our website at www.ncdsb.on.ca

Regulation 464/97 under the Education Act requires each school board in Ontario to establish a Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC) which is comprised of trustees, members from local associations and agencies. We are pleased to have membership from the following:

- North Eastern Ontario Family and Children's Services
- Cochrane Timiskaming Resource Centre
- Children's Treatment Centre
- Canadian Mental Health Association
- Cochrane District Social Services Administration Board
- Timmins Family Counselling Centre
- VOICE for Hearing Impaired Children
- The Lord's Kitchen
- Community Living Timmins

The role of SEAC is to make recommendations to the board in respect of any matter affecting the establishment, development and delivery of special education programs and services for exceptional students of the board.

"In the end, everything has been entrusted to our protection and all of us are responsible for it. Be protectors of God's gift and truly joyful for your many blessings." -Pope Francis 1 PAGE 8

OTHER PLACEMENT OPTIONS

PROVINCIAL AND DEMONSTRATION SCHOOLS

The Ministry operates Provincial and Demonstration Schools throughout Ontario for deaf, blind, deaf-blind, and severely learning disabled students, as well as those with attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD). Residential programs are offered at the schools Monday to Friday for students who live too far from school to travel daily. If you feel that your child might benefit from one of these programs, please contact the principal of your child's school. There is a comprehensive application process required for admission that must be completed by school board staff on your child's behalf.

| Provincial Schools Branch Ministry of Education | School for the Blind and Deaf-Blind | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Provincial Schools Branch 255 Ontario Street South Milton, ON L9T 2M5 Tel.: 905-878-2851 Fax: 905-878-5405 | W. Ross MacDonald School350 Brant AvenueBrantford, ON N3T 3J9Tel.:519-759-0730Fax:519-759-4741 | | |
| Schools for the Deaf | Provincial Demonstration Schools for Students with Learning Disabilities | | |
| The Ernest C. Drury School for the Deaf255 Ontario Street SouthMilton, ONL9T 2M5Tel.:905-878-2851Fax:905-878-1354 | Amethyst School 1090 Highbury Avenue London, ON N5Y 4V9 Tel.: 519-453-4408 Fax: 519-453-2160 | | |
| The Robarts School for the Deaf1090 Highbury AvenueLondon, ONN5Y 4V9Tel.:519-453-4408Fax:519-453-7943 | Centre Jules-Léger (FRANCOPHONE)281 Lanark StreetOttawa, ON K1Z 6R8Tel.:613-761-9300Fax:613-761-9301 | | |
| Sir James Whitney School for the Deaf 350 Dundas Street West Belleville, ON K8P 1B2 Tel.: 613-967-2823 Fax: 613-967-2857 | Sagonaska School350 Dundas Street WestBelleville, ON K8P 1B2Tel.:613-967-2830Fax:613-967-2482 | | |
| Centre Jules-Léger (FRANCOPHONE)281 Lanark StreetOttawa, ONK1Z 6R8Tel.:613-761-9300Fax:613-761-9301 | Trillium School347 Ontario Street SouthMilton, ON L9T 3X9Tel.:905-878-8428Fax:905-878-7540 | | |

OTHER ORGANIZATIONS AVAILABLE TO ASSIST PARENTS

There are many organizations available locally, within the district or provincially to assist parents who have questions or require additional services to support a child with special needs. Contact information is available on each website.

| Autism Society o <mark>f O</mark> ntario | Canadian Foundation for Physically | Down Syndrome Association of | |
|--|--|--|--|
| www.autismontario.com | Disabled Persons www.cfpdp.com | Ontario www.dsao.ca | |
| Canadian Hearing Society | Tourette Syndrome Foundation of | Learning Disabilities Association of | |
| www.chs.ca | Canada www.fowettesyndromeontario.ca | Ontario www.Jdao.ca | |
| Canadian Mental Health Association | Ontario Human Rights Commission | Cochrane Temiskaming Children's | |
| www.cmba.ca | www.ohrc.on.ca | Treatment Center www.ctctc.org | |
| The Canadian National Institute for the Blind www.cnib.ca | Community Care Access Center www.healthcareathome.ca | Canadian Cancer Society www.cancer.ca | |
| Ontario Council for Exceptional Children www.ce <i>conta</i> rio.ca | North Eastern Ontario Family and Children's Services www.neofacs.org | Timmins/Ininew Native Friendship Center www.tnfc.ca | |
| Community Living www.communitylivingontario.ca | Porcupine Health Unit/Timiskaming Health Unit www.porcupinehu.on.ca www.fimiskaminghu.com | Cochrane Timiskaming Resource Center www.ctrc.on.ca | |

For more information about Special Education Programs and Services, please use the information on this page to contact a school principal or the superintendent of education responsible for Special Education.

CONTACT INFORMATION

the second second

Warden a

200000

26

NORTHEASTERN CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

383 Birch Street North Timmins, ON P4N 6E8

Phone: 705.268.7443 Toll Free: 877.422.9322 Fax: 705.267.3590

| Aileen Wright English Catholic School - Cochrane | Bishop Belleau School - Moosonee |
|--|---|
| 705.272.4704 | 705.336.2619 |
| nglish Catholic Central School - New Liskeard | Holy Family School - Englehart |
| 705.647.4301 | 705.544.2397 |
| D'Gorman Intermediate Catholic School - Timmins | Sacred Heart Catholic School - Kirkland Lake |
| 705.264.6555 | 705.567.7444 |
| Pope Francis Elementary School - Timmins | St. Anne English Catholic School - Iroquois Falls |
| 705.264. 5869 | 705.232.5355 |
| ôt. Jerome School - Kirkland Lake | St. Joseph School - South Porcupine |
| 705.567.5800 | 705.235.4622 |
| St. Patrick School - Cobalt | St. Patrick School – Kapuskasing |
| 05.679.5575 | 705.335.3241 |

O'Gorman High School - Timmins

WWW.NCDSB.ON.CA

69



STUDENT SERVICES REFERRAL

STUDENT INFORMATION

| Student's LEGAL Name: | 2: Surname | | | First Name | | Middle Name | |
|--|-------------------------------------|----------------|-------------|---|---|------------------|--|
| Date of Birth (DD/MM/YY): | | | 1 | Age: | | Gender: 🗆 Male | |
| | | | + | Grade: Grade: Female | | | |
| Student Address: | | | own/City: | | | | |
| Postal Code: | Identified by IPRC: Designation: | | | I Yes □ No IEP: □ Yes □ No Since: | | | |
| | | | Ce | Cell Phone: | | | |
| REFERRAL INFOR | MATION | | | | | | |
| School: | | | | Date of Referral: | | | |
| Referral Source: | | | | Relations | hip to Stude | nt: | |
| Student/Guardian is Aware of Referral? Yes No | | | 5 | Date Contacted: By Whom: | | | |
| Signature of Referee: | | | | Please sign and date when the form is complete. Submit one copy and place a copy in the Ontario Student Record. | | | |
| Signature of School Principal: | | | | | | | |
| PARENT/LEGAL GUARDIAN INFORMATION | | | | | | | |
| First Parent Surname: | in Day | R. A. Swith | | First Na | me: | | |
| Relationship to Student: 🛛 Mother 🗂 Father 🗆 Other | | | Home Phone: | | | | |
| Home Address: | | | | Work Phone: | | | |
| Town/City: Postal Code: | | | | | | | |
| Town/City: | | Postal Cod | e: | | Cell Phone | • | |
| Town/City: Mailing Address (if different): | | Postal Cod | e: | | Cell Phone | • | |
| · · · | | Postal Cod | e: | | Cell Phone Postal Cod | | |
| Mailing Address (if different): | | Postal Cod | e: | First Na | Postal Cod | | |
| Mailing Address (if different): Town/City: | : | | | First Na | Postal Cod | e: | |
| Mailing Address (if different): Town/City: Second Parent Surname | : | | | First Na | Postal Cod me: | e: ne: | |
| Mailing Address (if different): Town/City: Second Parent Surname Relationship to Student: | : | | er | First Na | Postal Cod me: Home Pho | e: ne: ne: | |
| Mailing Address (if different):Town/City:Second ParentSurnameRelationship to Student:Home Address: | : Mother [| □ Father □ Oth | er | First Na | Postal Cod me: Home Pho Work Phor | e: ne: ne: | |
| Mailing Address (if different):Town/City:Second ParentSurnameRelationship to Student:Home Address:Town/City: | : Mother [| □ Father □ Oth | er | First Na | Postal Cod me: Home Pho Work Phor | e: ne: ne: | |

REASON FOR REFERRAL

Please indicate why you are making this referral. Include any concerns, questions and desired outcomes in your response. What questions would you like answered?

How long has this been a concern?

CHECKLIST OF CONCERNS (list primary concerns only)

| Cognitive | Social/Emotional/Motivational | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| struggles to comprehend material/concepts | □ gives up easily | | |
| has poor short-term memory skills | □ is easily frustrated | | |
| has poor long-term memory skills | demonstrates low interest in school work | | |
| struggles to understand and follow directions | steals things | | |
| uses problem solving strategies inefficiently | avoids doing work in class | | |
| generally seems to learn slowly | ☐ fails to do homework | | |
| Perceptual Motor | presents with low self-esteem | | |
| □ has poor auditory perception | is socially isolated from peers | | |
| □ has poor visual perception | has numerous physical complaints | | |
| □ has poor handwriting/penmanship | has limited social perceptiveness | | |
| □ appears clumsy and awkward | struggles to get along with other children | | |
| □ has right/left confusion | demonstrates aggressive behaviour shows anger quickly | | |
| □ has poor gross motor coordination | I is uncooperative | | |
| □ has poor fine motor coordination | □ is upset by changes in routine | | |
| | asks questions constantly | | |
| Speech/Language/Academic | requires more support than most peers | | |
| has difficulty with oral language | requires constant supervision | | |
| has difficulty with written expression | seeks attention constantly | | |
| has a limited vocabulary | shows disruptive behaviour | | |
| has poor math calculation skills | talks excessively | | |
| has difficulty decoding words | gives in to peer pressure | | |
| has poor reading comprehension | is self-critical or critical of others | | |
| has poor phonological awareness | □ has low expectations for academic success | | |
| has poor spelling and/or grammar skills | demonstrates wide mood changes | | |
| | | | |

SCHOOL HISTORY

Please list all previous schools attended. Include the approximate dates and locations.

| Days Absent To Date: | Days Absent in Previous School Year: |
|----------------------|--------------------------------------|
| Days Late To Date: | Days Late in Previous School Year: |
STUDENT'S STRENGTHS AND INTERESTS

Please provide a brief description.

CURRENT CLASSROOM ACHIEVEMENT/FUNCTIONING LEVELS

Please provide a brief description. Attach most recent report card & IEP when applicable.

SCHOOL-BASED ASSESSMENT INFORMATION AND DATES

Please list all informal & formal school-based assessment results and dates administered.

FORMAL ASSESSMENT INFORMATION AND DATES

Please list all assessment results provided by a professional outside of our district and dates completed.

CURRENT PROFESSIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICES INVOLVED

| Name | Title | Last Seen |
|------|-------|-----------|
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |

SOCIAL/EMOTIONAL/FAMILY/BEHAVIOUR FACTORS

Child & Youth Worker is Involved: 🗆 Yes 🗆 No 🛛 Behaviour Support Plan in Place: 🗆 Yes 🗆 No

Please provide a brief description. Attach any relevant observations, assessments and/or BSP completed by staff.

INTERVENTIONS TO DATE AND EFFECTIVENESS

Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been used. List any accommodations that have been provided. Indicate the effectiveness of each.

| Intervention/Accommodation | | Length of Intervention/ Accommodation | Effectiveness |
|--|-----|---|--|
| | | | highly effective effective some effectiveness limited effectiveness highly effective some effectiveness limited effectiveness highly effective effective some effectiveness limited effectiveness limited effectiveness limited effectiveness highly effective some effectiveness limited effectiveness limited effectiveness highly effective some effectiveness limited effectiveness limited effectiveness limited effectiveness limited effectiveness highly effective some effectiveness limited effectiveness highly effective some effectiveness highly effective effective some effectiveness highly effective effective effective effective effective effective |
| | _ | | some effectiveness limited effectiveness |
| FOR OF | FIC | E USE ONLY | |
| Date Received: | Dat | e Reviewed by SO: | |
| Referral Sent To: SAT for Student Services case conference required recommend Psycho-Educational Assessment recommend Speech & Language Assessment ABA Specialist | | nsents Required: Educational Assessment Speech & Language Assessment Mental Health Services ABA Specialist Support At Steps: | Received On: Received On: Received On: Received On: |
| Attendance Counsellor Mental Health Lead Mental Health Nurse Aboriginal Youth Liaison Worker Comments/Notes: | | | |
| | | | |



Considering a Child for Psychological Assessment Some things to consider ... Review the Non-identified IEP list as any student that is moving to Tier 3 should have a modified IEP already in place. If the IEP is accommodated only, then the next step if the student is still struggling is to modify as needed. Remove any students that you feel might meet the **CTRC mandate**. This agency works with both children and adults that have a developmental disability, and will assess these students upon referral. The wait list in Timmins is over a year, so this is something to consider. Although, you can still program accordingly, as we often do not need a report for effective programming. Remove students that have had intervention, or for whom intervention has been very brief, or infrequent. This would include those students that saw the RT for 40 minutes once a week. We would not expect such students to show much growth considering the brief intervention provided. Intervention should have been solid. Examine educational testing results such as the BAT, BAS, All About Numbers. These tests would reflect the achievement gap that must be present if we are going to move forward with psychological testing. Consider if the student is displaying signs of ADHD/ADD. If the child has been formally diagnosed with either of these from a pediatrician, then we can identify the student as *Communication: Learning Disability* assuming that the ADHD is severe enough that we feel it is impacting learning and achievement. However, if we go this route, we do not have the WISC indexes that would help us program appropriately for the student. We would not have measures of the student's cognitive processes which we know is important in successful intervention and teaching. If we want to continue this route with a child that is ADHD we must feel confident that the assessor will be able to get enough information from the test to have a conclusive result. Many students that display signs of ADHD are able to sit and focus in a one to one environment with frequent breaks, but some are not. This should be decided on a case by case basis. Administering the WIAT requires parental permission and once this is obtained, then you can go ahead and administer this test. This test results need to highlight the achievement gap that you are expecting. Please call if you feel that the gaps in this test are not significant enough. **Examine attendance patterns.** It is hard for students to be successful if they are missing many days or many parts of days, or are arriving late frequently. Some students do not require Tier 3; they just need to be at school learning consistently. Check report cards to ensure that they too reflect the achievement gap that you are suspecting. Students may have Bs, but again, remember that the student is probably on a modified program. If students are achieving Bs and Cs on a report card without an IEP, or with just an accommodated IEP then they are working close to provincial average and would not require a psychological assessment. PLEASE CALL TO DISCUSS IF YOU ARE STILL UNSURE OR REQUIRE AN OUTSIDE OPINION.



REFERRAL FOR RESOURCE TEACHER SERVICES

STUDENT INFORMATION

| Student Name: | Grade: |
|---|---|
| Teacher: | Date: |
| REASON FOR REFERRAL | |
| struggles to comprehend material/concepts | gives up easily |
| has poor short-term memory skills | is easily frustrated |
| struggles to understand and follow directions | demonstrates low interest in school work |
| uses problem solving strategies inefficiently | avoids doing work in class |
| generally seems to learn slowly | presents with low self-esteem |
| has difficulty with oral language | is upset by changes in routine |
| has difficulty with written expression | asks questions constantly |
| has a limited vocabulary | requires more support than most peers |
| has poor math calculation skills | has low expectations for academic success |
| has difficulty decoding words | has poor phonological awareness |
| has poor reading comprehension | has poor spelling and/or grammar skills |

| Ц | has poor reading | comprehension |
|---|--|---------------|
| | and the second | |

CURRENT CLASSROOM ACHIEVEMENT/FUNCTIONING LEVELS

| | Assessment 5 / GB+ | The second second second second second second | ng Strategies bserved | Reading Response (attach sample) |
|--------------------------------------|-----------------------|---|--------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| Instructional Leve | l: | | | |
| Accuracy: | | | | |
| Self-Correction: | | | | |
| Fluency: | | _ | | |
| Comprehension: (Within, About, Bo | eyond) | | | |
| Writing – a | attach sample | Ma | thematics | Other |
| 🗆 Ideas | Voice | Skill | Strategy | |
| Organization | U Word Choice | Explain: | | |
| Fluency | | - | | |
| Oral to Written | | | | |
| Other: | | | | |
| INTERVENT | TIONS / STRA | TEGIES IM | PLEMENTED | |
| | | | | |

| SIGNATURES | |
|------------|-------|
| Teacher: | Date: |
| Principal: | Date: |



CONSENT FOR CONSULTATION

Mental Health/ Psychological/ Speech & Language

(Date)

Dear (name of parent),

In order that we may better provide effective academic programming for your child, (child's name), we are recommending that we share your child's recent assessment(s) with members of our school board Specialist Team. They will provide us with recommendations and strategies to help us develop an effective program for your child to best meet their potential.

- Mental Health Lead & Nurse
- Psychologist (NCDSB contracted psychologist)
- □ Speech and Language Pathologist (NCDSB contracted Speech and Language Pathologist)

The results of this consultation will be shared with you as well as stored in your child's Ontario School Record. The results are confidential and cannot be given to anyone else without your consent. It is understood that you may, **at your expense**, seek other consultation services from other qualified professionals not contracted by the School Board.

Please give your consent by signing the form below. Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the school.

Sincerely,

Principal

School

CONSENT FOR CONSULTATION

Student Name:

I give permission for my child's file to be reviewed as marked above.

I <u>do not</u> give permission for my child's file to be reviewed as marked above.

Parent/Guardian's Signature:

Date:

Note to school: A copy of this authorization must be copied and issued to the parent/guardian. The original is filed in the OSR.



SPEECH & LANGUAGE SCREENING TOOL

New Referrals Only

| SCH | HOOL INFORMATION | | |
|-------|---|--|--|
| Sch | ool: | incipal: | |
| Clas | sroom Teacher: | source Teacher: | |
| STι | JDENT INFORMATION | | |
| Stu | dent's Name: | Date of Birth (DD/MM/YY): | |
| Gra | de: Name of Parent(s): | 1 st Lan | guage: |
| | PHYSICAL & COGNITVE RISKS | SECOND LA | NGUAGE |
| | The child has frequent earaches, allergies or fevers. | The child has difficulty comn language: | |
| | The child is often tired. | The child's mother almost al different from the school's la | anguage. |
| | The child has difficulty focusing and paying attention in a consistent manner. | The child's father almost alw different from the school's la | |
| | The child is quickly discouraged and does not participate. | omments: | |
| LOIII | anents. | | |
| | | | Construction of the second second second |
| | COMMU | CATION | and the planets |
| | Phonological Awareness/Pre-reading Skills | Langua | ge |
| | The child could not clap the number of syllables in three syllable words. | The child uses immature sen | tence structures. |
| | The child could not identify among three words, two words that rhyme. | The child does not correctly conjunctions. | use pronouns, articles and |
| | The child could not identify among three words, two words that begin with the same first sound. | The child has difficulty reme (names, verbs, adjectives) an | nd academic notions |
| | The child could not distinguish between a book, a page, a word, and a sentence. | (temporal spatial relations, r The child does not understar classroom. | |
| Spe | ech | The child has difficulty answeright | ering open ended |
| | The child omits, substitutes, or distorts phonemes in conversation. Circle the errors below. | The child does not greet oth topic of discussion, or does r objects, permission, or inform | ot verbally request |
| | p,m,h,n (3. yrs.) w,b,k,g,d,f,y, (3.5-4yrs.) | The child has social-commur difficulties. | |
| | t,ng,r,l (5-6yrs) ch,sh,s,z,j,v,th (7-8 yrs.) | mments: | |
| | The child has a hoarse voice or speaks through the nose. | | |
| | The child hesitates, prolongs, or repeats sounds and syllables in conversation. | | |



ABA/ASD REFERRAL UPDATE

Student Information

Student's Name:

School:

Grade:

Referral Information

Referral Recipient:

Referral Date:

Observation / Screening Date:

DOB:

Recommendations

| Signatures | | |
|---------------------|-------|--|
| Referral Recipient: | Date: | |
| School Principal: | Date: | |
| Resource Teacher: | Date: | |

| Northeastern Catholic District | | | |
|---|--|------------------|---|
| PRINCIPA | L'S REQUEST | FOR IN | NITIAL IPRC |
| SCHOOL INFORMATION | | | |
| School: | | Principal: | |
| STUDENT INFORMATIO | N | | |
| Student's Name: | | | |
| Date of Birth (DD/MM/YY): | | Grade: | |
| Student Address: | | Town/City: | |
| Postal Code: | Home Phone: | | Teacher: |
| RECOMMENDED CATEG | GORY OF EXCE | PTIONALI | TY |
| Communication: Autism Learning Disability Deaf & Hard of Hearing Speech Impairment Language Impairment | Intellectual: Developmental D Mild Intellectual Giftedness Behaviour: Behaviour | • | Physical: Physical Disability Blind / Low Vision Multiple: 1. 2. |
| ASSESSMENT INFORMA | TION | an and the state | the succession of the second |
| Assessment Information is att | ached: 🖸 Yes | 🗆 No | |
| Type of Assessment – Date: | D | one by: | |
| Type of Assessment – Date: | D | one by: | |
| Type of Assessment – Date: | D | one by: | |
| Hearing Test: 🗆 Yes 🛛 No - Da | te: C/ | AP: 🛛 Yes | 🗆 No - Date: |
| Vision Test: 🛛 Yes 🗆 No - Dat | te: | | |

SUGGESTED PLACEMENT (As per Ministry of Education Guidelines)

- Regular Class Resource Assistance
- Special Education Class Partial Integration

D Regular Class – Withdrawal

- Special Education Class Self Contained
- Regular Class Indirect Support

IPRC MEETING Suggested Date of Meeting: Staff to Attend: Position: **Position:** Position: Position: Position: Agency / Agencies Involved: Position: Agency Representative: Agency Representative: **Position:** Agency Representative: Position: Agency Representative: Position: IPRC is at the Request of the School IPRC is at the Request of Parents/Agency 🗆 Yes 🗖 No □ Yes □ No

Please be sure to attach all assessment information and other evidence, if applicable, suggesting the need for IPRC.

Notice to parents/guardians will be sent by the school along with a copy of the Parent's Guide to the IPRC in advance of the scheduled meeting.

| Request Approved | Date: |
|------------------|---------|
| Request Denied | Reason: |



PREPARING FOR AN IPRC

BEFORE THE MEETING

- □ Schedule a date with school/board personnel.
- Send home a Letter of Invitation to IPRC Meeting stating the proposed date and time of IPRC. For initial IPRCs include the Parent Guide. Ensure that parents have 10 days of notice. Use the form that is found on TPM.
- □ Within 15 days of notice for an initial IPRC, send home a Parent Guide to the parent/guardian.
- □ Adjust scheduling according to responses.
- □ Prepare Statement of Decision forms electronically for each student through TPM software. When filling out the Strengths and Needs portion, be sure to refer to the most recent IEP as well as assessment documentation in OSR. Use wording that is "parent friendly".
- Ensure that the teachers that are attending the IPRC meeting are aware of the type of information that they will be required to share during the meeting. Teachers should be prepared to talk about the student's progress, strengths and needs that they notice, assessment data that is relevant, and the type of supports that the student will access.
- □ Have the OSR ready and in order. Report cards should be at the front. Student Services Information should be filed by year in the documentation folder with the most recent on top. Ensure that the assessment that identifies the student is flagged and with the current year information.

DURING THE MEETING

- Have all Statement of Decision forms ready on the laptop as you will be asked to recap placement, strengths, and needs.
- □ Principal/Chair will greet everyone and make introductions. Then state purpose of meeting (review or initial identification).
- OSR should be available so that the principal or resource teacher can give a summary of all schools attended by the child and indicate when the child was first identified as an exceptional student. Reference should be made to most recent assessment(s).
- Principal/Chair will then give everyone at the table (teachers, CYW, EA, resource Teacher) an opportunity to speak about the child's strengths, progress and needs. This should be brief.

- □ Principal/Chair will summarize (or will ask the resource teacher who serves as a recorder) the strengths, needs, identification, and placement.
- □ Make any amendments necessary to the Statement of Decision.
- □ Principal/Chair will thank everyone for coming.
- Print 3 copies of the Statement of Decision at the end of the meeting. The original goes to the parent(s). Send one copy to the Board Office, insert another in the OSR, and keep a paper copy for your files as it will assist with ONSIS reporting.

AFTER THE MEETING

- □ File the signed Statement of Decision in the documentation portion of the student OSR under the Student Services cover page for the current school year. If parents did not attend meeting, send home the Notification of IPRC Decision letter with the Statement of Decision. Keep a copy of the letter in the student file until the parent returns Statement of Decision.
- Once the signed Statement of Decision is returned to the school, send a copy to Board Office, then place in OSR and remove the Notification of Decision letter.
- Update OSR Tracking Sheet.
- □ Save all files electronically.



IPRC DISPENSE OR REVIEW

(Date)

Dear Parents/Guardians,

We will be holding Identification, Placement and Review Committee (IPRC) meetings for our students with special needs. However, it is no longer necessary to have a yearly review of each identified child's program if the educational needs of the child are already being met by his/her current identification and placement.

Since your child's identification and/or placement is not anticipated to be changing during the next school year, you may choose not to have an IPRC review this year. Therefore, you can dispense with the IPRC by signing the form below and returning it to the school as soon as possible in the enclosed envelope.

If you wish to proceed with the annual review of your child's identification and placement, please indicate this below and we will schedule a mutually agreeable time for your child's IPRC meeting.

Sincerely,

Principal

School

IPRC DISPENSE OR REVIEW

Student Name:

I wish to **DISPENSE** with my child's IPRC review for this year. I have signed below.

I wish to **PROCEED** with my child's IPRC review for this year. I have signed below.

Parent/Guardian's Signature:

Date:



NOTIFICATION OF DECISION

INITIAL IPRC

(Date)

Dear Parents/Guardians,

It is unfortunate that you were unable to attend the Identification, Placement and Review Committee meeting that was held on (insert date). During this meeting, the Committee identified (insert student's name) as having a (insert exceptionality). We also discussed the best placement and program options for your child.

The IPRC Statement of Decision is attached for you to review. Your consent with the decisions made regarding your child's identification and placement is required. If you are in agreement with the information provided on the IPRC Statement of Decision, please check the appropriate boxes on the second page, then sign and return it to the school in the enclosed envelope by (insert date).

If you do not agree with the identification and placement decided upon at the meeting, please indicate this on the IPRC Statement of Decision by checking the appropriate boxes, signing and returning the form to the school. You may appeal the decision within 15 days of the meeting. All appeals must be sent in writing to the Director of Education.

Should you have any further questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the school at your convenience. We thank you in advance for taking the time to review the IPRC notes enclosed and signing it as required.

Sincerely,

Principal

School



NOTIFICATION OF DECISION

REVIEW IPRC

(Date)

Dear Parents/Guardians,

It is unfortunate that you were unable to attend the Identification, Placement and Review Committee meeting that was held on (insert date). During this meeting, the Committee reviewed the identification and placement for (insert student's name).

The IPRC Statement of Decision is attached for you to review. Your consent with the decisions made regarding your child's placement is required. If you are in agreement with the information provided on the IPRC Statement of Decision, please check the appropriate boxes on the second page, then sign and return it to the school in the enclosed envelope by (insert date).

If you do not agree with the placement decided upon at the meeting, please indicate this on the IPRC Statement of Decision by checking the appropriate boxes, signing and returning the form to the school. You may appeal the decision within 15 days of the meeting. All appeals must be sent in writing to the Director of Education.

Should you have any further questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the school at your convenience. We thank you in advance for taking the time to review the IPRC notes enclosed and signing it as required.

Sincerely,

Principal

School



REVIEWING THE IEP IN PREPARATION FOR IPRC

This form and the review of the IEP is to be done by the classroom teacher, and any other teacher responsible for a modified subject matter on the IEP.

- Step 1: Review the **strengths and needs** listed on the front page of the IEP. List changes you would like to see made to these on the bottom of this page.
- Step 2: Go through each of the accommodations listed on the IEP. Check off those that have been useful, and scratch out those that have not worked.
- Step 3: Go through each of the subject pages. Check off those **expectations** that have been covered, including those you expect to cover by the end of June. Again, check off those **teaching and assessment strategies** that have been useful. Scratch off those that have not worked, and add any new strategies you have used.
- Step 4: If the child is going to be in Grade 3 or 6 next year, make arrangements regarding exemption/ accommodations that will be needed for the Provincial Testing on the bottom of this form.
- Step 5: Complete this form and submit it with the IEP to the resource teacher prior to the IPRC meeting.

Name of Student:

Current Grade:

Name of Teacher:

| Has | s the s | tudent a | achieved most of the expectations listed on the IEP? |
|----------------------------|---------|----------|---|
| Program | Yes | No | If yes, is the child ready for the next grade level expectations? List level needed. |
| Reading | | | |
| Writing | | | |
| Mathematics | | | |
| Alternative Programming | | | |

| If no, explain why the program needs to continue at the current level. |
|---|
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| List a few accomplishments. |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| What has worked well for the child this year? |
| which has worked wer for the enhalting year. |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP? |
| What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP? |
| What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP? |
| What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP? |
| What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP? |
| What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP? |
| What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP? |
| What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP? |
| What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP? |
| |
| |
| What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP? Do you have any recommendations for next year? (EQAO Accommodations/Exemption) |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| Do you have any recommendations for next year? (EQAO Accommodations/Exemption) |
| |
| Do you have any recommendations for next year? (EQAO Accommodations/Exemption) |
| Do you have any recommendations for next year? (EQAO Accommodations/Exemption) |
| Do you have any recommendations for next year? (EQAO Accommodations/Exemption) |
| Do you have any recommendations for next year? (EQAO Accommodations/Exemption) |
| Do you have any recommendations for next year? (EQAO Accommodations/Exemption) |
| Do you have any recommendations for next year? (EQAO Accommodations/Exemption) |
| Do you have any recommendations for next year? (EQAO Accommodations/Exemption) |



INDIVIDUAL EDUCATION PLAN

PARENT CONSULTATION FORM

Each year, we ask parents/guardians to offer their insight into their child's strengths, needs, and focus areas for the school year. The educational priorities you identify are important to your child's overall learning experience. Your input also helps us to develop an Individual Education Plan (IEP) that responds to your child's needs and abilities. Please take some time to complete the following information and return this form to the school by (insert date).

| Name of Student: | | Grade: |
|---|--|--------------------------------|
| Name of Parent/Guardian: | | Date: |
| What are your child's strengths in school? | | |
| What are your child's areas of need in school? | | |
| Does your child have any behaviours that are of concern to you? If yes, please describe. | | |
| What do you think the main areas of focus should be for your child this year? | | |
| Other information that may be relevant to your child's IEP. | | |
| Thank you for helping us to | develop an Individual Education Plan that We value and appreciate your input. | is appropriate for your child. |



REVIEWING THE IEP FOR NON-IDENTIFIED STUDENTS

| This form ar for a modifi | | | | e IEP is to be done by the classroom teacher, and any other teacher responsible on the IEP. |
|--|-----------------|---------|---------------------------------|--|
| | | | - | hs and needs listed on the front page of the IEP. List changes you would like se on the bottom of this page. |
| | | - | | the accommodations listed on the IEP. Check off those that have been useful, ose that have not worked. |
| ii | nclud Issess | ing the | ose yo <mark>strate</mark> j | of the subject pages. Check off those expectations that have been covered, u expect to cover by the end of June. Again, check off those teaching and gies that have been useful. Scratch off those that have not worked, and add you have used. |
| | | | | to be in Grade 3 or 6 next year, make arrangements regarding exemption/ hat will be needed for the Provincial Testing on the bottom of this form. |
| Step 5: C | Compl | lete th | is form | and submit it with the IEP to the resource teacher prior to the IPRC meeting. |
| Name of Stu | | : _ | | |
| Current Gra | | - | | |
| | | | | |
| Has the student achieved most of the expectations listed on the IEP? | | | | |
| Program | n de la | Yes | No | If yes, is the child ready for the next grade level expectations? List level needed. |
| Reading | | | | |
| Writing | | | | |
| Mathemat | ics | | | |
| Alternativ Programm | - | | | |

If no, explain why the program needs to continue at the current level.

List a few accomplishments.

What has worked well for the child this year?

What areas need improvement? Are there any areas that are not already addressed on the IEP?

Do you have any recommendations for next year? (EQAO Accommodations/Exemption)

Other comments, concerns or suggestions.



| RESOURCE TEA | ACHER REPORT | |
|-----------------------------|--------------|--------------------------|
| STUDENT INFORMATION | 11. 日本市 行机 | |
| School: | Year: | Term: |
| | Grade: | Frequency: |
| LEARNING OBJECTIVES | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| READING STRATEGIES | | |
| | | - |
| | | 1 |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| SOUND AWARENESS / WORD WORK | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| READING RESPONSE | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| SIGNATURES | | LE COMPANY AND AND AND A |
| Resource Teacher: | Principal: | |



MATH INTERVENTION RESOURCE REPORT

STUDENT INFORMATION

| School: | Year: | Term: |
|-----------------------|--------|------------|
| Student: | Grade: | Frequency: |
| LEARNING EXPECTATIONS | | |

STUDENT PROGRESS REPORT

NEXT STEPS

| | _ |
|------------|---|
| SIGNATURES | |



REQUEST FOR SEA EQUIPMENT/TECHNOLOGY

STUDENT INFORMATION

Student Name:

Date of Birth (DD/MM/YY):

School:

EQUIPMENT REQUIRED

TECHNOLOGY REQUIRED

| SOFTWARE RE | EQUIRED | | Board Licensed | Purchased |
|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------|--|-----------|
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Requested by: | | Date: | | |
| FOR STUDENT | SERVICES USE ONLY | | 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1 | |
| Account: | □ 10-552-1-000-153 | □ 10-551-1-000-153 | | |
| Documentation: | | | | |
| Date of Verificat | ion: | Verified by: | | |

FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY Order Complete: Yes No **Explanation:** New Build □ Reassignment **Explanation of Reassignment:**

| Order Completed By: |
|---------------------|
|---------------------|

Date of Completion:

Grade:



SUMMARY OF CASE CONFERENCE

STUDENT INFORMATION

| Student's | Name: | Date: |
|-----------|---------------------------------|------------|
| School: | | Principal: |
| Teacher: | | Grade: |
| IN ATT | ENDANCE | |
| | Parents | |
| | Principal | |
| | Teacher(s) | |
| | Agency/ Advocates | |
| | Resource Teacher | |
| | SAT: Special Education Services | |
| | Superintendent | |
| | Child & Youth Worker | |
| | Educational Assistant | |
| | Other | |

REASONS FOR CASE CONFERENCE

Describe the reason(s) why the case conference has been scheduled.

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

RECOMMENDATIONS / FOLLOW-UP

SIGNATURES

Principal:

Parent:

Parent:

Distribution: check off those that apply

| Parents | SAT: Special Education Services |
|-------------------|---------------------------------|
| Principal | Superintendent |
| Teacher(s) | Child & Youth Worker |
| Agency/ Advocates | Educational Assistant |
| Resource Teacher | Other |



ONTARIO STUDENT RECORDS STUDENT SERVICES INFORMATION

2021-2022 School Year

Student Name:

Exceptionality:

DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED

| IPRC Statement of Decision | Individual Education Plan (IEP) |
|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|
| Referral Information | Behaviour Management Plan |
| Occupational Therapy Report | Child & Youth Worker Report |
| Speech & Language Report | Case Conference Notes |
| Physiotherapy Report | Medical Information |
| Audiology Report | Other: |
| Psychological Assessment Report | Date of Report: |



ONTARIO STUDENT RECORDS

ORDER FOR ORGANIZATION IN THE DOCUMENTATION FILE

- 1. Cover Page: school year, student name, exceptionality, date of the most recent Psychological Assessment Report
- 2. Statement of Decision for the most recent IPRC
- 3. Individual Education Plans for the whole academic school year. (If two-sided copies can be made that would be helpful this would help reduce the overall size of the OSR.)
- 4. Psychological Report (to be moved up every year with a small "flag" to confirm the student's exceptionality)
- 5. Agency reports (filed together with the most recent report on top not necessary to keep all of the progress notes for OT, PT, SLP; most recent only)
- 6. Locally developed intervention program Progress Reports
- 7. Case Conference Notes
- 8. Child & Youth Worker Progress Reports
- 9. EQAO Provincial Assessment Results (filed at the very back of the documentation file)

All information for one academic school year is to be stapled at the end of every school year.

Reminders:

- A tracking sheet is to be updated annually to reflect the placement and identification of the student based on the most recent IPRC.
- Custody information is always the first document, left loose, in the Documentation File.
- Copy and file all documentation relating to the IPRC process. The letter to parents/ guardians if they missed the meeting and keep the "unsigned" copy of the Statement of Decision until a signed copy is returned.
- School-Based Assessment folders are to be stored outside of the OSR in a separate filing system accessible to teaching staff.

Only Violent Incident Reports are to be kept in the OSR, and suspension notices are to be filed in a separate location. Suspension notices can be, at the principal's discretion, forwarded to another school (feeder schools to OICS, for example).



OSR Tracking Sheet for the

Identification, Placement and Review Committee

| ne of Student: | | Date of Birth | 1: | | |
|----------------|----------------|-------------------|-----------|----------|--------|
| | | INITIAL IPRC | | | |
| Date | Exceptionality | | Placement | | School |
| | | | | | |
| | REVIE | WS AND DISPENSATI | ONS | | |
| Date | Exceptionality | Placement | Review | Dispense | School |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | - <u>12</u> 2 | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |



CONSENT FOR ASSESSMENT

Educational/ Psychological/ Speech & Language

(Date)

Dear Parents/Guardians,

In order that we may better understand the academic needs of your child, we are recommending that (he/she) participates in assessment strategies. This assessment will be carried out in accordance with School Board and Ministry of Education regulations by a trained and qualified school board personnel and/or contracted partners. At this time, your permission is requested for the following assessments:

- School-based assessments (by NCDSB personnel)
- **STEP initial assessment (by NCDSB personnel)**
- Psychological assessments (by NCDSB contracted psychologist)
- Speech and Language assessments (by NCDSB contracted Speech and Language Pathologist)

The results of this assessment will be shared with you as well as stored in your child's Ontario School Record. The results are confidential and cannot be given to anyone else without your consent. It is understood that you may, at your expense, seek other assessment services from other gualified professionals not contracted by the School Board.

Please give your consent by signing the form below. This consent will cover all assessments completed over the (insert current school year) school year. Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the school.

Sincerely,

Principal

School

Please be advised that assessments are scheduled for (insert date). Therefore, consent and forms must be completed as soon as possible.

CONSENT FOR ASSESSMENT

| Stud | ent | Name: | |
|------|-----|-------|--|
| | | | |

Parent/Guardian's Signature:

I give permission for my child to be assessed as marked above.

I do not give permission for my child to be assessed.

Date:

Note to school: A copy of this authorization must be copied and issued to the parent/guardian. The original is filed in the OSR.



PREPARATION CHECKLIST FOR PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT

RESOURCE TEACHER LIST OF ACTIONS

- □ The parents/guardians are aware of the assessment.
- □ The Consent for Psychological Assessment has been sent home to the parents/guardians. This information must be available to the psychologist/ associate in advance of the scheduled assessment.

Copies of the following documents have been placed in a file with the student's name:

- □ The consent form & NCDSB referral package
- □ The results of the WIAT
- □ The current Individual Education Plan
- □ Evidence of intervention strategies outlined in referral package
- Any school-based assessment BAT, BAS, All About Numbers, Key Math, etc.
- A copy of the most recent report card
- □ A copy of the last psychological report, if applicable
- □ A copy of the most recent agency reports and recent progress notes (OT, PT, Speech), if applicable
- **Copies of behaviour logs, if applicable**
- □ Medical notes, if applicable/relevant
- □ The Ontario Student Record is available to the psychologist
- □ The classroom teacher is aware that his/her student will undergo a psychological assessment. The classroom teacher is aware that the psychologist may need to speak with him/her regarding the student being reviewed.
- A separate space is reserved within the school so that the psychologist and/or his/her associate have a room to conduct the assessments.
- □ You have a small basket of healthy snacks, water, and such for the assessor and the student, if needed. Costs associated with the purchase of these items are to be reimbursed by the school.



School Support Program-Autism Spectrum Disorder

Request for Service Form

| Date of Request: | Principal: | | | |
|---|-------------------|--|--|--|
| Person Requesting: | Email: | | | |
| School Board: | Board Contact: | | | |
| School: | Email: | | | |
| School Address: | Teacher: | | | |
| School Phone: | Email: | | | |
| School Fax: | Resource Teacher: | | | |
| Diagnosis: | Email: | | | |
| Student Name: | Grade: | | | |
| (please indicate the requested service) | | | | |

Training 🔲 Transition Support 🗆 General Consultation 🖵

Student Specific Consultation (please obtain attached parent consent)

The School Support Program provides training and consultation on a variety of topics related to educating students with a diagnosis on the autism spectrum (e.g., transition plans, self-monitoring strategies, increasing student motivation, social skills training etc.). Please check the boxes that most apply to the reason for the referral:

| Challenging Behaviour | Resource Development | | Communication |
|-----------------------|-------------------------------|---|-----------------------|
| Curriculum | 🛛 On Task Behaviour | | Visual Aids |
| Self-Awareness | D Peer Awareness | ۵ | Organizational Skills |
| Independence | Social Thinking/Social Skills | | Functional skills |
| Other: | | | |

Process

- Please send the completed form to your Special Ed. Coordinator who will then send the completed form to (705) 753-4464 or scan to SSP-ASD@ handstfhn.ca
- Page 2 needs to be filled only when requesting a student specific consultation
- When requesting student specific consultation please ensure to include the signed and witnessed parental consent to exchange information
- Once the completed Request for Service form is signed and received by Hands, an SSP-ASD Consultant will contact the family to explain and sign the Understanding of the Provision of Service form.

| This Section to be completed | by Hands TheFamily HelpNetowork.ca | |
|------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|
| Date Received: | | |

Please have parent complete the following in order for the Consultant to contact the family in regards to the Understanding of the Provision of Service:

| Home address: |
|----------------------|
|----------------------|

| Street: | Telephone # home: |
|---|----------------------|
| P.O. Box: | Telephone # work: |
| City: | Other #'s (specify): |
| Postal code: | Email: |
| If addresses are different, please indicate both homes: | Same as above |
| Street: | Telephone # home: |
| P.O. Box: | Telephone # work: |
| City: | Other #'s (specify): |
| Postal code: | Email: |
| | |

My signature indicates that:

- I am supportive of a referral to Hands TheFamilyHelpNetwork.ca.
- The above written reason for referral is accurate and has been explained to me.

- I give permission for this information to be shared with Hands TheFamilyHelpNetwork.ca.
- I understand that Hands TheFamilyHelpNetwork.ca will create a paper and electronic file.

• Hands TheFamilyHelpNetwork.ca may contact me in the future for research and evaluation purposes or to share agency related information.

• I understand that Hands TheFamilyHelpNetwork.ca will contact me directly to explain and sign the Understanding of the Provision of Service form.

Parent/Guardian/Client (if capable)

Date_

Referral Source _____



CONSENT TO EXCHANGE INFORMATION

| I,, hereby give consent to Hands – Name of Client/Parent/Guardian |
|--|
| TheFamilyHelpNetwork.ca to release to/or request from |
| information pertaining to |
| The information that shall be disclosed will consist of the following: |
| 1. 2. 3. |
| for the purpose of : |
| |
| This consent shall remain in effect from this date until the purpose for which the information was disclosed has been achieved but no longer than one year from the date of my consent. It is understood that I can revoke this agreement at any time either verbally or in writing. |
| Signature – Client 12 years of age or older |
| Signature Parent/Guardian(s) |
| Signature of Witness |
| DATED THE OF, 20, YEAR . |
| EXPIRY DATE: (maximum of one year) OF, 20 |

Instructions for Completion of the "Consent to Exchange Information" form

- 1. Authorization must be in writing and contain the signature of the subject(s) of the information, or the legal representative or guardian of the subject(s), as well as the signature of a witness. One person may witness more than one signature.
- 2. The service provider may serve as a witness.
- 3. All individuals are considered capable of making a decision and giving consent unless determined otherwise in a capacity assessment.
- 4. The following guidelines may be helpful:
 - a) persons aged 16 or over may be presumed capable of authorizing the release of confidential information about themselves, unless there are reasonable grounds to question this presumption;
 - b) authorization for the release of confidential information about persons under the age of 16 (with the three following exceptions) must be obtained from a custodial parent or legal guardian;
 - c) children 12 years of age or older who receive services under Section 28 of the CFSA (i.e., without parental consent) must authorize release of confidential information about themselves obtained during the provision of services under that Section;
 - confidential information should not be released about children under the age of 16 who object to the release and who are deemed capable with regard to the release decision;
 - children under the age of 16 who request, on their own behalf, release of confidential information about themselves may authorize such release if they are deemed capable of doing so.
- 5. It is necessary to obtain authorization from all capable persons currently 16 or older before releasing their confidential information, regardless of their age at the time of service or their relationship to the client.
- 6. Only information generated within Hands TheFamilyHelpNetwork.ca, or on behalf of Hands TheFamilyHelpNetwork.ca by a contractor (e.g. telepsychiatry consultation notes), will be released. Psychological Assessments may only be released with permission from a member of the psychology team. Information from other agencies or service providers must be obtained directly from that agency.
- 7. Information that refers to a third party cannot be released without the permission of that third party. Any third party information will be removed from the material being requested if that third party permission is not received.
- 8. Authorization to release confidential information does not prevent the withholding of information that is judged likely to result in serious harm to the treatment or recovery of the client, or serious physical or serious emotional harm to another person. Absence of authorization does not prevent the release of information for the purpose of reporting that a child is or may be in need of protection.
- 9. Please identify as precisely as possible the purpose of the disclosure (e.g., "treatment planning," "assessment," "co-ordination of services") and the nature of the confidential information to be disclosed (e.g., "all relevant information," "intake information only," "psychological assessment report," "summary of service")

| Northeastern Catholic District | | | |
|---|-------------------------------------|--|--|
| STUDENT HE | EALTH PLAN | | |
| STUDENT INFORMATION | | | |
| Student Name: | School: | | |
| Exceptionality (if any): | School Year: | | |
| Health / Medical Condition | | | |
| | | | |
| Provision of Care | | | |
| | | | |
| Location of Supplies & Equipment | A CONTRACT MARY OF STREET OF STREET | | |
| | _ | | |
| Daily Instructions & Communications | | | |
| | | | |
| Emergency Evacuation & Shelter in Place | | | |
| | | | |
| Principal's Signature: | Date: | | |
| Parent's Signature: | Date: | | |

Note to School:A copy of this plan must be stored in the Emergency Preparedness Binder.The original is filed in the OSR, and a copy is distributed to the parents.



STUDENT SAFETY PLAN

| | Aug. 4. (1997) | the set of the set of the set of the | and the second se |
|------|----------------|--------------------------------------|---|
| TUDE | NT IN | JFORN | ATION |

| STUDENT INFORMATIO | N | | | |
|--|----------------|----------------|---------|--|
| Student Name: | | School: | | |
| Exceptionality (if any): | | School Year: | | |
| Plan is created due to a Health/Med | dical Concern? | Yes 🗆 No | | |
| Health/Medical Condition: Documentation is attached | es 🗆 No | | | |
| Priority Area of Concern | Symptoms | / Look Fors | Actions | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Procedures for Emergency | Evacuation & | Shelter in Pla | ace | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Principal's Signature: | | Date: | | |
| Parent's Signature: | | Date: | | |

A copy of this plan must be stored in the Emergency Preparedness Binder. Note to School: The original is filed in the OSR.


EARLY YEARS INFORMATION

STUDENT INFORMATION

| Student's LEGAL Name: | Surname | First Nar | ne | Middle Name |
|------------------------|-------------|----------------|----------|----------------|
| Date of Birth (DD/MM/Y | Y): | Age: Grade: | | Gender: 🖾 Male |
| Student Address: | | Town/City: | | |
| Postal Code: | Home Phone: | | Cell Pho | one: |

Purpose: As a parent/caregiver, your feedback is important in helping the school carefully plan to meet the academic, social, and emotional needs of your child. Use the items listed below to guide your feedback. **Directions**: Read each item and check the column (No, Uncertain, Yes) on the right that best applies to your child.

| LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT | | | |
|--|------|-----------|-----|
| Does your child | No | Uncertain | Yes |
| 1. name 5 colours when requested? | | | |
| name parts of the body (thumb, fingernails, chin, chest, elbows, shoulders) when pointed to? | | | |
| 3. answer where and when questions? | | | |
| 4. follows directions when given orally? | | | ļ |
| 5. speak in complete sentences? | | | |
| ACADEMIC SKILLS | NT-C | 雪茶的 [1] | |
| Can your child | No | Uncertain | Yes |
| 6. tell others his/her first and last name? | | | |
| 7. tell others his/her age? | | | |
| 8. recognize his/her name in print? | | | |
| 9. count? | | | |
| 10. match numbers to objects? | | | |
| PHYSICAL DEVELOPMENT | | | |
| Can your child | No | Uncertain | Yes |
| 11. stand on one foot and other foot for 10 seconds? | | | |
| 12. draw pictures that are recognizable? | | | |
| 13. draw a picture of a person with head, legs, ears, arms and trunk? | | | |
| 14. successfully complete arts and crafts activities that are appropriate for his/her age? | | | |
| 15. hold a pencil correctly? | | | |
| 16. appear to have good physical health and stamina? | | | |
| 17. appear to be free of physical / mental conditions or problems that might cause a need for special services? | | | |

| SELF-HELP SKILLS | | | | | |
|--|--|---------------|----------|----------------|------|
| Does your child | 131 I.H. 14 K.H. | | No | Uncertain | Yes |
| 18. dress himself/herself? | ······································ | | | | |
| 19. need help with toileting? | | | | | |
| 20. know which shoe goes on which for | pt? | Ĩ | | | |
| 21. eat without assistance? | | | | | |
| 22. request help as needed? | | | | | |
| SOCIAL & EMOTIONAL DEVEL | OPMENT | | | i Lenizri i | |
| Does your child | | | No | Uncertain | Yes |
| 23. usually react to disappointment an | d failure in an acceptable manner? | | | | |
| 24. usually share and take turns willing | ily? | | | | |
| 25. willingly play cooperatively in a large | ge group activity or game? | | | | |
| 26. show concern for using materials s | afely and appropriately? | | | | |
| 27. usually make an effort to solve pro | blems before seeking help? | | | | |
| 28. usually continue a task until compl | | | | | |
| 29. usually transition appropriately fro | <u>.</u> | | | | |
| 30. usually ask before using another ch | hild's toy or things? | | | | |
| CHILD BEHAVIOURS | | | 1 | | |
| Does your child experience difficulty with | any of the following? | | | | |
| □ Attention span □ |] Nightmares | Getting | along | with others | |
| |] Shyness | 🛛 Со-оре | rating | with adults | |
| 8 | | Tempe | | | |
| 0 | | Separat | tion and | xiety | |
| Name of the second difference of the second di | Aggression | | | ALC: NOT THE | |
| COMMUNITY AGENCY INVOLV | | | | | |
| During your child's preschool years, has t | | | | | 11 |
| Temiskaming Resource Center, Porcupine | Health Unit, Community Care Access | Center) tha | at may a | affect the way | that |
| your child is taught? □ No □ Yes If Yes: | | | | | |
| Agency: | | | | | |
| Comments: | | | | | |
| Agency: | | | | | |
| Comments: | | | | | |
| On a waiting list (name of agency): | | | | | |
| Does your child show any other behavior | s that you feel may be cause for conce | rn in the cla | assroor | n? | |
| □ No □ Yes If yes, please describe | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| OTHER INFORMATION | | | | | |
| Is there any other information you would | like us to know about your child? | | | | |
| | • | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Signature of Parent/Guardian: | | Date | | | |

NCDSB Entry Plan for Students with Special Needs

Some students with special education needs, who are newly registered, but are not yet attending a Northeastern Catholic District School Board school may require special education support upon enrolment. The appropriate educational program and level of support will be determined by the Principal in consultation with members of the school support team, and the Special Assignment Teacher for Student Services.

| Entry Plan for Students with Special Education Needs | Person Responsible | Timeline |
|--|---|--|
| Child is pre-registered (paper registration) in the home school by address as early as possible in the year prior to the year of school entry. | Home School Parent/Guardian | Up to 6 months prior to attending school where possible for FDK students. Ongoing and throughout the year for all other students. |
| The school welcomes the family and supports the family throughout the pre-registration and, where appropriate, contacts the board SAT for Student Services if additional supports, guidance and/or equipment are required. | Home School Principal | Ongoing |
| If required, a Transition Planning Case Conference will occur to address the special needs and requirements that a student may have on school entry. Parents/Guardians and agency staff as appropriate may be involved. | Receiving School SAT for Student Services School-Based Team | As soon as possible and ongoing |
| Parents/Guardians are given the Guide to Special Education for Parents/Guardians. | Home School | As soon as possible |
| Parents/Guardians provide the school with pertinent documentation with consents (as appropriate) to confer with outside agencies and/or previous school. | Parent/Guardian | As soon as possible |
| The Principal informs the SAT for Student Services if a specialized program/placement is required and consultation with the Superintendent follows. A school visit may be required to determine the most appropriate level of support needed for the particular student. | Principal SAT for Student Services Superintendent | As soon as possible |
| A decision is made as to the program that will be offered to the student, and this information is shared by the Principal to the school-based team, and to the family. | Receiving School SAT for Student Services School-Based Team | As soon as possible |
| The Resource Teacher at the school, along with the Classroom Teacher completes additional educational assessments, and intervention programs are put in place as needed. The results of additional assessments are shared with parents. | Resource Teacher Classroom Teacher | Once the child has been enrolled |
| An Individual Education Plan is created in consultation with the parents which outlines the strengths and needs of the student, along with the collected assessment information, appropriate curriculum expectations, and accommodation and/or modifications to the regular classroom programming. The IEP is provided to parents and is filed in the student's OSR. | Resource Teacher Classroom Teacher | After 30 school days, and throughout the year at board consistent intervals |



EARLY IDENTIFICATION STUDENT PROFILE

Student Information

| orducine informati | O II | And a second | | |
|--|-------------------|--|--|--|
| Student's LEGAL Name: | Surname | Firs | t Name | Middle Name |
| Date of Birth (DD/MM/YY) | : | Date of Ent | ry to School: | |
| Early Screening | | | | Section of |
| RT Administered Test | S. L. Brand | Dec. FDK Y | ear 2 | Dec. Grade 1 |
| Brigance Early Childhood S | creen III – K & 1 | /100 | | /100 |
| Classroom Teacher Admin | istered Test | June JK | June SK | June Grade 1 |
| Teacher School Readiness | ndex | /25 | /25 | /25 |
| Behaviour Index | | /15 | /15 | /15 |
| Next Steps: If a student is or then the following screening be administered. | | should not require ongoing support – not at risk requires monitoring in the next grade – has not met expectations – at risk has been referred to the School-Based Team for further testing – at risk | should not require ongoing support – not at risk requires monitoring in the next grade – has not met expectations – at risk has been referred to the School-Based Team for further testing – at risk | should not require ongoing support - not at risk requires monitoring in the next grade - has not met expectations - at risk has been referred to the School-Based Team for further testing - at risk |

Literacy Screen

| The second | 11132-0 | Test | June SK | June Grade 1 | June Grade 2 |
|--------------------|---------|----------------------------------|---------|--------------|--------------|
| Oral Language S | Scree | า | /15 | /15 | /15 |
| Concepts About | t Prinf | t | /11 | /11 | /11 |
| Letter Recognit | ion – | Upper Case | /26 | /26 | /26 |
| Letter Recognit | ion – | Lower Case | /26 | /26 | /26 |
| Letter Sound Co | orresp | ondence | /26 | /26 | /26 |
| | Wo | rd Level | /10 | /10 | /10 |
| Phonological | Syll | able Level | /15 | /15 | /15 |
| Awareness | Ons | set/ Rime Level | /15 | /15 | /15 |
| | Pho | neme Level | /10 | /10 | /10 |
| | 25 | High Frequency Word Test - FDK | /25 | /25 | /25 |
| Word | 50 | High Frequency Word Test – FDK/1 | /50 | /50 | /50 |
| Knowledge | 100 | High Frequency Word Test – Gr. 1 | /100 | /100 | /100 |
| | F & | P Word Features List – Gr. 1 | /30 | /30 | /30 |
| Numeracy | y So | creens | | | |
| | | Test | October | Mid-Year | June |
| | | All About Numbers FDK Year 1 | /12 | /12 | /12 |
| All Aliante Blumet | | All About Numbers FDK Year 2 | /16 | /16 | /16 |
| All About Numb | bers | All About Numbers Grade 1 | /16 | /16 | /16 |

All About Numbers Grade 2



TEACHER'S SCHOOL READINESS INVENTORY (TSRI)

Test Background & Description

- Specifically designed to help teachers make sound intervention decisions for students who are at risk for failure in the development of reading skills.
- Teachers play a significant role in the initial task of early intervention.
- Checklists and inventories are efficient and easy to administer.
- The items that are assessed on the TSRI have a direct relationship to a child's performance at school. It only takes about 5 minutes to administer, and although brief, can provide invaluable insight into predicted child performance.
- Same person should administer to all students.
- TSRI was validated in a research program involving nearly 600 children for periods of up to 3 years it represents a longitudinal study that was well designed.
- Research outcome indicated an 80% validity rate by the end of Grade 2.
- TSRI is intended for use in the spring term of either the Junior or Senior Kindergarten year (reflects the conditions upon which the test was normed).

Test Item Description

Teachers should become familiar with the following information before they use the inventory.

Item 1: In-class Distractibility, Attention Span and Memory Span

- Be alert to whether the student is easily distracted, especially during periods of instruction.
- Note whether the student has a poor memory for detail as well as for the general content of the material presented in class.
- Observe whether the student has trouble remembering instructions, and must be reminded to complete assignments in class or take work home.

Item 2: Verbal Fluency

- Does the student use poor verbal fluency in that you notice imprecise or vague words when he/she is speaking (not referring to grammar)?
- Are ideas, situations, or events described by the student obscure or difficult to understand in spite of repeated requests for additional information?
- Student may gesture and avoid using words altogether.
- A student with good verbal fluency uses language that makes use of concrete information which is presented sequentially and accurately.
- Making individual spontaneous conversation tapes of each student at each reporting period creates an auditory record over time to be taken home at the end of the school year, or passed on to the next teacher to continue tracking language growth in this manner.

The remainder of the items on the TSRI are more readily observed in concrete ways.

Item 3: Interest and Participation

- Observe and track enthusiasm, interest, and eagerness to participate in normal classroom activities.
- Note those in which a student demonstrates high levels of motivation and the degree of effort, detail, and skill produced. High motivation and interest captures an intangible set of skills.

- The performance portfolio documents and, if the items are dated over time, tracks both skills progressions and products which reflect waning interest, diminished product quality, etc.
- Many good associations and inferences can be made through keen observation and tracking in determining personal targets and next steps.

Item 4: Letter Identification Skills

• Note the student's in-class performance. If there is sufficient opportunity to make proper in-class observations, or if the teacher feels uncomfortable assigning a rating based solely on the student's inclass performance, than more formalized testing may be helpful (ex. letters on a flash card).

Item 5: Printing Skills

- Analysis of errors or miscues will reflect the developmental stage at which the student is positioned.
- Errors such as a backwards "3", drawn in place of a "S", or a capital "E" containing four or more horizontal lines, or the letter "K" resembling the lower case "h" are form errors. These errors involve the addition, deletion, or misalignment of parts of a letter leading to a marked distortion in the overall shape or form of the intended letter or number. When an excessive number of form errors appear in writing samples obtained from 5 or 6 year old children, then this can be an important early warning sign of later school failure.

Assessment and Rating

- A rating system ranging from 1 to 5 was assigned to each of the subtests and represents successive approximations of ability to order a sample at 5.
- Technical considerations include: understanding the significance of the cutoff score; learning to distinguish the "true positives" from the "false positives"; becoming familiar with the cutoff scores which are crucial to making reasonable inferences about who is at risk for failure.
- The TSRI total score ranges from 5 to 25, and the cutoff scores assist in placing the student in a range where at-risk odds are predictable. The approximate odds of being at risk for failure are given for different ranges of scores below the cutoffs.
- Teachers must be careful that low scores are not associated with lowering expectations for those students who have achieved them. To do so would have a negative impact on the student's performance in responding to intervention strategies.
- Teachers need to continue to have high expectations for all students, and pair these high expectations with a positive outlook for present responding and future performance.

Teacher's School Readiness Inventory (TSRI) Behaviour Appendix

Many school screening measures incorporate behavioural and emotional facets. Since the TSRI does not include any behavioural items that can interfere with academic functioning we have developed a behavioural appendix to accompany the TSRI. This behavioural appendix has the same scoring features as the TSRI, that is, a 5 point rating system, with lower scores indicating more serious behavioural concerns. The three different behaviours that are included involve externalizing behavioural problems; i.e. opposition and defiance as well as verbal and physical aggression.

Suggested cut-offs for behaviourally at-risk scores are:

| | Higher Risk | Lower Risk |
|----|-------------|------------|
| JK | 3-9 | 10-12 |
| SK | 3-6 | 7-10 |



TEACHER'S SCHOOL READINESS INVENTORY (TSRI)

Test Background & Description

- Specifically designed to help teachers make sound intervention decisions for students who are at risk for failure in the development of reading skills.
- Teachers play a significant role in the initial task of early intervention.
- Checklists and inventories are efficient and easy to administer.
- The items that are assessed on the TSRI have a direct relationship to a child's performance at school. It only takes about 5 minutes to administer, and although brief, can provide invaluable insight into predicted child performance.
- Same person should administer to all students.
- TSRI was validated in a research program involving nearly 600 children for periods of up to 3 years it represents a longitudinal study that was well designed.
- Research outcome indicated an 80% validity rate by the end of Grade 2.
- TSRI is intended for use in the spring term of either the Junior or Senior Kindergarten year (reflects the conditions upon which the test was normed).

Test Item Description

Teachers should become familiar with the following information before they use the inventory.

Item 1: In-class Distractibility, Attention Span and Memory Span

- Be alert to whether the student is easily distracted, especially during periods of instruction.
- Note whether the student has a poor memory for detail as well as for the general content of the material presented in class.
- Observe whether the student has trouble remembering instructions, and must be reminded to complete assignments in class or take work home.

Item 2: Verbal Fluency

- Does the student use poor verbal fluency in that you notice imprecise or vague words when he/she is speaking (not referring to grammar)?
- Are ideas, situations, or events described by the student obscure or difficult to understand in spite of repeated requests for additional information?
- Student may gesture and avoid using words altogether.
- A student with good verbal fluency uses language that makes use of concrete information which is presented sequentially and accurately.
- Making individual spontaneous conversation tapes of each student at each reporting period creates an auditory record over time to be taken home at the end of the school year, or passed on to the next teacher to continue tracking language growth in this manner.

The remainder of the items on the TSRI are more readily observed in concrete ways.

Item 3: Interest and Participation

- Observe and track enthusiasm, interest, and eagerness to participate in normal classroom activities.
- Note those in which a student demonstrates high levels of motivation and the degree of effort, detail, and skill produced. High motivation and interest captures an intangible set of skills.

- The performance portfolio documents and, if the items are dated over time, tracks both skills
 progressions and products which reflect waning interest, diminished product quality, etc.
- Many good associations and inferences can be made through keen observation and tracking in determining personal targets and next steps.

Item 4: Letter Identification Skills

Note the student's in-class performance. If there is sufficient opportunity to make proper in-class
observations, or if the teacher feels uncomfortable assigning a rating based solely on the student's inclass performance, than more formalized testing may be helpful (ex. letters on a flash card).

Item 5: Printing Skills

- Analysis of errors or miscues will reflect the developmental stage at which the student is positioned.
- Errors such as a backwards "3", drawn in place of a "S", or a capital "E" containing four or more horizontal lines, or the letter "K" resembling the lower case "h" are form errors. These errors involve the addition, deletion, or misalignment of parts of a letter leading to a marked distortion in the overall shape or form of the intended letter or number. When an excessive number of form errors appear in writing samples obtained from 5 or 6 year old children, then this can be an important early warning sign of later school failure.

Assessment and Rating

- A rating system ranging from 1 to 5 was assigned to each of the subtests and represents successive approximations of ability to order a sample at 5.
- Technical considerations include: understanding the significance of the cutoff score; learning to distinguish the "true positives" from the "false positives"; becoming familiar with the cutoff scores which are crucial to making reasonable inferences about who is at risk for failure.
- The TSRI total score ranges from 5 to 25, and the cutoff scores assist in placing the student in a range where at-risk odds are predictable. The approximate odds of being at risk for failure are given for different ranges of scores below the cutoffs.
- Teachers must be careful that low scores are not associated with lowering expectations for those students who have achieved them. To do so would have a negative impact on the student's performance in responding to intervention strategies.
- Teachers need to continue to have high expectations for all students, and pair these high expectations with a positive outlook for present responding and future performance.

Teacher's School Readiness Inventory (TSRI) Behaviour Appendix

Many school screening measures incorporate behavioural and emotional facets. Since the TSRI does not include any behavioural items that can interfere with academic functioning we have developed a behavioural appendix to accompany the TSRI. This behavioural appendix has the same scoring features as the TSRI, that is, a 5 point rating system, with lower scores indicating more serious behavioural concerns. The three different behaviours that are included involve externalizing behavioural problems; i.e. opposition and defiance as well as verbal and physical aggression.

Suggested cut-offs for behaviourally at-risk scores are:

| | Higher Risk | Lower Risk | |
|----|-------------|------------|--|
| JK | 3-9 | 10-12 | |
| SK | 3-6 | 7-10 | |



TEACHER'S SCHOOL READINESS INVENTORY

Individual Rating Form

| St | udent Inf | ormation | | | | | |
|----|----------------|--|-------------------|---|--------------------|---|--------|
| St | udent Name: | | | | | DOB: | |
| Sc | hool: | | | Grade | e: | Total Score: | |
| In | struction | S | | | | Jacobia Carlos de Car | |
| • | Record you | r ratings on the | appropriate li | elow, rate the stuc nes in the column ent's total score. | | the following item | S. |
| Te | esting Iten | ns | | | | | Rating |
| 1. | children; doe | | ve difficulty rem | emory span: Is the s nembering and follow I in class? | • | • | |
| | Rating: H | 1 lighly distractible | 2 | З | 4 | 5 very good attention | |
| 2. | | cy: Does the stud ked to describe e | | precise words and o | convey abstract ic | leas reasonably | |
| | Rating: po | 1 por verbal fluency | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 very good fluency | |
| 3. | participate ir | | m activities and | show interest, enth I does the student re | - | | |
| | Rating: Ve | 1 ery unenthusiastic | 2 | 3 5 | 4 | 5 very enthusiastic | |
| 4. | | - | | w many upper-case rs one at a time in ra | | udent name | |
| | Rating: | 1 0 - 15% | 2 about 25% | 3 about 50% | 4 about 75% | 5 85-100% | |
| 5. | does the stud | dent distort the o producing form | verall form of le | student's printing in etters and numbers similar to (or worse | by adding, deletin | ng, or misaligning | |
| | Rating: | 1 Very often | 2 often | 3 occasionally | 4 rarely | 5 never | |



BEHAVIOURAL INVENTORY – APPENDIX TO TSRI Individual Rating Form

Student Information

| Student Name: | | DOB: |
|---------------|---|--------------|
| School: | Grade: | Total Score: |
| | Contraction of the second s | |

Instructions

Complete the following ratings along with the TSRI for each student to provide additional information concerning students' development. Using the five point rating below, rate the student on the following items.

(Note: Total scores for the TSRI should be noted on page 1 and scores for this appendix should be noted on this page only.)

| Те | sting Ite | ems | | | | | Rating |
|----|-----------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---|---|------------------|--------|
| 1. | | irs I: Does the s ite, throw objec | | lly aggress agains | t peers and/or ad | lults (kick, | |
| | Rating: | 1 very often daily | 2 often (2-3 times per week) | 3 occasionally (1 time per week) | 4 rarely (few times per month) | 5 never | |
| 2. | | | student verball e, derogatory re | | peers and/or adu | ilts (threatens, | |
| | Rating: | 1 very often daily | 2 often (2-3 times per week) | 3 occasionally (1 time per week) | 4 rarely (few times per month) | 5 never | |
| 3. | Behaviou | rs III: Does the | student defy au | uthority or oppos | e adult directions | 5? | |
| | Rating: | 1 very often daily | 2 often (2-3 times per week) | 3 occasionally (1 time per week) | 4 rarely (few times per month) | 5 never | |

| eller | FORM ERRORS | Letter Nortor | FORM ERRORS |
|-------|-------------|------------------|------------------|
| B | 6 6 6 8 | 5 | 2893 |
| С | 6500 | น | V V 4 C 4 H |
| D | OCPD | Y. | Үүннч. |
| Ε | ₽ S F | Ζ | 32215 |
| | EF | 2 | 72622 |
| G | CCCC66 | 3 | E S S S S |
| J | UJ | 4 | i i γ |
| K | 12 NFK | 5 | 6523 |
| | 4 L 🔹 🔹 | 6 | 2969 |
| N | Mrv. | 7. | (YSQQ |

| Northeastern Catholic District | | |
|--|-------------------|----------------------------|
| BEHAVIOUR S | UPPORT P | LAN |
| Student Information | | |
| Student Name: | | |
| School: | Grade: | DOB: |
| Identified by IPRC: Exceptionality: Documentation: | | IEP: 🗆 Yes 🗆 No Since: |
| Reason for Behaviour Support Plan | - England | |
| | | |
| Behaviour Support Plan Goals | Electric contra | |
| | | |
| Strategies | | 中國國際和中國國民主要 |
| | | |
| Plan Details | et and the second | A PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF |
| | | |

| | eriod / Plan Review | | 100 |
|--------------------------|--------------------------|----------------|-----|
| From: | То: | Review Date: | |
| School-Based Team M | embers to be Present: | | |
| Other Participants inc | uding Parents/Guardians: | | |
| | | | |
| Signatures | | | |
| Signatures Principal: | | Date: | |
| Principal: | A. | Date: Date: | |
| | 4 | | |
| Principal: Student: | 4 | Date: | |



APPLICATION FOR ADMITTANCE TO A SPECIALIZED CLASSROOM

STUDENT INFORMATION

| Student's LEGAL Name: | Surnam | e | | First Na | me |
|--|---------------------------------------|--------------|----------------|--|-------------------------------------|
| Date of Birth (DD/MM/YY): | | | Age: Grade: | | Gender: O Male O Female |
| Student Address: | | | Town/City: | | |
| Postal Code: | | | Phone Numb | per: | |
| IEP: O Yes O No Since: | Identified by IPRC Exceptionality: | C: O Yes O | No | Relevant M Diagnosis: | ledical Information/ |
| Does the child wear prescrib | ed glasses or hearin | ng aids? | | | |
| Last Vision/Hearing Screeni Vision: Hearing: | ng and/or Assessmo | ent | | | |
| REFERRAL INFOR | MATION | | | | |
| School: | | | Date of Ref | erral: | |
| Referral Source: | | | Relationshi | p to Student: | |
| Student/Guardian is Aware | of Referral? | O Yes O No | Date of Sch | ed Meeting has C ool-Based Meeti | |
| Date Contacted: | | | Date of Cas | e Conference: | |
| By Whom: | | | | ch SBTM/Case Cor ne meeting is requ | nference Notes as evidence ired. |
| PARENT/LEGAL | GUARDIAN II | NFORMAT | ION | | |
| First Parent/ Guardian Surnar | ne: | | First Nan | ne: | |
| Relationship to Student: O | Mother O Father | O Guardian | | Home Phone: | |
| Home Address: | | | | Work Phone: | |
| Town/City: | | Postal Code: | | Cell Phone: | |

| Mailing Address (if different): | |
|---------------------------------|--|
| | |
| | |

Town/City:

| Second Parent/ Guardian | Surname: First Na | | me: | |
|---|--|---|--|---|
| Relationship to Studen | it: O Mother O Father O Guardian | | Home Phone: | |
| Home Address: | me Address: | | | Work Phone: |
| Town/City: | | Postal Code: | | Cell Phone: |
| Mailing Address (if diffe | erent): | | | |
| Town/City: | | | | Postal Code: |
| Custody: O Both Par | rents O Mother O F | ather O Legal | Guardian | O Other |
| REASON FOR | REFERRAL TO S | PECIAL NEEI | DS CLA | ASSROOM |
| Please mulcate why the | e student would benefit fr | | 355100111. | |
| What level of human re | esource support is require | ed for the student to | be succe | ssful? |
| What is the plan to successfully integrate or partially integrate the student into other classrooms for specific subject areas, for ex. art, physical education, etc.? | | | | |
| Will the student be accessing strictly Alternative Expectations, a combination of Ontario Curriculum and Alternative Expectations, or Modified Ontario Curriculum Expectations? Be specific. | | | | |
| Does the student require specialized supports? (medication, mobility assistance, lifting/positioning, toileting, catheterization, feeding, OT, PT, SLP, etc.). Be specific about support and frequency. | | | | |
| CHECKLIST OF | CONCERNS (list | t primary concern | s only) | |
| Cognitive O struggles to comprehence O has poor short-term mere O has poor long-term mere O struggles to understand a O uses problem solving strate O generally seems to learn Perceptual Motor O has poor visual perception O has poor auditory perception O has poor handwriting/perception O has poor handwriting/perception | mory skills nory skills and follow directions ategies inefficiently slowly ption on enmanship | O gives up O is easily O demons O steals th O avoids o O fails to O present O is social O has nun O has limi | frustrated strates low in hings doing work in do homewor s with low se ly isolated fr herous physi ted social pe | nterest in school work n class rk elf-esteem |

| O has poor gross motor coordination | O shows anger quickly/aggressive behaviour |
|--|---|
| O has poor fine motor coordination | O is uncooperative |
| | O is upset by changes in routine |
| Speech/Language/Academic | O asks questions constantly |
| O has difficulty with oral language | O requires more support than most peers |
| O has difficulty with written expression | O requires constant supervision |
| O has a limited vocabulary | O seeks attention constantly |
| O has poor math calculation skills | O shows disruptive behaviour |
| O has difficulty decoding words | O talks excessively |
| O has poor reading comprehension | O gives in to peer pressure |
| O has poor phonological awareness | O is self-critical or critical of others |
| O has poor spelling and/or grammar skills | O has low expectations for academic success |
| | O demonstrates wide mood changes |
| Please comment on any other concerns not listed: | |

SCHOOL HISTORY

Please list all previous schools attended. Include the approximate dates and locations.

| Days Absent To Date: | Days Absent in Previous School Year: |
|----------------------|--------------------------------------|
| Days Late To Date: | Days Late in Previous School Year: |

STUDENT'S STRENGTHS AND INTERESTS

Please provide a brief description.

CURRENT CLASSROOM ACHIEVEMENT/FUNCTIONING LEVELS/ SCHOOL-BASED ASSESSMENT INFORMATION AND DATES

Please list all informal & formal school-based assessment results and dates administered. This information is required.

FORMAL ASSESSMENT INFORMATION AND DATES

Please list all assessment results provided by a professional outside of our school board and dates completed.

| CURRENT PROFESSIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICES INVOLVED | |
|---|--|
| | |

| Name | Title | Last Seen |
|------|-------|-----------|
| | | |

| SOCIAL/EMOTIONAL/FAMILY/BEH | AVIOUR FACTORS | | | |
|--|---|---|--|--|
| Child & Youth Worker is Involved: O Yes O No | Behaviour/Safety Support Pla No Health Support Plan in Place | | | |
| Please provide a brief description. Attach any relevant ob | oservations, assessments and/o | or BSP completed by staff. | | |
| INTERVENTIONS TO DATE AND EFFECTIVENESS Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been used. List any accommodations that have been provided. | | | | |
| | en used. List any accommodatio | ons that have been provided. | | |
| Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have bee | en used. List any accommodation quired. Length of Intervention/ | ons that have been provided. Effectiveness | | |
| Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been Indicate the effectiveness of each. This information is read | en used. List any accommodatic quired. | C highly effective | | |
| Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been Indicate the effectiveness of each. This information is read | en used. List any accommodation quired. Length of Intervention/ | Effectiveness | | |
| Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been Indicate the effectiveness of each. This information is read | en used. List any accommodation quired. Length of Intervention/ | C highly effective O effective O some effectiveness O limited effectiveness | | |
| Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been Indicate the effectiveness of each. This information is read | en used. List any accommodation quired. Length of Intervention/ | C highly effective O effective O some effectiveness | | |
| Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been Indicate the effectiveness of each. This information is read | en used. List any accommodation quired. Length of Intervention/ | Effectiveness O highly effective O effective O some effectiveness O limited effectiveness O highly effective O effective Some effectiveness O some effective O effective O some effective O effective O some effectiveness | | |
| Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been Indicate the effectiveness of each. This information is read | en used. List any accommodation quired. Length of Intervention/ | Effectiveness O highly effective O effective O some effectiveness O limited effectiveness O highly effective O effective Some effectiveness O highly effective O effective O highly effective O inited effectiveness O limited effectiveness O limited effectiveness | | |
| Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been indicate the effectiveness of each. This information is read | en used. List any accommodation quired. Length of Intervention/ | Effectiveness O highly effective O effective O some effectiveness O limited effectiveness O highly effective O effective Some effectiveness O some effective O effective O some effective O effective O some effectiveness | | |
| Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been indicate the effectiveness of each. This information is read | en used. List any accommodation quired. Length of Intervention/ | Effectiveness O highly effective O effective O some effectiveness O limited effectiveness O highly effective O effective O some effectiveness O highly effective O effective O some effectiveness O highly effective O effective O highly effective O highly effective O highly effective O effective O some effectiveness O some effective O some effective O some effectiveness | | |
| Please identify all Tier 1 and 2 interventions that have been Indicate the effectiveness of each. This information is read | en used. List any accommodation quired. Length of Intervention/ | Effectiveness O highly effective O effective O some effectiveness O limited effectiveness O highly effective O effective O some effectiveness O highly effective O effective O highly effective O highly effectiveness O limited effectiveness O highly effective O highly effective O highly effective O effective | | |

Checklist of Documentation for all Applicants

Please ensure that the following documents are attached to this application. In some cases the student is entering school for the first time and many of the following documents would not be available.

- □ Most recent signed IEP *if applicable*
- □ Most recent signed IPRC *if applicable*
- □ School Based Team Meeting Notes *if applicable*
- □ Case Conference Notes *if applicable*
- □ Behaviour Support Plan *if applicable*
- □ Health Plan *if applicable*
- □ Safety Plan *if applicable*
- Assessments
- Documentation of Inter-Agency Involvement *if applicable*

| Signature of Referee: | Date: | Please sign and date when the form is complete. Submit one copy along with the required |
|--------------------------------|-------|--|
| Signature of School Principal: | Date: | documentation to the SAT for Special Education and place a copy in the Ontario Student Record. |

| Date Received by Committee: | Date Reviewed by Committee: | |
|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|--|
| Notes/ Next Steps | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |



SUMMARY OF CASE CONFERENCE

STUDENT INFORMATION

| Student's Name: | | | Date: | | |
|--|---------------------------------|--|-----------------------|--|--|
| School: | | | Principal: | | |
| Teacher: | | | Grade: | | |
| IN ATTENDANCE | | | | | |
| | Parents | | Superintendent | | |
| | Principal | | Child & Youth Worker | | |
| | Teacher(s) | | Educational Assistant | | |
| | Agency/ Advocates | | Other | | |
| | Resource Teacher | | | | |
| | SAT: Special Education Services | | | | |
| REASONS FOR CASE CONFERENCE | | | | | |
| Describe the reason(s) why the case conference has been scheduled. | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION | | | | | |

RECOMMENDATIONS / FOLLOW-UP

| SIGNATURES | | | | |
|--|-----------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Principal: | | | | |
| Parent: | | | | |
| Parent: | | | | |
| Distribution: check off those that apply | | | | |
| O Parents | O SAT: Special Education Services | | | |
| O Principal | O Superintendent | | | |
| O Teacher(s) | O Child & Youth Worker | | | |
| O Agency/ Advocates | O Educational Assistant | | | |
| O Resource Teacher | O Other | | | |